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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The annual reort, constituting Exhibit 1.1 of this Form 6-K, contains certain forward-looking
statements that are, b their nature, subject to significant risks and uncertainties. Such forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements relating to:

. our flzet development plans, including, without limitation, related financing, schedule,

inten: ed use and planned disposition;

. the p inned expansion of our cargo operations; :

. the e::pected impact of China’s admission to the World Trade Organization, or WTO;

. the i1 pact of changes in the policies of the Civil Aviation Administration of Chisa, or
CAA'’, regarding route rights;

. the it pact of the CAAC policies regarding the restructuring of the Chinese airlines
indus'ry;

our e:pansion plans, including acquisition of other airlines;

our marketing plans, including the establishment of additional sales offices;

our pian to add new pilots; and

firtur : developments in our economic, industry and regulatory environment and their
poter :al impact on our businesses and results of operations.

The words “¢ ticipate”, “plan®, “believe®, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend” and similar
expressions, as they r:late to our company or our management, are intended to identify some of these
forward-looking state nents. These forward-looking statements reflect our current view with respect to
future events. Actual i:vents or results may differ materially from information contained in these forward-
looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including, without limitation:

J any ¢ 1anges in regulatory policies of the CAAC;

. the e _fects of competition on the demand for and price of our services;

. the a-ailability of qualified flight personnel and airport facilities;

. any ¢ gnificant depreciation of the Renminbi or the Hong Kong dollar against the U.S.
dolles or the Japanese yen, the currencies in which the majority of our borrowings are
deno-ainated;

. the a+ailability and cost of aviation fuel;

. chan s in political, economic, legal and social environment in China;

. the f sctuation of interest rates; and

. our ¢ ility to obtain adequate financing, including any required external debt and
acce table bank guarantees.
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SIGNATURES

Pu:suant to the requirements of the Securities Exchénge Act of 1934, the registrant has
duty canse . this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

n Al tion
(Registrant)
Date: Ma-r 2, 2002 By: / ] {&'ﬁk
Name: Ye Yx

Title: Chairm: of Board of Directors
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200335

Ye Yigan
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“Financial Highlights

GO S escrdaite s i INKeHGTe g Geeoen (g Standaids!
Expressed it RMB mijl s i 1997 1933 1999 2000 2001
Year Ended 31 Dec:mber
Turnover . 8.574 8,172 - 10,963 11,220 12,153
Operaling expenses (7,079) (7.970) {9,241) {10,442) (11,278)
Operating profit 1,495 202 022 778 875
interest expenses, m (784) (853) (966) -(815) {814}
Other ingome, net 295 69 172 341 249
Profit/{Loss) before t.: gtion 1,006 (582) 128 304 314
Profit/(Lass) attribut. sle to shareholders ‘ 668 {454) e4 . 176 542
Earnings/(Loss) per s “are (RMB* .15 - (0.09) 0.02 0.04 0.71
At 31 December :
Cash and cash equiv. lents 1,560 1793 1,15 1423 1331
working capital (defi: ieacy) ‘ 320 (40%) 657 {858) 3,163
Land use rights and " xed assets 17,847 18,882 19,230 20,802 21,454
Tata! assets 26,734 27898 28,261 29,027 28,986
Lang-term laans, ine sding current portion 3,891 43957 4,706 4 804 5,301
Finance lease obliga ons, induding current portion 12,379 11,701 11,557 11,308 9.871
Total capital and res rves 7,383 6,929 7.013 7,189 7,639
v Thecakwtorion of doming: t oss) per share & based o the consotidated flass) orenbulable fo the shoreholders ond the welghted averoge number of 4,465,366.573 shores in nsue during 1997 oad

4 UCA850.000 shores in igy * fram 1598 to 2007.

Eamings/loss) | Profit/{lss) attributable |
pershare . . - | to shareholders '
" RME - ' RIME millions

2 W - 00
1997 1998 999 2000 2001 1937 1398 1999 2000 20 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001




Summary of Accounting and
- Business Data |

prepared in accordance v th PRC Accounting Regulations

Operating I:esults (Year Ended 31 December 2001)

RMB millions
Yotal profit 163.02
Income from Ma 11 Operatian 2,219,04
Income from Ot} .y Operation . 541.08
income from Inv. siments : 57.30
Net Income¢ outs « le Business ' (14.95)

Major Accounting Data & Financial Indicators (Expréssed in RMB Million)

2000 2000 1999 1999

_ {before (after {before (after

Item : 2001 adjustmenl)  adjusiment)  adjustment)  adjustmen)

1. Revenue fron Main Operations 12,839.34 11.821.76 1182176 10,668.64 10,668.64

2. Net(Loss)/Pr - fit 152,92 20.08 2008 208.10 208.10

3. Total Assets 27,355.23 26.986.30 26,976.00 26,959.75 26,949.75

4,  Shareholder; Equily 6,241.37 6,606.55 _6,596.55 5,682.53 6,672.55

5 {Loss)fEarnit: per Share (RMB) 0.02731 0.00413 0.00413 0.04 0.04
6. (Loss)/Earnir ; per Share after deduction of

extraordina profit and foss (RM8) 0.0302 (0.0466} {0.0466) {0.09) (0.09)

7. NetAsets p:r Share (RMB) 128 136 136 137 137

Retumn on bt Assets (%) 213 0.3040 0.3044 n 312

9. NetAssetsy rShare after adjustments (RMB) 1.1% 120 126 127 1.7
10. Net Amoun f Cash Flow per Share Created

by Business 1peration (RMB) 0.66 0.63 0.63 049 0.49

Notes:

1. The major accounting data and finangial indicators in 1999 and 2000 are adjusted pursuant to the same accounting
policies ir 2001, According to the requirements under CK[2001] N0,25 Notice about the Distribution of "Accounting
Regulationt Jor Business Enterprises”issued by the Ministry of Finance, the company started to follow “Accounting Ragulations
for Busine '; Enterprises® on jan 1, 2001. New accounting policies have been applied retrospectively to these financial
statemeni and comparative figures for 1993 and 2000 have been restated to coanform with the change of aLcounting
policy. Tl : effect of the change in accounting palicy to the financial statements are set out in note 20 to the financial
statemeni prepared in accordance with PRC




Summary of Accounting and Business Data

prepered in accondanice with PRC Accounting Regulations)

2. Calculatinn of Major Financial Indicators:
{Loss)/Eainiing per Share = Net Profit + Total Number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year !
Net Asse!: per Share = Shareholders' Equity at the end of year + Total number of Ordinary Shares at the end of year
Net Assel: per Share after Adjustments = [Shareholders’ Equity at the end of year - Agcounts Receivable aged more than
3years- ‘eferred & Prepaid Expenses - Net Loss on Assets {current and fixed) to be disposed of - Presoperating expenses
- Long-te Defersred & Prepaid Expenses - Neganve Balance of housing fund] + Total Number of Ordmary Shares at the
end of yvi¢
Net Amc unt of Cash Flow per Share Created by Business Operalion = Net Amount of cash flow created by Business
Operatio' + Total Number of Ordinary Shares at the end of vear
Return o° Net Assets = Net (Loss)/Profit + Shareholders' Equity at the eng of year 100%

Changes i 1 Shareholders’ Equity (Expressed in RMB million, except share capital)

Shareholders’

Share Capital- Capital Surplus  Statutory Common  Retained Equity

(unit 10,000) Reserve Reserve Wetfare Fund Profits Total

Beginning 8a :ince 486,695.00 1,447.95 239.18 98.62 42.46 8,596.55
Increase, Cun nt - 4326 - 3.36 1.68 132.92 179,54
Decrease, Cur- 3nt - 2840 20475 814 10156 534.72

Ending Balan:2 486,695.00  1.262.87 37.79 18.90 7382 6,24137

The decrease n capital reserve resulted from the setoff of the deficit in the “Turnover Fund for Housing”, first against the

surplus resen: and then against the capital reserve, in accordance with a shareholders' resolution.

The decrease in surplus reserve resulted from the setoff of the deficit in the “Tusnover Fund for Housing” against the surplus
reserve, in ac. yrdance with a shareholders’ resolfution. The increase in the surplus reserve this year is due to after-tax profits
from China C1-go Aidines Co., Lid., a consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

The increase |1 retained profits resulted from the profit earned this year while the decrease is caused by the distribution of

cash dividen: .

1N



- Operating Data

Year ended Year cnded Year ended Year ended Year ended
1999 19%9

Major itemns 2001 2000 1997
After adjustmenis®
Capatcity -
ATK (ava”abh |. nneskifometres) (milliOns} 4,188.20 3,646.30 3,352.52 3.019.38 2,493.30
ASK (available  : at-kilometres) (millions) 25,813.50 22,596.20 22.479.39 20,531.80 17,047.43
ACTK (available :argo tonne-kilometres) (millions) 1,865.00 1.612.60 1329.37 117152 959.23
Traffic
Totat tanneskili- netres {miilions) 2,37320 216530 1.873.91 1575.11 1.386.50
Passcnger to° ne-kilometres (millions) 1,423.40 1.261.00 1,184.60 1.075.43 978. %
Carga tonne | ilometres (millions) : 949.8.. 904.3 . .. 68929 . 499.67-...._ __407709
Passenger-kilor etres (millions) ' 15,911.40 14,101.60 13,257.41 -12.022.52 1283357
Kilometres fiov- | {millions) 147.2 s 1212 .o 1ea 108.03 £9.93
Hours flown (tl.1usands) . 2204 - 180.83 174.3 166.26 14040
Number of pas- :ngers carried (thousands) 10,371.40 911331+ B745.3 8,559.82 784240
weight of carge carried (kg) (millions) 302 286.41 T 24848 . 1814 13044
Load factor
Overali load ta or (%) 56.66 59,38 559 s217 556
Passenger load actor (%) 6.6 6243 58.98 58.56 6474
Break-even loa: factor (based on ATX) (%) 54.7 S7.7 524 57.17 51.35
Yield and costs
Passenger yiell
(passenger 1 * renues/passenger kilometres) 0.6 0.61 0.61 054 0.63
Cargo yield
(cargo rever es/Gargo tonne-kilometses) 22 238 251 25 326
Average yield (2 assenger and cargo revenues/
tonne-kilom: tres) 492 497 521 4.95 552
Unil cost {opes = ting cxpenses/asK) 0.44 0.46 0.41 0.39 042
Unit cost (oper:ting expenses/ATK) 2.69 2.87 273 244 2.86
’ Before adjustment
Capacity ‘
ATK (available . nne-kilometres) {milliong) 4,186.30 3,644.50 335140 2,821.40 234940
ASK {available . ;at-kilometres) {millians) 25481350 22.596.20 2247940 18,550.20 15,650.10
ACTK (availabl cargo lonneskilometres) (millions) 1,865.00 1,612.60 1,32937 1,171.52 . 940.89
Traffic
Total tonne-Xi : metres {millions) 2,332.00 2,136.60 1.846.30 1,448.30 1.29030
Passenger & wnc-kilometres {millions) 1,38220 123230 1,157.00 957.10 88.40
Cargo tonne- dlometres {millians) 949.8 9043 689.3 4912 0T
Passenger-kile setres (millions) : 15,911.40 14,101.60 13.257.30 10,891.00 10.051.30.
Kilometres flor+ 1t (mitlions) 1472 1212 1164 924 . 782
Hours flown (t ~ousands) i 220.4 180.8 1743 139 118.8
Number of pa- engers carried (thousands) 10,263.50 8,970.70 8,609.50 7.514.40 6,995.20
Weight of carg: arried (kg) (millions) 283 266.5 236 1671 144.4
Load hactor
Overall load £« tor (%) 55.71 58.6 55.1 513 54.9
Passenger 031 factor (%) 61.6 62.4 59 587 64.2
Break-even lo, § factor (based an ATK) (3) 518 . 56.8 516 827 47.6
Yield and costs
Passenger yieh
(passenger 1 venucs/passenger kilometres) a.e 0.61 0.61 0.6 0.68
Cargo yield
(cargo rever Jes/cargo lonne-kifometres) 22 2.35 251 2.59 in
Averape vield sassenger and ¢argd revenucs/
tonnc-kilor . 2tres) 5.01 5.04 5.29 538 6.37
Unit cost {ope sting expenses/ASK) 0.42 0.46 041 043 0.46

Unit cost (ope " ating expenses/ATK) 2.69 287 273 283 3.04




Operating Data

1n accord: nce with Order Ko. 88 of the Civil Aviation Administralion of China (*CAAC’), Litled Mensures for the Administration of Ching's
Civil Aviviion Statistics, new statistical standards were implemented with effect from 1 Jaauary, 2001. The Group has adjusted the
operatin, datz for the corresponding period from 1997 to 2000 accarding to the new slandards. The main differences between the two
sets of st., 1dards are sct forth below:

The stami’ srd passenger weight has been changed from 75 kg per person 10 90 kg per person {luggage weight induded). Luggage weight
will not I : separately calculated;

Number ; f scheduled flights has been changed to number of takeoffs;

Any pass: ger cartied on Rlights which {ly international routes will be colinted as one domestic passenger and one imternational passenger;
however any passenger carried on an irregular flight will anly be counted once; any cargo cartied on fights which fly intematianal
routes will be counled as one domestic and one international cargo: however, cargo cartied on an irregular flight will only be
counted * nce.
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Chairman’s Statement

We will strive to achieve greater success
in return for *he support of our
shareholders by seizing any opportunity
as may be pi12sented by the
potential res?rutturing of the

Chinese civil aviation

industry, cor tinuing our
dedication tc ensure safety,
optimizing our iransport
capacity, inc:easing our

Ye Yigan. Chairman

sales efforts ::1nd controlling

our financia. management.

Dear sh_areholders. _

1am pleased to announce the repori on the
operating results of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) ana
its subsidiaries (collectively, the *Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2001. On
benalf of all the staff of the Group, | would
like t0 extend my sincere thanks Lo the
shareholders for their support of the Group.

tn 2001, global economic development
slowed down, and the European, U.S. and
Japanese economies continued to decline,

* The sudden terrorist altacks of 11th

September plunged the world economy

......

into difficully, with the air transport
industry being one of the most severefy
impacted industry. Oue to these external
factors, China's economy experienced
declining growth toward the end of 2001.
However, undcr the Chinese Government's
pusitive macroecanomic policies, a range

~of measures to stimulate domestic

demand have been implemented and the
gross naltonal product achieved the
targeted 7.4% growth ratc.

1 A



Chairman’s Stater:ent

opaﬁnm}ormu:gnlmmﬁ;a
Faced with the incr:asingly intense
competition in the don:astic air transport
market and the sliding inlernational
market, the Group t.is formulated a
number of business policies, such as
centralizing its trans: ort capabilities,
apitalizing on its strer. iths and building
a good brand name. 1- e Group has also
implemented a scries f corresponding
measures during the ye : r 2001, including,
among others, division >f lights between
Pudong and Hong.iao Airport in
accordance with ma-:¢t demand and
establishment of a $ anghai business
office to strengthen it: market aclivities
and to increase its sha: e of the Shanghai
market. The Group he: adjusted and re-
allocated itstransport 1. pacity and has, oy
launching the "Chin. Eastern Express”
service, optimised its jute network and
increased its route ea 1ing rate. it made
vmely adjustments to s flight schedules
by adjusting and bol+'ering its flights to
Europe and the t .S. and adding

destinations in South Korea, thus

increasing the competitive advantage of
some of its international routes. The Group
has also expanded its cooperation with
American Airlines and has remodelled the
entertainment system on its A340 Airbus
aircraft . It improved its sales network and
strengthened safes administration, At the
end of April 2001, the Group joined the
“Asia Miles” frequent flyer programme to
atiract a stable supply of passengers. The
Company completed its acquisition of Air
Great wall in June 2001 and established
the Company’s Ningbo branch based on
the assets acquired {rom Air Great Wall. in
addition, the Company committed to
invest in Qingdao's Liuting Airport to
lacilitate the development of the principal
business of the Group. The Group has also
strengthened its e-commerce research and
development and taunched the “Greal
Wall-China Eastern Airline Co-Branded
Card™ in coaperation with the Shanghai
branch of the Bank of China, as part of its

constant effort to improve its on-line
booking and payment system. During the
Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEQ)
meeting in October 2001, the Company
flew altogether 98 flights on private,
chartered and official planes and
successfully completed its task, winning
praise from all sides,

Diamond Award from the
Amerizon Acsdemy of Hospisafity
Sciences on March 20, 2001

1n 2001, traffic volumc of the Group
totalled 2,373 million tonne-kilometres, an
increase of 9.60% over the same period in
2000, while revenues (ron'1 the Group's
principal business amounted to
RMB11,679 million, an increase of RMBA10
million or 8.45% over the same periad in
2000. The average aircraft daily utilization
was 9.1 hours, an increase of 0.4 hours over
the same period in 2000,

The increase in revenues generated from
the Group's prir;cipal business in 2001 was
mainly gencrated from the passenger air
transport business operated by the Group.
In view of the deliveries of new aircraft and

15



the acquisition of thr .+ Boeing 737 aircralt
through the Compar. 's acquisition of Air
Great Wall, more tr: nsport capacity has
been allocated by ‘1e Group to high-
earning routes. aupled with the
continuing devel¢ yment of China's
economy and lhe in::ease in the volume
of husiness in trade ind commerce, the
traffic volume achie. ed by the Group in
2091 increased by » refatively larger
margin compared to hat in 2000.

In 2001, the Group's - otal operating costs
amounted to R¥ 311,278 million,
representing an incr - ise of 8.01% over the

same period in 200.. Such increase was

primarily du¢ to 1he increase in the
number of flights, resulting in
correspending incre. - s in such operating
costs as consumptior Jf aviation materials,
landing and take )ff expenses and
consumption of avii tion fuel,

In addition, the Com: any has a significanl
percentage of |2pan:se Yen denominated
liabilities. Due to th- depreciation of the
Japanese Yen in 20¢.!, the Group's books
showed a foreign cuitency exchange gain
of RMB126 million 1. r 2001.

tn 2001, the Comy.iny flew more than
200,000 hours and .arried more than 10
million passengers. remained profitable
despitc the genera slump in the global

civil air transport ir wstries.

The Group’s prafit attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2001 amounted to RMB542
million, an increase of 208.06% over the
same period in 2000.

Outlook for the year 2002

The Group would like to caution readers
that this annual report ¢contains, inter alia,

some forward-looking statements, such as -

<ertain forward-ooking statements on the

Asian and Chinese economies and aviation -

markets. These forward-looking statements
are subject to numerous uncertaintics and
risks.

The Company believes that, as a whole,
during 2002 it will face a relatively positive

‘economic climate domestically, while the

global economy has shown signs of
recovery. It brings both opportunities and
challenges to the air transport market.

Chairman’s Statement

Internationally, economic globalisation
has accelerated the development of the
world economy, but it has also exacerbated
the potential risks and crises in 31l main
industries. The issuc of whether or not the
European, U.S. and Japanese economies
can-successfully recover will have an
extremely significant impact on world
economic trends.

Taking 2 look at the domestic situation,
China has successfully been selected to
host the Olympics and has a¢ceded to the
World Trade Drganisation. The Company
believes that with the implementation of
positive financial policies by the Chinese
Government, a steady growth in the
domestic economy will be assured. Since
1992, Shanghai. the base from which the
Group has principally been operating its
business, has for {en consecutive years
attained double-digit growth in its gross
domestic product (GDP). As the leading city

FEREEZEDRALY

T EATERK MLIES B4 TS

EEEY3

Formation of the Shanghai Sates Divisien

16




Chairman’s Stater ent
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of China, Shanghai ha' maintained an
open and developing eci- 1omy. Its foreign-
related businesses, such : s its foreign trade
and foreign investme :t, have steadily
increased. In additio , the potential
grawth in the economi: development of
Shanghai has increas: d significantly,
gradually turning i into a global
production center city oi the twenty-first
century. Further, the :¢pansion in the
volume of import and e :ort trade and the
pace of commercial aa ties will further
promote the expansion »’ the air transport
market, thereby resulti- 2 in an expected
and steady increase in |be passenger and
aargo traffic volume of e Group.

The structure of const nption in China
has reached a new b vel, with travel
consumption becomit 3 a hot spot, in
addition, individual i come levels are
rising. Over all, the p ospects for civil
aviation developme t in China are

positive. as there . e quite a few

The Compasy wins the “2007 Yassenper Appraisal of Givil Aviation” oward

favourable factors. China, with its

extensive territory, large population and

rich tourist resources, holds potential for .

the development of air traffic and its
growth prospects are vast. The Chinese
Government has deépened its efforts ta
reform civil aviation and to reduce the
involvement of the government in the
operation of enterprises, The strategic
restructuring of air arriers is expected to
achieve progress this year. With the
comprehensive implementation of the
strategy 1o develop Western China by the

Chinese Government, the air transport
businesses operated by the Group in the
western China region is expected to
achieve signifiant developments.

The Group believes that the operation of
its domestic and Hong Kong routes will

‘continue to grow. The expansion ol its fleet

and the increase in its efficiency will enabie
the Company to increase its flight
trequency on domestic and regional routes

. and to increase its market share, Moreover,

the Group will take advantage of events
such as the 2002 FIFA World Cup in Korea

- and Japan, the Asian Games in Pusan, etc,

traditional holidays and festivals and the
peak traffic season to timely adjust and
allocale capacity, comprehensively
increase the Company'’s traffic volume and

boost the Company's traffi¢ revenues.

in view of the current market demand, the
country's economic and social
development and macroeconomic
policies, the Chinese government will

adjust its policies and strengthen its

AARGE ERENS

Press conference for the promotion of the "Chino Eostern Express” service
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regulation of the air ‘ransport industry.
The Group expects thi competition in the
domestic market 1o become more
regulated and orderly Yhe Group believes
that in 2002, demanc in the air transport
market will continue b inarease, gradually
improving the bafan. : between demand
and supply in the mz:ket. The Group wifl
farmulate a pruden: aircrafl purchase
policy based on ma: et demand and its

own fleet expansion 12eds.

In response to the bi. .iness environment
and aviation market vonditions it will face
in 2002, the Compar: will duly carry out
the {ollowing strate. ies to enhance its

competitiveness.

1. To increase fiight safety,
maintain que¢ lity service and
build positivi: image

Theyear 2001 was the sroup’s 8th safe flight

year, The Company's :bjective for 2002 is

again to focus on s fely and 1o strictly
enforce safety rules. Juring 2002, the first
phase of AOC will be :ompleted and start

o operate. The m:nitoring of flights

throughout their voy ges will further raise

In May 2001, the Coan ' Wy completed Hs malden “Polor Flight” over Uhe Notth Pole

*

w2
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493333700
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the level of safety administration” n
addition, the Group will earnestly study
developments in intemational terrorism
and spedfic public secunty issues, take due
precautions and make efforts to realize
another safe flight year.

in the “2001 Passenger Appraisal of Civil
Aviation”®, the Group ranked number one
in terms of averall service. Focusing on
individualized services, the Com pany will
strengthen its contro! of transport service
quality and improve service quality across
the Group, 50 as 10 ensure that the average
on-time rate for flights in 2002 reach 80%
ar above. In addition, the Company will use
its hosting of the 1ATA annual meeting as
an opportunity to improve service quality
and enhance its international status.

2. To improve transport
capacity, to strengthen and
improve our operation of the
European, American and
Australian routes and to
expand our operations of the
Hong Kong, Japanese and
Korean routes

Chairman’s Statement

The Company intends to purchase four
Boeing 737-700 aircralt and to acquire,
under operating leases, two Boe¢ing
737-700 alrcratt and two A319 girbuses in
2002. To ensure an optimai allocation of
transport C2pagity, the Company will:

(1) oplimize the allocation of transpart
capacity and the routes; promote the

- “China Eastern Express™ setvice and other

scevice brand names; strengthen and
imbrove the turopean, American and
Australian routes; increase our
competitiveness on some of the other
international long-haul routes; actively
expand high-earning routes such as Hong
Kong, Japanese, Korean and Southeast
Asian routes by increasing flight frequency,
increasing development efforts, and
focusing on the improvement of quality;
optimise the structure of the domestic
flight network; increase the number of
passengers carried, the load factor and the
revenue in the Eastern China cegion and,
in particular, Shanghai; and take
advantage of restructuring opportunities
to develop its air transport industry in the
western China region;

(it} increase flight allocation during
helidays and festivals, concentrate capacily
1o ensure Iraffic on popular routes ang
during peak seasons, actively arrangeé cxtra
flights and charters and develop new

saurces of financigl growth; and
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{iif} further develop our -argo busingss and,
based on the {reng of niodern logistics and
the demand in the carg transport marke,
improve our transp:rt network and
develop transit cargo tiansport; introduce
competitive sales me hods to steadily

increase ¢argo transpo :ation.

3. Tostrengthen arketing
efforts, increas:: domestic
and Shanghai ‘narket share
and implemen strategy of
localising inte ational sales

{i) In December 20111, the Company

established its Shang 1ai business office

which will commence perations in 2002,

with a view to str:ngthening and

enhancing the Comp.:1y's geographical
coverage and marl.2t share in the

Southeast China region. and, in particular,

market share in Shang hai.

(i) The Company will it plement a strategy

of localizing interi tional sales by

recriting an American expert specialised
in sales and promotion as the vice-
president to take charge of sales and
promotion work ;)ver the U.S. regions,
thereby increasing foreign sales volumes.
In 2002, the Company will also recruit
altogether 42 Karean air stewards for the
China-Karea rcutcé. in the hope of
enhancing the quality of servicés provided
by the Company towards Korean
passengers and increasing the Company'’s
competitiveness'over'Korean routes.

(iii) tn 2002, the Company will further
improve ¢ode-sharing arrangements with
foreign airlines, expand the scope of
cooperation, revise existing special protate
agreements (SPA) and enter into new ones,
further explore and investigate the
possibilities of entering into air-alliances,
arrange and develop targeted sales
promotions, strengthen joint operations
with domestic airlines and improve

relations with sales agents.

{iv) The Company will pay particular

. attenlion to the tourism market and actively

develop flight schedules during holidays
and festivals. It will enhance the quality of
{requent flier services, increase its longdenn
customer resources, develop “Flight &
Hotel” arrangements and expand its Golden
Swallow (ub membership serviges.

-[v) The Company will aliocate more

resources to the-brand-new website it
launched at the end of 2001 in order to
further improve its functions as a modem
business platform and improve and

‘enhance the functions of its on-line booking

system. The Company will also develop the
use of electronic tickets. In addition, the
Company will try 10 cooperate with more
Internet companies to further an on-line
membership application function so as to
provide its passengers with all kinds of

on-line services.

4. To ensure strict
administration of financial
affairs and strengthen cost
control

The Company believes that the uncertainty
in aviation fuel prices in 2002 will be
relatively high. In addition, the lease
payments for the newly acquired aircraft
and depreciation will increase the ¢osts
and expenses of the Company in 2002. In
this respect, the Company will adopt the
following measures: '
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(i) to closely monito " the fluctuations in

fuel prices and, to the extent permitied by
law, to enter into fo- ward contracts and
futures transactions 111 an effort to reduce
the operating expen : 2 Lo be incurred by
the Company in tt * consumption of
aviation fuel;

(ii) to reduce inve "tories of avialion
materials and expaiid conperation with
ather companie: so as to reduce
warking capital +jent on aviation
materials; and

(i) to strengthen th » administration of
earnings and impr:ve the settlement
system 5o as to Stop he loss of transport
revenue:land 1o for viulate optimal sales
agent incentive to lo. er the sales expenses
asa percentage of th ' Company's revenues

from its principal bl iness.

To actively expand mergers
. and reorganisations and
expand the scale of the
Group’s operations

The Group will take advantage of the
opportunities as may be presented by the
strategic restructuring of the Chinese civil
aviation industry with a view to
expanding the scale of operations of the
Group, capitalizing on its strength in
market share, routes, fleet and human
tesources and improving the
enviranment of the market in which the
Group operates. in addition, the Company
will continue to select regional airlines
with strengths that
would complement the
Company's businesses
{and vice versa) as
potential alliance
partners in the hope of
establishing a netwark

Chairman’s Statement

that better interconnexts its domestic and
international routes and increasing its
share of the domestic markel.

) Tirmly believe that4in the coming year.
the Company wil] ¢onsolidate and
continue to build upon its competitive
advéntages. In view of the intensely

competitive enviranment, the Company

. will, with the support of all the

i,

-

Ceremony commemersting Lhe Company’s first ~4C overheul chesk

&

shareholders and the dedication of the
Company’s managemenl and all the staff,
seek every opportunity to increase its
market share and scope of service so as to
ensure the continued stable growth of the
Company’s business operation-and to
achieve belter results in return for the
suppon of all the shareholders

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
1waould like to express my heartfeft gratitude
to all the shareholders and all the staff of
the Group for their support and trust.

Ye Yigan
Chairman
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Review of Operations and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

While constantly striving to be the best
we can be and operating with a spirit
of innovatior, we strengthened
our manager.ent, further
developed our corporate
culture, tran:formed our
‘image and st rpassed

many of our 3oals.

Liu Shaoyong, Presiclent .

The Group is one of the three largest air
carriers in China based on tonne-
kilometres and number of passengers
carried in 2001, and is the primary air
carrier serving Shanghai, China’s largest
economic, trading and financial center. 1n
2007, the Group operated 200 routes,
including 155 domestic routes (2mong
which 13 routes are to Hong Kong) and 45
international routes (including 7
international cargo routes). As al 31
December 2001, the Group operated about
2,400 scheduled flights per week, serying
-2 fotal of 76 domestic and foreign cities. '
During 2001, the Group wet leased one
A320 Airbus aircraft on a short-term basis

to Sichuzn Aiclines. The Group also

Z {Z/;

purchased three A320 Airbus aircraft,
acquiregj four A319 Airbus‘aircraft under
operatling leases and, through s
acquisition of Air Great Wall, acquired
three Boeing 737 aircraft. As at 31
December 2001, the Group had a fleet of
72 aircraft, including 67 passenger jet
aircraft with a capacity of over 100 seats
and vthree jet freighters.

tn 2001, traffic volume ot the Group
totalled 2,373 million tonne-kilometers,
an increase of 9.6% over last year, The

Group’s revenues from its main operations
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were RMB 11,679 mill:n, an increase of
8.45% over last year. T. e average aircraft
daily utilization rate ~as 9.1 hours, an

increase of 0,4 hours ¢ . ¢r last year.

2001 Compared to 2000

in 2001, global econor-y showed signs of
weakening developme:: as the economies
of the United States a :d Evrope entered
recession and as the 3cession in Japan
deepened. In the seco: d half of the year,
the terrorist attacks » September 17
plunged the global economy further into
recession, with the airlines industry being
one of the most s +erely impacted
industries, Due to the- e external factors,

the Chinese econom' also cxperienced

Segnssinn and analvses

declining growth toward the end of 2001.
However, the Chingse gavernment’s
macroeconomic policies aimed at
stimulating domestic demand ensured
thai gross national product in 2001
reached the target growth rate of 7.4%. In
addition, since the Group only operates
one passenger route (Shanghai to Los
Angeles) and two cargo routes to the
United States, the events of Seplember 11
only had a ﬁmited impact on the Group's

international revenues. The Graup's

regional and other international routes,
such as Hong Kong, Japan, Korea and
Southeast Asia, were minimally affected.

Faced with increasing competition in the
domestic air transport market
and the weakening intérnational
mayket, the Group formulated a
number of strategies. including

capabilitics, capitalizing on ils
strengths 2nd building a good
brand name. To carry out these
strategics, the Group
implemented a series af
measures during 206071,

including:

+ allocating flights between
Shanghai's Hong Qiao
Airporl and Pudong Airport
in accordance with market
demand and es@blishinga
separate sales division in

centralizing its transport _

Shanghai to strengthen the Group’s
sales activities and to increase its share
of the Shanghai market,

adjusting and re-allocating its transport
capadity and, by launching the "China
Eastern Express” service, optimizing its
route network and increasing
profitability on its routes,

increasing competitive advantage on
various intemational routes by making
timely adjustments to the Group's
flight schedule, adjusting and
bolstering its (lights to Europe and the
U.S.. adding destinations in $outh
Korea, expanding its cooperation with
American Airlines and remodeling the
entertainment syst¢m an the Group's
A340 Airbus aircraft,

improving the Group's sales network
and strengthening the management of
its sales activities,

joining the “Asia Miles” frequent (lycr

programme at the end of April 2001 as
part of the Group’s frequent flyer service

strategy, thus ensuring a more staple

passenger trallic,

completing the Group’s acquisition of
Air Greal wall in June 2001 and

establishing China Eastern Airlines

Ningbe Co., Ltd. using the assels
purchased from Air Great Wall,
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commilling to i-vesl in Qingdao’s

Liuting Airport *3 strengthen the
development of t12 Group's principal
operations, and

» improving the Group’s online
reservation and pa. ment Qpabilities by
stepping up its e: ommerce research
and development : forts and {aunching
the “Great Wall Clh na Eastern Airlines
Co-Branded Card " with the Shanghai
branch of the 8ar- of China.

During the Asia *acific Economic
Cooperation (APEC meeting held in
Shanghai in Oclobr 2001, the Group
received much prai-® for its successiul
operation of 98 charti : ed, commerdial and
official flights.

The domestic passe ger traffic volume
increased significan y due to increased
business travel r ;ulting from the

continuing growlh »: China's economy.

Review of Operalions and Management's Discusston and Analysis

The Group cancelled certain Iuw-!raffic,
less profitable domestic }lights, while
increasing capacity on selected high traffic
and high-yielding domestic routes by
increasing flight frequencies on these
routes. As a result, the Group's revenues
increased by 8.3%. .The.Group's operating
profit ingreased from RMB 778 million in
2000 to RMB B75 million in 2007, or 12.4%,
reftecting the ettectiveness of the Group's
efforts to control costs such as commission
expenses. The decreéase in operating
expenses was also due to the curtailment
of the Group's medical benefits
expenditurcs with respect to retirees and
the drop in aviation fue) expenses during
2001. During the same period, the Group’s
net interest expense remained at RMB 814
million and the Group's other income
decreased by 26.98%. As a result, the
Group's profit before taxation increased
from RMB 304 million in 2000 to RMB 314
million in 2001, or 3%. Profi{ attributable
to sharehoiders increased by 2.7 times

from RM8 176 miilion in-2000 to RMB 542
million in 2001,

Revenues. The Group's total revenues
increased from RMB 14220 million in 2000
to RMB 12,153 million in 2001, or
8.31%, reflecting increases in domestic and
international passenger revenues, These

" revenues were net of the applicable PRC

_ sales tax and civil aviation infrastructure

levies.

Passenger revenues, which accounted for -
79% of the Group’s total revenues in 2007,
inaeased from RMB 8,644 million in 2000 .
10 RMB 9,587 million in 2001, or 10.9%,
reflecting increases in domestic passenger
revenues resulting from increasing

domestic passenger traffic

The Group’s domestic passenger revenues,

. which accounted for 49% of the Group's

passenger revenues, increased from RMB
3,946 million in 2000 to RMB 4,701 million
in 2001, or 192% primarily due to higher
passenger demand. in 2001, the Group
replaced low traffic and low-yielding
domestic routes with new routes and
increased capadty on selected high traffic
and high-yielding domestic routes by
increasing flight frequencies on these
routes with a view towards improving its
competitiveness. In addition, the Group
reallocated its flights between Shanghai's
Hong Qiao Airport and Fudong Airport
according to passenger demand and traffic
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volume. The Grou - also established a
separate sales divisio in Shanghai focused
on increasing the Ge up's market share in
Shanghai as a part :i the Group’s eflorts
to optimize its sales 1etwork. Moreover,
the Group initiater the “China Eastern
Express” services v-hich increased the
frequency of fligh . on the Shanghai-
Beijing routes. As - result. the Group’s
damestic passenge - trallic inCreased by
18.71%in 2001 and he Group’s domestic
passenger load fact .« increased from 58%
in 2000 Lo 61% in .:001. However, the
Group’s domest: passenger vield
decreased from RM  0.67 in 2000 10 RMB
0.63 in 2001 per | issenger-kilometer,
primarily due to in¢ 2asing competition in
the domestic mark:  and a change in the

statistical standai.Is used to measure

%
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passengér traffic, Increasing compelition
in the domestic market prompted the
Group to lower average airtares for its
flights originating or terminating at the
Pudong international Airport. Pudong
International Airport is further away from
downtown Shanghai and less convenient
than Hong Qiao Internalional Airport. As
a result, airlines including the Group
reduced airfares to attract passengers to
take flights terminating or originating from
Pudong International Airport. The change
in the statistical standards was mandated
by Order No. 88 of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China (CAAC) with effect
from 1 january 2001. Under the new
standards, a passenger on a scheduled
international flight with a domestic

connection is now counted {wice, as a

domestic and an imernational passenger
{accounting of a passenger on naon-
scheduled international flights with
domestic connections remains unchanged,
as one international passenger). Without
this change in slatistical standards, the
domestic passenger yield would have
heen RMB 0.65 in 2001,

Hong Kong passenger revenucs, which -

atcounted for 20% of the Group's
passenger revenues, increased from RMB
1,873 million in 2000 to RMB 1,921 million
in 2001, or 2.6%, reflecting primarily
ingreases in Hong Kong passenger traffic.
Hong Kong passcnger traffic increased by
6.96% in 2001 over that of 2000 as a result
of higher passenger demand and the

successiul implementation of the “China




Eastern Express” serv : es which increased
the frequency of fligh s on the Shanghai-
Hong Kong routes. Tl 1+ passenger cpadty
on the Group’s Hong k ing routes increased
by 15.85%. Our Hong |long passenger load
factor decreased fr:m 61% in 2000 to
5621%in 2001 and th - Group’s Hong Kong
passenger yield decn«ised from RMB 0.99
in 2000 to RMB 0,95 in: 2001 per passenger-
kilometer. The decre 3¢ in passenger load
factor and passengel sield on Hong Kong
routes was due to :ompetition from
Dragon Air, lower-th, 1-exbected demand
resulling from the global economic
downturn in 2001, whih was compounded
by the events of Septe inber 11, and a slight
over-capacily on the llong Kong routes.

International pa::enger revenues,

which accounted fo - 31% of the Group's

passenger revenus ;, in¢reased from

Review of Dperationy and Management s Biscnssinn and Anajvsis

RMB 2,826 million in 2000 to RMB 2,965
million in 2001, or 4.9%, despite the global
economic downturn and the events of
September 11. The increase in
internalional passenger revenues reflected
increased international passenger traffic
and increased yicfd per passenger-
kilometer. International passenger traffic
increased by 8.31% in 2001 Tgwer that of

2000 as a result of higher passenger .

demand on the Group's |apanese,
European and Southeast Asian routes
(including South Karea), In particular,
passenger traffic on the Group's Japanese
routes continued to increase because the
Group's competitors have moved their
flights to and from Japan lo Pudong
International Airport which is further away
from downtown Shanghai and relatively
less convenient than Hong Qiac
Internalional Airport. However, the

Group's advantage over its competitors an
these routes will be gradually eliminated
as the Shanghai municipal govermment
gradually moves all international and
regional flights to amd frem Shanghai to
Pudong International Airport, starting in
April 2002. The Group's passenger traffic
on Xorean and European routes also
increased due to increased Chinese tourists
travelling to Korea and Europe. The
Group's international passenger capacity
decreased slightly by 0,6% in 2001,
international passenger load factor
increased from 67% in 2000 to 68.68% in
2001, and international passenger yield
increased from RMB 0.45 in 2000 to RMB
0.48 in 2001 per passenger-kilometer
primarily as a result of the Group's timety
adjustments to its international flight
scheduie to meet market changes. The
adjustments included increasing Hight
frequencies and re-adjusting flight routes
on the Group's high-yielding European
routes and adjusting U.S. flights after the
evenls of September 11.

The Group generates cargo and mail
revenues (rom the transport of cargo and
mail on the Group's designated cargo
aircraft as well as from the carriage of cargo
and mail on passenger aircraft. Revenues
from Cargo and mail operations, which
accounted for 17.21% of the Group's tatal
revenpues, decreased from RMB 2,124
million in 2000 to RMB 2,092 million in
2001, or 1.53%. The decrease in cargo

o Wa
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revenues was primar y the result of the
global economicdow urn (which affected
cargo revenucs par. cufarly since the
majarity of the Grou; 5 cargo traffic is on

its international . utes), increased

competition froi- domestic and
international carrier (such as UPS and
Fedex), and the dec:: ase of the Group's
_revenues on the jap anese and Korean
cargo and mail rout:s as a result of thev
devaluation of the Jupanese yen and the
Karcan won. The Gr. Jp's cargo and mai
traffic (as measur(:l in cargo tonne-
kilometres, or TKs} . icreased from 904
million TKs in 2000 1:1 350 million TKs in
2001, ar 5%, primaril. due to the ingrease
of the Group's interna. onal cargo and mai
traffic. To meet Lhe increased cargo and
mail traffic demand, he Group increased
the flight frequency an routes to majer
destinations, imple nented nationwide,
multiple-tocation ¢a o flight coverage in
the U.S. (Shanghai \nchorage-Seattle-
Chicago-New York . and entered new
markets such as th ' Shanghai-Xiamen-
Japan cargo route. ¢ irgo yield decreased
from RMB 2.35 in 20( 11 to RMB 2.20 in 2001
per cargo tonne-kile ncter primarily as a
resylt of increasingl intcnse competition
on the Group’s inter. ational cargo routes
from such competitrs as UPS, Fedex and
China Southern Airli e¢s.

Other operating re 2nues are primarily
generated from ai 1ort ground services

and ticket handl 1g services. Airport

ground services sclude loading and

urloading, aircraft cleaning, fueling and
ground transportation of cargo and
passenger luggage for airlines operating to
or from Hong Qiac International Airport
and Pudong intemational Airport. Other
operating revenues increased from
RMB 452 million in 2000 to RMB 474
million in 2001, or 5%, which is lower than

the 29% growth rate achieved in 2000. The -

surge in other operating revenues in 2000
was due to the opening of the Pudong
Inicenational Airport in that year. The

Group currently is the principal provider

of airport ground services at both Hong
Qiae International Airport and Pudong
International Airport.

Operating Expenses. The Group’s total
operating expenses increased from RMB
10,442 million in 2000 to RMB 11,278
million in 2001, of 8%, primarily due to
the increase in the number of fiights

which resultedin increases in expenses

such as aircrafl fuel expenses, aircraft
maintenance expenses and takeoff and
landing charges. However, operating
expenses did not increase as fast as they
did in 2000 due to effective cost control
by the Group. Qperating expenses as a
percentage of revenues decreased from
93,1% in 2000 to 92.8% in 2001.

Aircraft fuel expenses increased from RMB
2,327 million in 2000 to RME 2,613 millian
in 2007, ar 12.3%. Fuel expenses intreased
pﬁ'marily 33 3 result of increased fuel usage
offset by decreased domestic and
intcrnational fuel prices. In 2001, the
weighted average domestic and
international fuel prices paid by the Group
decreased by approximately 2% and 1%,
respectively.
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Aircraft depreciatior and operating lease
expenses increase. lrom RMB 2,168
million in 2000 to F1AB 2,404 million in
2001, or 10.9%. Otl.:r depreciation and
operating lease expr 1ses increased from
RM8 321 million i~ 2000 to RMB 358
million in 2001, « - 11.6%, primarily
reflecting the ade tion of buildings,
facilities and equipr 1ent and other assets
at Pudong Internatic. 1al Airport, Take-off
and landing charge: increased from RMB
1572 million‘ tn 200 0 RMB 1,703 million
in 2007, or 83%. / reralt maintenance
expenses were RMB 367 million in 2001,
compared to RMB 81 million in 2000, an
increase of 17.9%.

Commission exper .es decreased from
RMB 645 million 11 2000 to RMB 487
million in 2001, or . 4.5%, primanly due
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to the adoption of 4 new settlement policy
under which commissions received from
and paid to other airlines for regional and
international flights are netted off
periodically with the other airiines (rather
than recording each receipt and payment
separately as commission income and

commission expense, respectively) and

revenues received by the Group from sales
and travel agents for tickets on regional -

and international flights are net of
commissions. Under this policy, the Group
not only reduced its liability for sales taxes,
but also avoided having tc; pay
commissions before receiving payment far
its ticket sales,

Wages, salaries and benefits decreased
from RMB 798 mitlion in 2000 to RMB 773
million in 2001, or 3.1%. This decrease was

attributable primarily to a write-back in
the amount of approximately RMB 96
million as a result ol the curtailment of
the Group's obliga;ions ta provide medical
benefits to retirees.- At the end of 2000,
the Shanghai Municipal Government
promulgated the detailed policies and
regulations regarding its medical
insurance scheme in accordance with a

State Council directive issued in 1998. The

Group joined the scheme in January 2001,
Other than the annual contnbutions made
to the scheme, the Group now has no other
obli'gation for payment of medical
expenses, thereby reducing its medical
benefits expenses. (see Note 33 to the
Financial Statements prepared under IAS).

Food and beverage expenses increased
from RMB 499 million in 2000 to RMB 567
million in 2001, or 13.7%, due to the
increased number of passengerS
resulling from increasing flights and
expanding operations. Office and
administration expenses increased from
RMB 724 million in 2000 to RMB 849
millian in 2001, or 17.3%.

Other operating expenses decreased from
RMB 568 mitlion in 2000 to RMB 557
-million in 2007, or 1.9%. Other operating
expenses included provision for
ohsolescence of flight equipment spare
parts, maintenance expenses of other fixed
assets, computer and telecommunications
expenses and other expenses, The decrease
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was attributable 1: effective cost

management by the Giuup.

Net interest Expen: and Net Other
Income. Netinterest zpenses remained
at RMB 814 million i~ 2001. Net other
income decreased fro 't RMB 341 million
in 2000 to RMB 249-n (lion in 2001. The
primary reason for th - decrease in other
income was that while he Group received
RMB 110 milfion fror its disposition of
four MDB2 aircraft in 2130, no such income
was generated in 200!

Provision for Taxati:a. The Group had
an effective tax rate of 14.3% in 2001,
compared to 32.7% in 000. The effective
tax rate in 2001 was ower because the
Group changed its leg.  address to Pudong
on July 1, 2007, which: aliowed the Group
to enjoy the lower inc:me tax rate of 15%.

LT

Sce Note 9 to the Financial Statements
prepared under IAS regarding the
recognition 'of a net tax credit in the
arnount of RMB 306 milfion as a result of
the reduction of the income tax rate
applicable to the Group.

Liquidity and Capita

Resources -

The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of
funds generated from operations and
shart-term bank loans, The Group had
cash and cash equivalents as a1 31
December 2000 and 2001 of RMB 1,423
million and RMB 1,331 miliion,
respectively. Net cash provided by
operating activities in 2000 and 2001 was
RMB 2,130 million and RMB 2,401 million,
respcelively. During the [ast two years, the
Gfoup's pﬁmaw cash requirements had

.
5

been for additions of and upgrades on
aircraft and flight equipment and
payments on related indebledness.

Net cash used by the Group in investing
activilies in 2000 and 2007 was RMB 1,156
million and RMB 2,554 million,
respectively, 1n 2000 and 2001, payment
of advances on aircraft and flight

_equipment were RMB 630 miilion and

RMB 992 million, respectively, while
additions of aircraft and flight equipment
were RM8 237 million and RMB 1,024
million, respectively. The Group financed
the additions to the Group's aircraft and
ilight equipment primarily through lease
arrangements, bank loans, funds
generated from operations and by trading
old aircraft for new ones. Funds generated
from disposal of old aircrait and flight
equipment and other fixed assets and
equipment (induding by way of exchange)
totalled RMB 325 million and RMB 73
million in 2000 and 2007, respectively, The
Group also received RMB 276 million and
RMB 62 million as relurn of advances on
aircraft and flight equipment in 2000 and
2001, respectively. Additions of
construction in progress, which included
primarily facilities at the Pudong
International Airport, were RMB 540
million and RMB 371 million in 2000 and

2001, respectively.

Net cash used by the Group in financing
activities was RMB 846 millian in 2000 and
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was primarily used for repayments of long-
term and short-term |63 s as well as principal
repayments on finance ' 2ase obligations. Net
cash generated by tl * Group's financing
activities in 2001 was & 1B 80 million, mainly
frorn short-term bank ‘sans

Pursuani to certain ¢ the Group's finance
or operating leases, 1 e Group is reguired
to indemnify the .ssors against any

~ withholding or simil:r taxes that may be
imposed 'on the .2ssors by taxing
authorities in Chi-a with regard to
payments miade uni! 2r these leases. All
but one of the Group: current leases have
been exempted from withholding or
similar taxes w Jer Chinese tax
regulations. Althou "h the Group cannot
assure that it will b - able to oblain any
exemption in respec of lulure leases, the
amount of witht dlding taxes are
generally subject ‘o and fimited by
bilateral taxation 1 aties.

Review of Operalions and Management’s Discussion and Analvsiy

The Group generally operates with a
As at 1
December 2001, the Group's current

working capital deficit.

liabilities exceeded the Group's current
assets by RMB 3,163 million. The increase
in working capital deficit in 2001 was due
to a number of measures taken by the
Group to decrease financing costs. The
Group terrminated several costly aircraft
leases prior to the expiration of their
terms and acquired aircraft using low-
interest loans provided by various
domesltic banks; thereby increasing the
Group's current iabilities in 2001. The
final lease payments under certain long-
term, Japanese-yen.denominated
Jeveraged aircraft Jeases due to expire in
2002, comprising a signiﬁcant portion of
total payments under these |eases, was
translerred to current liabilities in 2001,
thereby also contributing to the growih
in current liabilities. To ensure

operational consistency, the Group took

[
§

several initiatives, including entering into
working capital credit facility agreements
with PRC banks to meet the Group's future
capital needs. The Group has generally
been able to arrange short-term bank
loans with domestic and foreign banks in
China as necessary to meet the Group's
working capital requirements. The Group
believes that it can obtain these short-

. term hank loans when required because

of the Group's continuing relationships
with various lenders, although the Group
cannat assure that it will be able to
continue to do so in the future. See Note
41 to the Financial Statements prepared
under 1AS for a description of bank loan
facilities obtained since 31 December
2001. Short-term loans outstanding
totalled RMB 600 million and RMB 1,288
million as at 31 December 2000 and 2001,
respectively.
autstanding totalled RMB 4,804 million
and RMB 5,301 million as at 31 December
2000 and 2001, respectively. Long-term

Long-term floans

loans paysble within two years, from
three to five years and beyond five years
were RMB 917 million, RM8 2,518 million
and RMB 1,866 million, respectively, as
at 31 December 2001, as compared to
RMB 867 million, RMB 2,048 -million and
RMB 1,890 million, respectively, as at 31
December 2000.
obligations oulstanding under the

The tolal lease

Group's finance leases as at 31 Deccember
2000 and 2001 were RMB 11,308 million
and RMB 9.871 million, respectively. The
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Group's lease obligalidons payable within
two years, from thre 2 to five years and
beyond five years wer: RMB 4,166 million,
RMB 3,091 million an: RM8 2,614 million,
respectively, as at .1 December 2001,
as compared to R 1B 3,154 miilion,
RMB 4,078 millia- and RMB 4,076
million, respectively as at 31 December
2000. The Group ex:ects that cash from
operations and :hort-term bank
borrowings will be s Hicient to meet the
Group’s opera ing cash flow
requirements, 2lt-ough events that
materially affecl th: Group’s operating

The Group's aircraft orders as at 31
December 2001 included commitments
to aqquire eleven Boeing 737 aircraft, two
A319 Airbus aircraft and five A340 Airbus
aircraft to be delivered between 2002 and

2004. The Group expects its capital -

expenditures tor aircraft and related
equipment, including deposits, through

2004 to be in aggregate approximately
RME 9,187 million, induding RMB 3,199

million in 2002, RMB 4,928 million in
2003 and RMB 2,060 miltion in 2004, in
each case subject to contractually
stipulated increases related te inflation

resuits @n also ha': a negative impact
on fiquidity. The Ctoup has, and in the
future may continu: to have, substantia)
indebtedness. As i 31 December 2000
and 2001, the Grou.''s ong-term debt to
2.36 and 1.93,
respectively. Th:- interest expcnses

equity ratio we .

associated with the -+ indebtedness might
impair the Group's | ture profitability and
cause the Group's ¢ wnings to be subject
to a higher degree f volatility.

and any discounts available upon delivery
of the aircraft, Construction of the Group's
facilities at the Pudong International
Airport and the purchase of maintenance
equipment and other property and
equipment will continue to require
additiona! capital expenditure in 2002. In
june 2001, the Group completed its
acquisition of Air Great wall for an
aggregate consideration of RMB 270
million, to be paid on an insialiment basis

over 9 years. On 9 June 2001, the Group
established China Eastern Airtines Ningbo
Co., Ltd. using the assets purchased trom
Air Great Wall. The Group has prefliminarily
agreed in principle with Wuhan Airlines

-and other partners to establish a joint

venture in which the Group i$ expected to
hold a 40% interest. The aggregate
investment by the Group is expected to be
approximately RMB 280 million. The plan
to establish this joint venture was
approved by the CAAC in early 2002,
The capital contribution to the joint
venture will be paid in cash, The Group
plans to finance the Group's aircraft
acquisitions, the Group's investment in.the
joint venture with Wuhan Airlines and
other partners and other capital
commitments through a combination of
lunds generated from operations, existing
credit facilities, bank loans, leasing
arrangements and other external financing

arrangements.

1n the past, the Group has obtained, with
the assistance of the CAAC, guarantees
from the Bank of China and other Chinese
banks in respect of payments under the
Group's foreign loan and finance lease
obligations. While the Group believes that
the Group will continue to be able to
obtain bank guarantees in the future, the
Group cannot assure that the Group will
lye able to do 0. The unavailability of
guarantees from Bank of China or other

acceptable banks or the increased cost of




these guarantees cu )d adversely affect the
Group’s ability to | srrow internationally
or enter into inter -alional aircraft lease
financings on ao :ptable terms. The
Group's ability to ol izin financing may also
be affected by tiz Group's financial
position and lev:rage, 25 well as by
prevailing econon ¢ conditions and the
cost of financing g nerally. If the Group
was unable to olrtain financing for a
significant portion 5f the Group's capital
requirements, tl » Group's ability to
acquire new airc:aft or to expand its
operations could t  impaired.

Foreign Cur:ncy
Transactions

All of the Group's i iance |ease obligations

and aircraft operating leases are

denominated in U . dollars, jJapanese yen
and German deuts: hemarks (as converted
into the Euro as ¢! 1 January 2002), and
certain other cxp :nses of the Group are
denominated in :urrencies other than
Renminbi. Althou. h the Group generales
foreign currency revenues, including
Japanese yen, Hoin3 Kong dollar ang U.S.
dollar revenues, (- m ticket sales made in
overseas olffices, t- o Group may generate
a deficit or surplu: of revenues in foreign
currencies ovel payments in these
currencies Irom . eriod to period. The
resuliing foreign urrency exchange rate
exposure can haw 3n adverse effect on the
Group’s results af operations it, for
example, the v lue of the Renminbi

Fes e 0 Uperaiiony gind Manademesars Disogssion ane Aniysis

weakens against the U.5. dollar or the
relevant foreign currencies. and the
etfective cost of the Group's aircraft
financing-and other loreign currency-
denominated liabilities increase. The
Group is not able to hedge effectively
against the devaluation of the Renminbi,

other than by retaining the Group's foreign

exchange-denominated earnings and
receipts to the extent per;nined'l':y'the
Chinese State Administration of Foreign
Exchange. The Group's results.of
operations may also be affected by

- changes in the value of currencies ather

than the Renminbi, depending on the
currendies of the Group's foreign currency-
denominated receipts and obligations.
The Group has previously entered into
various shart-term hedging arrangements,
for periods of under 3 months, with
Chinese banks far the exchange of
Japanese yen into U.5. dollars in order to
hedge against the devaluation of the
Japanese yen. in 2001, the Group began
enlering into longer-term hedging
transactions, for periods of four 1o five
years, for the exchange of Japanese yen
into US. dofiars. The Group also began
short term hedging arrangements for the
exchange of Korean won inlo U.S. dollars
in 2001. In 2001, the Group had a nel
foreign exchange gain of RMB 126 miliion
as campared 10 a net fareign exchange gain
of RMB 120 million in 2000 primarily as a
resuft of the depreciation of the Japanese
yen against the Renminbi in 2001,

Employees
As at 31 December 2001, the Group had
approximately 13,500 employees, a

* majority of whom worked in the PRC., The

Group normally pays a basie salary and a
performance b'onus to each of its
employees. The Group has not experienced
any significant difficulty in recruiting
employees or any significant turnover in the
number of its employees or any labour
dispute with its employees. Apart from the
basic salary and performance bonus, the
details of retirement and post-retiremert
benefits and staff housing benefits are set
oul in Notes 33 and 34 of the financial
statements prepared under IAS,

Charges on Asset and
Contingent Liabilities

For the acquisition of aircralt, the Group
generally pledges its assets, induding the
aircraft and its long-term bank deposits,
10 secure its obligations under finance
leases and bank loans for these
acquisitions. As at 31 Oecember 2000 and
2001, the total carrying value of assets
pledged was RMB 5,396 million and RMB
5,216 million, respectively.

As at 31 December 2001, China Eastern
Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd. had provided a
guarantee to @ hank in respect of bank
facilities granted to Nanjing Lu Kou
Inlernational Airport Company, an

‘independcnt third party, amounting to

RMB 150 million.
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The Group is one of the three largest
air carh’em i China based on
tonne-kilometers and number of
passengers ca;'rried in 2001,

and is the primary air carrier
serving"Shah._:,'hdi, China’s

largest ééonc-mic, trading

and financia: center.

The board of directors ("Board af
. Directors™) of the Company is pleased Lo
present the audited financial report of
the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group~) for the year ended 31
December 2001.

PRC

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
{"Hong Kong")

Internationat

Total

»

Group Activities and
Results

The Company is one of the three [argest
air carriers in the PRC based on tonne.
kilometres and the number of passengers
carried in 2001 and is the primary‘ air
carrier serving Shanghai, the largest
economic, trading and financial centre of
the PRC. The results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2001 and the
financial position of the Company and the
Group as at that date, prepared in
accordance with the IAS and the PRC
Accounting Standards, are set out in the
financial statements,

Details of the Company's principal '
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements prepared in

accordance with IAS.

The geographic! analysis of the Group's
traffic revenue is as follows:

PRC Accounting
Regutations 1AS
(RMB'00D} (RM8°000)
5,734,273 4,987,406
2,257,362 2,145,732
4',747.1 39 4,545.392
12,738,774 11,678,619
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Dividends

As at 31 December 201, the Company's
accumuiative distriby1able profits were
approximately RM817 153,681 based on
the financial staterr vnts prepared in
accordance with thi- PRC accounting
standards, Having considered the
Company’s cash flow a - d operating needs
in 2002, the Boa'd of Directors
recommended payme 't, in respect of the
Company's accumulalive undistributed
profits attributable to 1is shareholders, of
a cash dividend of F14B0.02 per share
{including tax) based : n an aggregate of
4,866,950,000 shares «f the Company as
at 31 Decemnber 2001. llolders of H shares
of the Company will r.: ‘eive a dividend in
an equivalent amo.nt based on the
foreign exchange :onversion rate
published by the Pec le’s Bank of China
on the date of the disl:ibution of the cash
dividend, representing a total cash
dividend payment ;f RMB97,339,000
" (excluding the e:penses for the
distribution of the al:yve dividend). The
balance of the un. stributed profits
attributable to the siiareholders of the
Company will be am d over to next year,
The Company will no convert funds from
the common reserve |3 increase its share
capital during this p riod. The Board of
Directors also decit *d that the above
dividend distributic 1 proposal will be
submitied to the 2t 11 Annual General

Meeting to be conve ed on 18 june 2002

tor approval.

The Company's register of members for H
shares will be closed from 18 May 2002 to
17 June 2002 (bath days inclusive), during
which period no transiers of H shares will be
registered. Holders of K shares who wish to
attend the Annual General Meeting and io

Share Capital Structure

be listed on the distribution list for tinal
dividend distribution must deliver their

instruments of transfer and the relevant
share certificates to Hong Kong Registrars
Limited, the Regisirar of H shares of the
Comparty, no later than 4 p.m. on 17 May 2002

As at 31 December 2001, the share capital structure of the Company was as follows:

Althe Increase/
begiming [eotasd)duing  Aftheend
oftheperiod  Percentage lhispeiod  of theperiod  Percentage
110,000 shares] B (10000shared 10,000 shars) )
1. Uniisted Shares
Siate-owned
Jegal xrson shares 300000 61.e 0 300,000 61.64
2 Lisled shares
{3 H Shares 156,695 219 0 156.695 EVAV]
) a Shares 30600 617 0 3,000 617
3. Tolal number of Shares 486,695 100 - 0 486,655 100

Number of Shareholder

As at 31 December 2001, the totai aumber of registered sharcholders of the Company

was 162,993.
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As at 31 December 20 11, the 10 largest shareholders of the Company and their respective shareholdings are as follows:

Name

HKSCC NOMINEES IMITED
GALAXY SECURITH'
RONGZHENG INVH TMENT

w o N Mmoo W N

10. XINGHE FUND

EASTERN AIR GRO . P COMPANY [*EA Group")

HONGKONG & SH.'NGHAI BANKING CORPORATION (NOMINEES) LIMITED A/C BR:9"*
HONGKONG & SH :NGHAI BANKING CORPORATION (NOMINEES) UMITED A/C BR-43
HONGKONG & $H 'NGHAI BANKING CORPORATION (NOMINEES) LIMITED

HONGKONG & SH ' NGHAI BANKING CORPORATION (NOMINEES) LIMITED A/C BR-41
HONGKONG & $H ' NGHAI BANKING CORPCRATICN (NOMINEES) UMITED A/C BR-42

Number af |
shares held .  Shareholding (%)
3,000,000,000 6164
1,456,575,999 29.93
7,837,851 0.16
7,531,088 0.15
3,000,000 0.06
2,276,000 0.047
2,162,000 0.044
2,122,000 0.0436
2,000,000 0.041
1,740,368 0.036

The respective interes'* of EA Group and HKSCC Nominees Limited have been registered in the register of interests kept by the Company

pursuant to the Secur ies [Disclosyre of Interests) Ordinance {Chapter 396, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SDI Ordinance”).

Except as disciosed ak ove, the Directors are not aware of any person (other than the Directors, chief executive, senior management or

supervisors of the Cor * pany) who as at 31 December 2001 was interested in 10% or more of any dass of share capital of the Company

which was required ti» be recorded in the register of interests of the Company pussuant to section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

Controlling Sh:reholder

EA Group is the PRC.i scorporated holding
company of the Com«any. Mr. Ye Yigan is
the legal representa:ve of EA Group, EA
Group is mainly 2ngaged in the
. mahagement of its 1upsidiaries and the
sale of goods produc! by its subsidiaries.
EA Group also provid:; catening, boarding
and lodging services 3ir courier services,
transportation of pas :ngers and goods on
land, and other }: 1d transportation
services, as weit as e sale of food and

souvenirs an aircral  As at 31 December

2001, the shares of the Company held by
EA Group were not bledged.

Acquisitions and Mergers

After negotiation with China Civil Aviation
Flight College, the original shareholder of Air
Great Wall, the Group acquired the business
of Air Great Wall in June 2001 (through the
acquisition of certain assets and labilities)
for a iotal acquisiﬁon price of RMB270
million, payable by instalments over nine
years. On 9 june 2001, the Company
established its Ningbo Branch in Ningbo.

EA Group will, pursuant to 2 merger and
restructuring proposal, underge 2
restructuring involving China Yunnan
Airlines and China Northwest Airlines. This
resteucturing proposal has yet 1o be

- finalised. For details please see the

announcement issued by Lhe Company cn
&€ February 2002.

After numerous rounds of negotiations, on
20 January 2002, the Company
preliminarily agreed in principle with
wuhan Airlines on matters concerning
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joint investment in, ai: 1 the establishment
o, China Eastern Airl 1ies Wuhan Co., Ltd,
For details please set the announcement
issued by the Compar:+ on 19 March 2002.

Purchase, Sale. or
Redemption ¢ Securities

During the year ende ' 31 December 2007,

-neither the Comp..ny nor any of its

subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its ecurities {the term
“securities” has tht meaning ascribed
thereto in paragr.ph 1 of part { of
Appendix 7 to the I tles Governing the
Listing of Securities o~ The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limite:’ (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance w th the Code
of Best Practi:e

The Company has at il times throughout
the year ended 3° December 2001
complied with the (. sde of Best Practice”
set outin Appendix 1+ 1o the Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive liights

Under the articles <[ association of the
Company and the PRC laws, no pre-
emptive rights exi« which require the
Company to offer n. w shares to existing
shareholders on a p> rata basis.

Directors, Supervisors, and Senior Management

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the Directors, supervisors
('Super\}isors") and senior management of the Campany during 2001 and as al the
date of this report are as follows:

Name Pusition Age A shares held
Ye Yigan Chairman of the Board of Directors 59 0
Liu Shaoyong - Director, President 44 0
wan Mingwu - Djxeaof. vice President 55 0
Cao fianxiong - Director 43 2,800
Zhong Xiong Director, Vice President 56 2,800
Chen Qua nxin Director 60 2,600
Wu Baiwang Director 59 0
Zhou Ruijin ' Directar 63 0
Gong Haocheng Independent Non-executive Director 74 0
Hu Henggao . Independent Non-executive Director 48 0
Peter Lok Independent Non-executive Director 65 0
Li Zhongming* Chairman of the Board of Directors 61 2,800
Shen Zejiang* Director 49 2,800
Xiao Liyuan* Director 52 2,800
Zhu Tonghar* : Diretor 60 2800
Li Wenxin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee 53 0
Ba Shengji Supervisor 43 2,800
Zhou Rongeai . Supervisor - 57 0
Yang jie Supervisar 32 0
Liv Jiashun Supervisor 45 0
wu Yulin Vice President 53 2,800
Fan Ru Chief pilot 52 2,800
Yang Xu Chiéf Engineer 41 ]
Luo Weide Chief Accountant 46 0
Luo Zhuping Secretary of the Board 49 2,800

* sipaed in june 2007
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As at the date of 1 is report, 2 brief
biography in respu:t of each of the
Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officer: of the Company is

as follows:

Mr, Ye Yigan is the inzumbent Chairman
of the Board of Dire.tors. Mr. Ye joined
- the civil aviation indtistry in 1965, From
1983 to 1985 he sen ed as deputy chiel
enginecr of the CAA: Shanghai Bureau.
From 1985 to 1987 |:2 served as head of
the aircraft repair sctory of the CAAC
Shanghai Bureau. Ii December 1987 he
became deputy he.:J of the CAAC East
China Bureau. Fro '\ 1992 to 1996 he
served as presiden. and deputy panty
secretary of China Ayiation Supplics Corp.
From June 1996 to 2! M he served as head
and party secretary ¢! the CAAC East China
‘Bureau. Since Apri 20071 he has been
president and party '« .cretary of EA Group.
Mr. Ye became Chai - nan of the Board of
Directors of the Comy any in june 2001. Mr,
Ye graduated (rom {}: : China Qivil Aviation
Institute in Tianjin, v th a majorin aircrafl

instrument mainter: nce .

Mr. Liu Shaoyong is 1" irrently Director and
President of the Cor pany. Mr. Liu joined
the civil aviation in ustry in 1578. From
1993 to 1995 he was 1 2puty fleet leader and
fleet leader of the 1 iyuan fleet of China

General Aviation Corporation. From 1995 to
1997 he was deputy general manager of
China General Aviation Corporation and
deputy director of he CAAC Shanxi Bureau.
From 1997 to 1993 he was general manager
of the Company's Shanxi branch and from
1999 to 2000 he was director of CAACS
department of flight standards. Since

Docember 2000 he has been Presidentand
deputy party secretary of the Campany. Mr.

tiu graduated from the China Civil Aviation
Flight Acaderny. in 1999, he graduated lrom
the graduate school at the Tianjin School
of Finance and Economics, majoring in
inlernational trade. He holds the title of First
(ass Pilot.

Mr. Wan Mingwu is currently a Director of
the Company as well as its party secretary
and Vice-President. Mf. Wan joined the
civil aviation industry in 1968. From 1983
to 1930 he.was depuly section chief and
section chief of the cadre section of the
political department of the CAAC Shenyang
Bureau. From 1990 to 1952 he was section
chiet of the personnel section ¢of China
Narthern Airlines. From 1992 to 1995 he
was deputy party secretary of China
Northern Airlines and from 1995 to 2000
he was party secretary of China Northern
Airlines. Since December iOUO he has been
party secretary and Vice-President of the
Company. Mr. Wan gradualed fram Givil
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Aviation Mechanics Vocational Schoal. Mr.
Wan is a college graduate and holds the
title of senior political wark instructor.

Mr. Cao lianxiong is currently a Director of
the Company. Mr, C20 joined the aviation
industry in 1982. From 1992 1o 1994 he
served as president of Shanghat Eastern
Airlines Development Company and in
1994 he became president of Eastern
Airlines Futures Brokerage Company. In
1996 he served as an assistant to the
President of the Company. From 1997 to
1999, he served as Vice-présidem and Chief
Accountant ot the Company. Since
December 1999, he has served as Vice-
president of EA Group. Mr. Cao graduated
from the Civil Aviation Management
Institute of China with @ major in labour
economics. Mr. Cao also received 2 Master’s
degree in global economics from Eastern
China Normal University’s Oepartment of
international Finance. Mr. Cao holds the
title of Economist

Mr. Zhong Xiong is custently a Director and
a vice president of the Company. Mr. Zhong
joined the ¢ivi! aviation industry in 1970.
from 1986 to 1988, he was assistant
manager of Transpor.tation Services
Company of the CAAC Shanghai Sureau
and was manager of sales and

transportation department of China
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"Eastern Airlines from 1188 to 1952, From
1992 to April 1995, he 'vas vice president
of China Eastern Airlin :5. Since-May 1995,
Mr. Zheng has been a vi e president of the
Company. He graduate | in 1970 from the
English Department of iaoning Teacher's
Coliege and holds the . tle of Economist.

Mr. Chen Quanxin is «:irrently a Director
of the Company. Mr. {* en joined the civil
aviation industry Tn1-65. From 1983 to
early 1987, he was de- uty manager and,
from early 1987 to en of 1387, manager
of Transportation Serv : es Company of the
CAAC Shanghai Burea. . From the end of
1987 to 1992, Mr. Ch 'n was chief of the
China Eastern Airlir ©s administrative
office, From 1992 to 15 16, Mr. Chen served
as chairman of the wortiers’ union of China
Eastern Airlines. From the end of 1995 to
1997, he was the chaii-7an of the workers'
union of EA Graup. Frn m 1997 to 2001, he
served as chairman o the workers' union
of the Company. N . Chen has since
retired.

Mr. Wu Baiwang is cur. 2ntly a Director and
party secretary of 6-angzhou Baiyuan
Airport. Mr, Wu join: ] the civil aviation
industry in 1959 and 1-3s deputy head and
subsequently head of ‘he 12th Fleet of the
CAAC from 1976 to 192 . From 1984 101992,
Mr. Wu was deputy he d and subsequently
became head of the ¢« Jitin Bureau. From

1992 to 1995, Mr. Wu was head and party
secretary of the CAAC Northeastern Bureau,
In September 1995, he became the general
manager of China General Aviation

Corporation. Mr. Wu graduated fromr
Chinesce Civit Aviation S¢hool in 1965 and -

holds the title of First Class Pilot,

Mr. Zhou Ruijin is currently 2 directer of

the Company. Mr, Zhou was deputy editos-

in-chief and the East China regional
director of the People's Daily. From 1988
to 1993. Mr, Zhou was parfy se¢retary and
deputy editor-in-chief of the Liberalion
Daily. From 1994 to 1996 he was deputy
editor-in-chief of the People’s Daily and
from 1996 to 2000 he was deputy editor-
in-chief and the East China regional
director of the People’s Daily. Mr. Zhou
graduated from the journalism

department of Fudan University in 1962. .

Mr. Gong Haacheng is currently an
independent non-executive Director, He is
the chairman of the supervisory
committee of China Guo Tai Securities Co.,
Lid., president of the Shanghai Institute of
Securities and Futures, and a professor at
the Shanghai University of Finance,
Shanghai University of Communications
and Eastern China College of Law and
Politics, From 1984 to 1991, he was
assistant branch manager and then branch
manager of the Shanghai Branch of

People’s Bank of China, and head of the
Shanghai Bureaw of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange. Mr.
Gong was involved in the establishment
of the Bank of Communications, the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Foreign Exchange Swap Centre.

Mr. Hu Honggao is currently an

.independent non-execulive Director. He is

the vice dean and professor of law at Fu
Dan University School of Law, supervising
graduate students majoring in civil and
commercial law at Fu Dan University. He
also serves as the head of the Civil and
Commercial Law Reseanch Centre of Fu Dan
University. He is also a senior lawyer at the
Shanghai Shen Yang Law Office. Mr. Hu isa
managing director of China Commercial
Law Research Society, a member of the
Legislative Consultation Committee of the
Shanghai Municipal Government, vice-
chairman of the Shanghai Economic Law
Research Society and an arbitrator of the
Shanghai Arbitration Committee.

Mr, Peter Lok is currently an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lok went to the
College of Air Traffic Control in England for
further studies after joining the Hong Kong
Civil Aviation Department in December
1956. Me studied air transport, air accident
investigation and administration and

management of civil aviation in England
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from 1968 to 1973. 1 1982, he became
the assistant director )f the Hong Kong
Civil Aviation Depari'nent. Fram 1985,
during his time in offii : at the air services
division of the Hong - ong Civil Aviation
Department, he :articipated in
negotiations with “arious countries
regarding air traffic ris. 1ts. He became the
deputy director in 1967, and subsequently
" the director in 1990 ot he Hong Xong Civil
Aviation Department Mr. Lok retired in
1996, He has served a 2 consultant at the
Flights Standards Dep.- tment of the CAAC.
Mr. Lok is the first Ch 1iese dircctor of the
Hong Kong Civil Aviati \n Department and
was atonetime anins uctor of the College

of Air Traffic Control ¢ Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Wenxin is curre ity Chairman of the
Company's Supervisor* Commitiee, Mr. Li
joined the civil aviati :n industry in 1970.
From 1992 ta 1995 he was secretaty of the
disciplinary commiti:e ol China General
Aviation Company. Fr. m 1995 to 1996 he
was deputy party - :cretary of China
General Aviation Cor): ration. From 1996
to 1398 he was dept iy general manager
of China General Avia on Corporation and
in February 1998 he :ssumed the past of
party secretary anc executive deputy
general manager of | e Shanxi branch of
the Company. Heis ¢ ‘rently deputy party
secretary and secre1d ¢ ot the disciplinary
committee of Easte 1 Air Group. Mr. Ui

received a university education and is 3
qualified senior political work instructor.

Mr, Ba Shengji is currently a Supervisor.
Mr. Ba joined the civil aviation industry in
1478. From 1980 to 1948, Mr. Ba was an
accountant at the Department of Finance
of the CAAC Shanghai Bureau. from 1988
to 1993, he served as the section head of
the Department of Finance of China
€astern Airlines. [n 1993, Mr. Ba became
the deputy he:ad of the Department of
Finance of China Eastern airlines. In 1997
Mr. Ba became the chief officer of the
auditing office of the Company. He is
currently the head of EA Group's auditing
department. Mr. Ba received 2 university
education énd is & qualified auditor.

Mr. Zhou Ronggai is currently a supervisor
and vice-chairman of the workers’ ﬁnion
of the Company. Mr. Zhou joined the civil
aviation industry in 1972. From 1979 to
1967 he was an instructor with the Sth
Fleet (3rd Team) of the CAAC. From 1987
10 1992 he was an instructor and a deputy
political commissar with the Shanghai
Fleet (3rd Team) of China Eastern Airlines.
From 1992 to 1996 he was déeputy
department head of the arganization
department of China Eastern Airiines and
from 1996 to 1397 he was head of the
genera office of the China Eastern workers’
unian, Since 1997 he has been head of the
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general office and vice-chairman of the
workers' unions of the Company and EA
Group. Mr. Zhou graduated from the
Shanghai Air Force Political Academy,

Ms. Yang Jie is currently a supervisor of the
Company. Ms. Yang joined the civil
aviation industry in 1992, From 1996 to

1998 she was electronic technology
_supervisor of the technology office and

Commuynist Youth League secretary of the
overhaul department at the aircraft
maintenance base of the Company. From
1998 to 2000 she was Communist Youth
League deputy secretary of the aircraft
maintenance base of the Company. She is
currently deputy secretary of the
Company’s Communist Youth League. Ms.
Yang graduated with a major in aviation
electronics fram the China Civil Aviation
Academy and is a qualified engineer.

Mr. Liu ]iéshun is currently a supervisor
of the Company, From 1993 to 1999, Mr,
Liu was party secretary, deputy general
manager and secretary of the disciplinary
comnmittce secretary of China Aviation
Fuel Hainan Company, as well as
chairman of the board {legal
representative) and president of Hainan
Nanyang Air Transport Co., Ltd. From
1997 to 1999 he was also in charge of fuel
supply engineering at Haikou's Meilan
Airport and served as dircctor of Meilan
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Airpdrt Co., Ltd. and v e chairman of the
board and president ¢ i Meilan tndustrial
_ 0., Ltd. From 1939te.' 300 he was deputy
party secretary of Chin 1 Aviation Fuel East
China Company ani he is currently
deputy party secretai and secretary of
" the disciplinary com “vittee of the East
China branch of Ch 1a Aviation Fuel
Company. Mr. Liu is : former graduate
student and has qi alificatians as a

political work instru¢ of.

Mr. Wu Yulin is the vi:e-president of the
Company, Mr. Wujoin: d the civil aviation
industry in 1966. Froi) 1975 to 1985, he
was the deputy head 2nd from 1985 to
1088, the head of the ! {h Fieet of the CAAC.
(n 1998, Mr. Wu beca e the head of the
Company's Shanghai “leel. From 1989 to
1994, Mr. Wu was th:: deputy chief, and
from 1994 to 1995. the chief of the
Aviation Skills and Management
Department of China { astern Airlines. He
was the director of Cr11a Eastern Airlines’
Safety Supervision De . artment from 1995
to 1997, deputy pilot a- d chief of the Safety
Supervision Departm 'nt of the Company
from 1997 to0 1998 anc. presidenl and party
secretary of the Hebe: 3ranch office of the
Company from 199 to 1999. Mr. Wu
became vice preside it of the Company
trom December 199! Mr. Wu graduated

from Chinese Civil Aviation School and
holds the title of First ass Pilot,

Mr. Fan Ru is thé chief pilot of the
Company. Mr. Fan joined the civil aviation
industry in 1968. Mr, Fan was the deputy
head of the 5th Reet of the CAAC from 1985
to 1988, the deputy head of GxiAna Eastern

Airlines’ Shanghai Fleet from 19@8 10 1995,

the chief of the Aviation Skills and
Management Department of China Eastem
Airines from 1995 to 1997 and the depuly
pilol and chief of the Avialion Skills and
Management Depariment of the Company
from 1997 to 1999. Mr. Fan became the
chief pilot of the Company from December
1999. Mr. Fan graduated from the Chinese
Civil Aviation Schoof and holds the title of
First Class Pilot

Mr. Yang Xu is the Chief Engineer of the
Company. Mr. Yang joined the civil
avialion industry in 1982, Mr. Yang was
president of the Aircraft Repair and
Maintenance Department of China Eastern
Airlines from 1993 to 1997, the vice-
president of the Aircraft Repair and
Maintenance Base of the Company from
1997 to 1998, and president and deputy
party secretary of the Aircraft Repair and
Maintenancc Department of the Company
from 1998 to 1999, Mr. Yang has becn the
Chief Engincer of the Company since

December 1399. Mr. Yang graduated from
the Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics with a major in aircraft design
and holds the title of Senior Engineer.

Mr. Luo Weide is the Company's Chief
Accountant and Chiel Finandial Officer. In
1976 Mr. Luo began his military service at
the Air Force in Livan Airport. From 1986

-to 1991 he successively served as secretary

of the general party branch and deputy
bureay director of the Putuo branch of the -
Shanghai Municipal Tax Bureau. From

1991 to 1993 he concurrently served as

head of the finance bureau and the state

asset bureau of Putuo District, Shanghai.

From 1993 to 1998 he successively served

as deputy chief accountant, chief
accountant and executive deputy general

manager of Shanghai jingiao (Group) Co.,

Ltd. From 1998 to 2000, he was vice-

president of Shanghai Pudong
Development (Group) Co., Ltd. and

chairman of the board and gencral

manager of Pudong Finance Company.
Since 2000 he has been the Chiel
Accountant and Chief Financia) Officer of
the Company. Mr. Luo graduated from the
Sino-European Internationat Business
School in 1999 and received a Master’s
degree in business administration, He
holds the titles of Senior Accountant and
Senigr Economist




Mr. Luo Zhuping is 1€ secretary of the
Board and the head . f the secretariat of
the Board, Mr. Luo joi- ed the ¢ivil aviation
industry in 1988. He 1.3s deputy chief and
then chief of the enti. ‘prise management
department of China -astern Airlines from
1992 to 1997. He wa' deputy head of the
share system office fi '/m 1993 to 1996. In
1997, he becarme the + retary of the Board
of Directors and the h. ad of the secretariat
of the Board of { rectors. Mr. Luo
graduated from the f:iculty of Philosophy
and the Facuity of La+ of Anhui University
in 1979 and 1985, r:;pectively. In 1994,
Mr. Luo received a b ister's degree from
the Economics Dep riment of Eastern
China Narmal Uni:rsity, majoring in
global econamics. in i 998, he participated
in the training pre ramme for senior
managers of farge st e-owned enterprises
organised in the .1.S.A. by the State

Economic and Trade Commission and
Morgan Stanley.

Re-election of Directors
and Personnel Changes

In view of the expiry of the term of office,
and the re-election, of the Directors and
reallocation ot responsibilities, it was
resolved at the shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company held on 29 june
2001 that Mr. Li Zhongming, Mr. Shen
Zejiang, Mr. Xigo Liyuan and Mr. Zhu
Tonghai were no longer directors of the
Company and that Mr. Ye Yigan, Mr. Liu
Shaoyong, Mr. Wan Mingwu and Mr. Cao
Jianxiong were appointed as new directors.
On the same day, the Board of Directors
electad Mr. Ye Yigan as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and appointed Mr. Liu
shaoyong as President, Mr. Wan Mingwu,
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Mr. Zhong Xiong and Mr. Wu Yulin as Vice
Presidents, Mr. Luo Weide as Chief
Accountant and Mr. Luo Zhuging as the
secretary of the Board of Directors, The
aforementioned appointments became
effective on 29 june 2001. .

Interests of Directors, Chief
Executive, Supervisors and
Senior Management in the
Share Capital of the
Company

&cept as disclosed in this report, none of
the Directors, chief executive, Supervisors
or senior managernent of the Company
had, as al 31 December 2001, any interests
in any shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation
(within the mcaning of the SDI Ordinance)
which are 'requ'tred pursuant 1o section

AD
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29 of the SDI Ordinar: ¢ to be entered in
the register referred o therein, or any
interestsinwarrants tr iubscribe for shares
in the Company ¢: any associated
corporation (as so defi- ed) or any interests
which are required t: be notified to the
Company and the llong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant t¢ :he Mode! Code for
Securities Transactit» s by Directors of
Listed Companies 1, in the case of
Supervisors, which w. uld be required to
be notified as descnb. d above if they had
been Directors,

At no time during the year was the
Company or any of i.. subsidiaries, their
holding companies .- jointly controlled

entities a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, Supervisors, chief
executive or any of their spouses or
children under eighteen years of age lo
acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of, or subscription lor, shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Service Contracts of
Directors and Supervisors

No Director or Supervisor has entered into
any service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory
compensation). ‘

Interests of Directors and
Supervisors in Contracts
Excep! as disclosed in this report, none of
the Directors or Supervisors had any matesial
interest in any contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year. -

" Remuneration of Directors
-and Supervisors

Details of remuneration of Directors and
Supervisors are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements -prepared in
accordance with IAS.

Employees

As at 31 December 2001, the Group had
approximately 13,500 employees, a
majority of whom worked in the PRC

Bank Loans and Other
Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings
of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2001 are set out in notes 26 to
27 to the financial slatements prepared in

accordance with 1AS.

Interest Capitalized

Interest capitalized for the Group as
calculated in accordance with IAS for the
year ended 31 December 2001 was
RMB 59.81 million.
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Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed as:2ts of the Company
and the Group dui ng the year are
summarized in note * 4 to the financial
statements prepared in iccordance with 1AS,

Reserves

Details of movemnents 1 the reserves of the
Compa;'ly and the « ‘oup for the year
ended 371 December 1001 are set out in
note 29 to the finincial statements
prepared in accordar- e with 1AS.

Statutory Com:non Welfare
Fund

Details in relation to t}: 2 statutory commen
welfare fund, suth as the nature,
application and mov. ments in the fund,
and the basis of ils ¢’ culation, including
the percentage usec for calculating the
amaounts, are set out n note 29(b) to the
financial statemrnts prepared in
accordance with IAS.

Tax Rate

The Company has ab.ays paid income lax
Cin full in accordance with the tax polices
of the People’s Rept "ilic of China, As the
Company's legal adt! ess was changed o
66 Airport Strect, P dong International
Airpor, Shanghai, Ct 12, from 1 july 2001,
the Company began | enjoy the enterprise
income tax incentiv policy offered in the

Pudong New Area under which its tax rate
was reduced from 33% to 15%. Sec note 9
to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IAS.

Donations

During the year, the Group made
donations‘ tor charitable. purposes
amounting lo RMB668,340.

Cuntailment of Medical
Benefits

For details of the curtailment of the
Group's medical benefits as at 31
December 2001, please see notes 4 and 33
to the Group's financial statements

prepared in accordance with LAS.

Employees’ Retirement
Scheme

Oetails of the Company's employee
retirement scheme and post retirement
benefits are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements prepared in
accordance with IAS.

Major Suppliers and
Customers

As at 31 December 2001, the cost of aircralt
and related equipment and other
purchases from the Group's largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 44.64% and 65.94%,
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respectively, of the total purchases. The
aggregate percentages of sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers are
less than 5% and therefore no additional
disclosure with reg'arG 10 major customers

is made.

One of the five largest suppliers is Shanghai
Eastern Air Catering Co. Lid. ("Eastern Air

_ Catering"), which is 60% owned by EA

Group. The cost of food and beverages
purchased by the Group from Eastern Air
Catering in 2001 accounted for
approximately .18% of the Gfoup's total
purchases,

Except as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or Supervisors or their assodates
nor any shareholder holding 5% or more
of the Company's share capital had any
interest in any of the above mentioned
suppliers and customers.

Material Contracis

Details of material contracls entered inta
subsequent fo the balance sheet date are
set out in note 41 to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with [AS.

AGM and Board Meetings
AGM '

0n 29 fune 2001, the Company held its
2000 AGM at Bai Hua Hall, Fourth Floor,
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2nd Door, Pine ity Hote 8 Dong'an Road,
Shanghai, The People’s * epublic of China
to discuss various resolu: ons proposed by
the Board. Ordinary 1:solutions were
passed to approve eac!. of the fallowing
matters; the Directurs’ report, the
Supervisory Committec': reporl, the audit
report and the profil appropriation
proposal of the Comyj iny for the year
ended 31 December 20 ); the proposal to
set off the deficit of 1)ie shareholders’
equity against the “Tirnover Fund for
Housing™ the appointm: nt of auditors and
Lhe appointment an: resignation of
directors and supervise® . of the Company.
Spedial resolutions were dassed [0 approve
the amendment of the : ompany's articles
of association and t change its legal

" registered address.

Board Meetings

During 2001 the Boan! of Directors held
three regular meeting and four ordinary
meetings and passed, : mong others, the
following resolutions:

Approving the Comp: 11y’s business plan
and investment propo-. il for 2001 and the
working report of th: President of the

Company for 2000; ap “roving in principle.

the proposed acqui: tion of 15 feeder
aircraft {50-seaters) 2 d, if approved by
the government, ad itional 70-seater
feeder aireraft over, number of years;
approving the draft ¢ the annual results

announcement of Lthe Company for 2000,
the PRC and international audited
financial reports of the Company and the
profit distribution propasal; approving the
submission of Lhe proposed setoff of the
deficit in the Company's "Tumover Fund
for Housing” against owner's equity to the
shareholders’ general meeting for
approval; deciding the date for convening

the year 2000 annual shareholders’ general

meeting and determining the agenda for
the same; approving the draft of the
interim results announcement of the
Company for the year 2001 and the PRC
and internatianal financial reports of the
Company for 2000; approving the change
of the Company's tegal registered address
from 2550 angqiao Road, Shanghai to 66
Airport Street, Pudong International
Airpart, Shanghai and the amendment of
the pertinent provisions of the Company’s
articles of association, as well as the
submission of the proposed amendment
to the articles of association to the
Company’s shareholders’ general meeting
for apprava!; approving the remodelling
of the in-flight entertainment system on
the Company’s A340 aircraft; deciding to
¢hange the form of the joint venture with
China Civil Aviation Flight College with
respeci 10 Air Great Wall such that the
Company acquired Air Great Wall's assets
and restructured it as the Company’s
Ningbo branch; approving the Company’s
participation in the reorganisation and

restructuring of Wuhan Airtines as sponsor
and the Company’s equity participation in
Qingdao's Liuting Airport; reviewing and
approving the results of the Company's
fixed asset appraisal using 31 December
2000 25 the reference date and deciding
to engage an independent asset appraiser
to re-appraise the Company’s assets and
forecast the 2mount of funds required for
distribution to emplayees in the form of
home purchase subsidies in lieu of housing
using 30 June 2001 as the reference date;
to elect Mr. Ye Yigan as {he Company's
Chairman of the Board; apprOVing the
engagement of Mr. Liu Shaoyang as the
Company's President and, on the
recommendation of the President, Mr. Liu
Shaoyong. approving the engagement ot
Mr. Wan Mingwu, Mr. Zhong Xiong and Mr,
wu Yulin as the Company's Vice-presidents,
the engagement of Mr. Luo Weide as the
Company's Chief Accountant and the
engagemcnt of Mr. Luo Zhuping as the
Company's Secretary of the Board;
approving the proposal for the partiai
testructuring of the Company; appraving
in principle the establishment of China
Eastern Airlines Airport Investment
Management Company as a joint veniure
between the Company and other investors,
with an investment of RMBO.5 - 1 billion,
and authorizing the President to
implement the same and to submit a
specific proposal to the Board of Directors

for approval; approving in principle the




sale of the Xiamen CIN". Building and to

make allacations to a d . pregiation reserve
in accordance with regy ations; approving
in prindiple the continu : 3 discussion of the
purchase of the Ningh: Airport terminat
building; and approvit » the formation of
. an investment rev ew commiltee
composed of Mess.;. Wu Baiwang
{chairman), Zhong Xion - and Cao Jianxiong
and the formation of 2:1 audit commitice
composed of Messrs Gong Haocheng
(chairman), Hu Hcggao and Cao

Jianxiong.

The aforementioned -2solutions on the
armual results and int:: im resuits reports
and the changes i1. the Campany's
management were pre*iously announced
respectively on 10 Apr , 11 May, 30 June,
17 July, 30 july and 5 tlovember 2001 in
the Shanghai Securiti .3 News, the South
China Moring Post #:1d the Hong Kong
Economic Times.

Connected Tra isactions

As EA Group holds ap 1roximately 61.64%
of the issued share @p* al of the Company,
certain transactions en ered into between
the Group and EA Grot: 3 and its assodiates
constitute connecled ansactions for the

Company under the L ling Rules.

Details of the conn -zted transactions
entered into by the G sup with EA Group
or companies directly  indirectly held by

®

EA Group for the year ended 31 December
2001 are set out.in note 38(b) to the
financial statements prepared in
accordance with 1AS,

_The Company's independent non-

executive directors have reviewed the
transactions with connected persons
entered into by the Group duriné 2001 and
confirmed that :- T

{a) the transactions have been entered
into by the Group in the ordinary and

usual course of its business;

the transactions have been entered

=

into either {i) on normal commercial
terms (by reference to transactions of
a similar nature made by similar
entities within China) or (i) {(where
there is no available comparison) on
terms that are fair and reasonable so
far 25 the shareholders of the Company

are concemned; and

() the transactions have been entered
into either ()) in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing
each such transactions or (i) {where
there is no such agreemcenl) on terms
no less favourable than terms

available 1o third parties.

In respect of each connected transaction
disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial
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statements prepared in accordance with
IAS, the Company confirms that it has
complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules ar a
waiver from such relquircments has been
abtained from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

“Delails of the other related party

transactions entered by the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2001 are set out
in note 38{a} to the finangial statements
prepared in accordance with 1AS. These
transactions do not constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Waiver from Compliance
with the Listing Rules

Pursuant to Rule 14.04(8) of the Listing
Rules, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited has granted to the Company a
waiver from strict compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules, which relates to natifiable
transactions, in relation to the acquisition
or disposal of aircraft. The major terms of
the waiver are summarized as follows:

{a) instead of the normal tests under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the
tests for the Company will be made by
reference to the Available Tonne
Kilometers ("ATXs") for aircraft being
acquired or disposed of as compared

i
|
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to the Company': aggregate fleet

- ATKs;

{®)

@

the proposed test " iil replace the net
asset test and the -onsideration test
only, while the ne: profit and equity
capital issued t: its as set oyt in
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules will
continue to apply

the calculation « ' ATKs will be as
foliows:

) Heet ATKs wil. be the aggregate
actual ATKs i all aircraft in the
Company's ' eet for the last
financial year 15 disclosed in the
Company's ar tual report;

{ii) ATXs for dirar !t being disposed of

will be based on actual ATKs of -

the aircraft fi  the previous two

finangal year:; and

{11} ATKs for airei. ft being acquired

wil} be base). on the historical -

operating d:. a for the type of
aircraft. Whe: 2 the aircraft to be
acquired is a iiew type, the ATKs
will be estim, ed based on other
sircraftof sin arsize operated by
the Compan- or the average for
the Chinese ¢ i} aviation industry;

(d) the Company's ATKs figure will be
disclosed in the Company's annual
report and be reviewed by auditors
who will c;)nﬁrm on an annual basis
that the Company’s ATKs are calculated
correctly and consistently;

(¢} for the purposes of making the test

~2

stated in (a) above, all acquiéitio’ns and

disposals for the last 12 months will be. -

aggregated, unless the acquisilion or
disposal has previously been reported
as a notifiable transaction pursuant to
the rules set out herein;

(f} the thresholds for ¢lassifying a
“transaclion as a discloseable, major
or very substantial acquisition will be
33%/:%, 50% and 100% (assuming that
there are no circumstances which
would make it 3 connected transaction

or a share transaction);

(8) where the trangaction is a discloseable

transaction, disclosure will take the
form of a press announcement
complying with Rule 14.14 of the
Listing Rules and details of the
transaction will be sel out in the
Company's annual report and
accounts. Where the transaction is 3
major transaction or a very substantial
acquisition, the provisions of Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules will apply;

(h) an oplion to acquire aircraft will not
be treated as acquisition while the
exercise of such an option will be
treated as acquisition of an aircraft;

{i) theCompany will disclose in its annval
reports and interim reports the

following informatian:

@) regarding future deliveries of
aircralt, details of aircraft on order
including the number and type;
and the years in which such
aircraft are scheduled to be
delivered;

{ii) the number and type of aircraft
which are subject to options
exercisable during a period of not
less than 12 months from the end
of the financial year or period to
which the report relates; and

@) the granting of the waiver would also
be conditional on the Company
remaining a subsidiary of EA Group.

As at 31 December 2001, the Company’s
ATKs were 4,188.20 million (after
adjustment in accordance with the new
standards set out in Order No.88 of the Gvit
Aviation Administration of China titled
Measures for the Administration of China’s
Civil Aviation Statistics pursuanl Lo which
new statistical standards were implemented
with eflect from 1 lanuary 2007).
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In relation to future d liveries of aircraft, as at 31 December 2001, the following are details of aircraft on order which are scheduled to

be delivered:

Type of aircraft
Boeing 737-700
A319

Baeing 737-700
A340-600
AZA0-600

Numbey of aircraft Year to be delivered
6. 42002
2 2002
. 5 2003 .
.3 2003
L 2 2004

As at the date of this 2port, the Directors are not aware of any aircraft which are subject to options exercisable during a period of not

less than 12 months .om 31 December 2001.

Staff Quarters

Details of the Group' staff duarters areset
out in nole 34 10 the inancial statements
prepared in accorda e with IAS,

Material Litig:tion

The Group was nnt involved in any
matcrial litigation 0 disputes in 2001.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCot 11efs (Certified Public
Accountants in Hony, Kong) and Shanghai
Zhonghua Certifiec Public Accountants
(registered account: s in the PRQ) were
the Company's interr, 3tional and domestic
auditors in 2001, res' ectively. A resolution
to re-appoint both P ewaterhouseCoopers
and Shanghai Zhon. hua Centified Public
Accountants a the Company’s
inlernational ané domestic auditors,

respectively, for the financial year ending
31 Decemnber 2002 will be proposed at the
forthcorming AGM on 18 fune 2002

On behalf of the Board .

Ye Yigan
Chairman of the 8oard

Shanghai, B April 2002
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The Superviscry Committee participated in
and provided suggestions on the Company’s
operations, irvestment plans and

development of new business plans.

Dear Shareholders,

" in 2001, members of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company ("Supervisory
cOmmi"ctee') carried out their duties
actively in accordance with the artides of
association of the Company and relevant
regulations 10 protect the shareholders’
interests and long-term development of

the Company.

In 2001, the Supervisory Committee held

3 meeting to discuss matters such as the -

financial statement and the profit
distribution scheme submitted to the 2000
Annual General Meeting by the Board of
Directors. All members of the Supervisory
Committee attended meetings of the
Board and effectively monitored whether
the stralegic decisions of the Board were
made in 3ccordance with the relevant laws
of the PRC, the long-t¢rm development of
the Company or in the shareholders’
interests. The Supervisory Committee
participated in and provided suggestions
on the Company's operations, investment
plans and development of new business

plans.

In 2001, the Supervisory Committee
recognized that the directors,
management and olher senior executives
strictly followed the artides of association
of the Company, and ;iiligently qrried out
their duties. The Company’s management
overcame unfavourable market factors

. and ensured consistent ingreases in total
- traffic.

The Supervisory Committee has carefully
reviewed the finandal Eeport and the profit
distribution scheme to be submitted to the
2001 Annual General Meeting, and found
no problems with these submissions,
None of the directors, management or
other senior executives is aware of any
information indicating that their actions
in carrying out their duties violated
applicable PRC laws, administrative
regulations, or the articles of asseciation
of the Company or were infringing the
rights of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the Company’s achievements in 2001 and
has confidence in the Company's
prospects.

On behalf of
the Supervisory Committee

Li Wenxin
Chairmon of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, the PRC
8 April 2002
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Report of the Independent
Internctional Auditors

PRICEWAERHOUSE(QOPERS

Yo the members of ¢ hina Eastern AiHines Corporation Limited

festablished in the Fec: le's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the ~ companying balance sheets of China Eastern Airlines Corpora_(ip,h Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group™ as at 31 recember 2001, and the consolidated profit and loss account and cash flow statement for the year then ended.

These finandial stater “2nts set out on pages 47 to 1(M are the respansibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is ta
express an opinion or these financial statements hased on our audit.

We conducted our au- it in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Thase standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain re..;onable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test liasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accouniing principles used and signilizant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overali finangial
statement presentatii: 1. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. -

In pur opinion, the li1ancial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 1he Group and the Company as at
31 December 2007, 2 1 of the results of the Group's operations and cash flows for the ysar then ended in accordance with International
Accounting Standard: . and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCo ipers
Centified Public Actow itants
Hong Kong, 8 April 7 02
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

{Prepered in accordance vith International Accounring Standords)
Year ended 31 Decemb r 2001

2001 2000
Note RMB'000 RME'000
Traffic revenue-
'Passenger ' 9,586,941 8,644.260
Cargo and m il . 2,091,660 2124228
Other operatin ; revenues , 474,198 451,575
Turnover ’ ' 3 12,152,808 11,220,063
Operating expt :1ses ' ‘
Wages, salar 15 and benefits . 4 772,896 797.5%
Take-off ang anding charges - TP 1,702,899 1,572,216
Aircralt fuel ' T 2,613,187 2,327,388
Food and bei erages » 567,168 496,640
Aircraft depi. dativon and operating leases 2,403,752 2,167,539
Other depre . ation, amortisation and operating leasas 358,120 320,792
Aircraft mainzenance ) 966,750 820,405
Commission: 487,009 T 645482
Office and a: ministration 849,217 724,046
Other 557,139 567,709
Total operating expenses 11,278,137 10,441,811
Operating prof’ 874,671 778,252
Interest expen' -, net 5 (814,375) {814,486}
Other income, net : 6 248,741 340,642
share of profit f an associated company 17 4,546 -
Profit before t. -ation 7 313,583 304,408
Taxation 9(a) 261,454 (99.637)
Profit after tax:tion 575,037 204,771
Minority intcre: ts R (33,324) (29.242)
Profit attributs, le to shareholders 541,713 175,529

Basic eamings jer share M0 RMB0.111 RMB0.036




Consolidated Balance Sheet

\Prepared i accardan T with taternationril Accouiting Stondards
As at 31 December 261

2001 2000
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Goodwili and : egative goodwill 12 42,909 101,795
Land use righ . 13 1,231,505 840,612
Fixed assets 14 20,222,680 19,961,682
Construction !+ progress 15 347,406 , 476,251
Investment in an assodated company ‘ 17 109,527 -
Advances on . rcraft and light equipment ‘ ‘ 1,141,576 551,823
Long-term ioi 1 to ultimate holding company o : - 44402
Derivative as:ts ; ) 390 5,39 -
Other long-te- n receivables and investments 18 1,985,554 2,172,302
Deferred tox : isets 30 | 489,375 895,078
Current asset
Flight equi: ment spare parts less allowance for obsolescence
(2001: R .[B314,174,000; 2000: RMB293,022,000) 464,833 376,003
Trade rece  ables less aillowance for doubtful accounts
(2001: R 11852.828,000; 2000 RMB39.273,000} 19 785,834 1,246,826
Amounts ¢ ¢ from related companies 20(a) 35,544 76,151
Prepaymes s and other receivables 21 742,511 719,433
Current po-:ion of receivable under subleases - B84.246
Short-term Jepasits with an associated company 20(b) 281 562 188,302
Tax recove 1ble - 7.861
Cash and | .:nk balances 1,099,630 1284373
3,409,714 3,983,195
Current liabib ies
Trade pay:. les : 2 48,117 76,978
Sales in ad: ance of carriage 645,626 697.260
Amounts ¢ 1e to related companies 20{a) 369,226 261,043
Other pay., sles and accrued expenses 23 1,918,154 1,665,861
Current pr 1tion of obligations under finance leases 25a) 1,335,672 1,117,583
Current p« tion of [ong-term bank loans 26 361,236 422788
Tax payab : 6,949 ) -
Short-tern bank loans 27 1,287,642 600,000
6,572,622 4,841,513
Net current ! abililies . {3,162,308) (B58.318)
Total assels -:ss current liabilities 22,413,020 24,185,627




Consolidated Balance Sheet

- (Prepared in accordance with Internationaf Arcounting Stendnids)
As at 31 Docember 2001

2001 2000
Note RMB'000 RMB'000

Share capitai 28 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 29 2,771,844 2,322,074
Total capital . 1d reserves 7,638,794 7,189,024
Minofity inteirssts : 32 257,205 223,881
Delerred tax isbilities ' 30 780,419 1,453,876
Accrued airer 11t overhaul expenses ' . 24 193,003 224,305
Post-retireme it benefit obligations g 507,141 522,535
Obligations u. der finance leases - 7,935,679 © 10,190,599
Long-term pu 1 tion of other payable 3 161,448 -
Long-term baik toans 26 4,939,331 4,381,407
22,413,020 24,185,627

Ye Yigan Liu Shaoyong
Director Director




Balance Sheet

{Prepared in accordon ¢ with Internationol Accouning Slandards)
As ot 31 Decemben 2 07

2001 2000
Nole RMB'000 RMB'000
Gaodwill and tegative goodwill 12 42,909 101,795
tand use rigt s 13 769,072 360,353
Fixed assels : 4 19,373,619 19,005,191
Construction in progress _ 15 190,394 408,277
Investments 1 subsidiaries : 18 1,193,174 1176914
Investment in an associated company 17 106,364 -
Advances on :ircraft and flight equipment - 1,141,576 - 551,823
Long-term l¢: n to ultimate holding company I o - 44,402
Derivative as:2ts 3%e) - 5,396 -
Other long-t+ ‘m receivables and investments 18 1,944,976 2,129,966
Deferred tax .issets 30 470,385 892,103
Current asse *
Flight equi yment spare parts less allowance for obsolescence
(2007: 1, ¥8305,382,000; 2000: RMB283,337,000) 416,276 330,633
Trade rect: vables less allowance for doubtiul accounts
j {2001: 11 \4B58,875,000; 2000: RMB37.277,000) 19 532,516 . 840,056
" Amounts : ue from related companies ' 20(3) 30,454 69,849 ‘
Prepayme¢its and other receivables 21 652,374 675,369
Current p :rtion of receivable under subleases - 84,246
Short-ten  deposits with an associated company 20(b} 266,741 130,699
Tax recov :rable - 89
Shorl-terr- deposits and bank balances 723,397 909.409
' 2,621,758 3,040,350
Current liab ities '
Trade pa» 1bles 22 48,068 76,474
Sales in a: vance of camriage 606,676 645,915
Amounts i lue to related companies 20{a) 312,821 164,731
Other pa ibles and accrued expenses 23 1,640,185 1,262,098
Current furtion of obligations under finance leases 25(a) 1,935,672 1,117,583
Cutrent | nrtion of long-term bank loans 26 361,236 422,788
Tax paya le 1,755 -
Short-tet 3 bank loans 27 982,642 200,000
5,889,055 3,889,589
Nel current iabilities (3,267,297} {849.239)
Total asser less current liabilities 21,970,568 23,881,585




Balance Sheet

- {Prepared in accordonce with International Accounting S tondards)
As at 37 December 2001

200 2000

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Share pital : 28 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 29 2,763,648 2,385.1 6}
Total capital : nd reserves 7,630,596 7,252,113
Deferred tax iiabilities 30 765,251 1.453,876
Accrued airct oft overhaul expenses 24 102,403 138,748
Post-retirem :nt benefit obligations ‘ 33(b) 435.§58 464 842
Obligations | 1der finance leases 250 7,935,675 10,130,500
Long-term pirtion of other payalle ) ~31 161,448 -
Long-term b ink loans % 4,939,331 4,381,407
21,970,568 23,881,585

Ye Yigan Liu Shaoyong
Director Director




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{Prepared in occordane. with Internalinnal Accounting Stondards)
Year ended 31 Decewn :2r 2007

2001 2000
RMB"000 RMB'000
Cash flows frc n operating activities
Profit attrib . table to shareholders 541,713 175,529
Adjustments . » reconcile net profit to net ash provided by
operating i ‘tivities:
Amortisatio® of goodwill and negative goodwill 3,641 5,655
Amortisatio- of land use rights 26,615 17,243
Depreciatio  of fixed assels - . 1,719,777 1,619,085
interest acc Jed on a long-term payable - e 6,693 -
Amortisatio’ of value added tax ) 15,832 15,821
Amortisatin- of bond discount [37,355) [34,578)
Share of pri+its after tax of an associated company (3,163} -
Write back :[ provision for post-retirement benefits
upon cutiailment of medical benefits ' (95,975} -
Provision fc  post-retirement benefits 78,953 110,059
Provision f¢ sale of staff quarters - 76,000
Provision fr - doubtful debts 51,180 719N
Alfowance :r obsolescence of flight equipment spare parts 21,152 932
Foreign exc: ange gains 1122,614) (145,308)
Gains on d):posals of aireraft and flight equipment (1,866} (112,076}
Losses on d.;posals of other fixed assets 10,643 6,130
Minority in. xrests 33,324 29242
{Write back 'provision for deferred taxation (267,754) 76,729 .
Movements i
Long-term : ortion of s¢erued aircraft overhaul expenses {31,302) 111,017
Trade récer. ables 468,554 (187,551}
Flight equi:ment spare parts (86,938) 44 851
Amounts d. e from related companies 40,607 13,379
Prepaymer s and other receivables {41,667) 159,195
Trade pay:hles (83,784) 2,561
Amounts d e to related companies 108,183 {236,246}
Sales in ad. 3nce of carriage (90,927) 155,94
Tax recove ible/payable 14,810 4,011)
Other pay: 1les and accrued expenses 123,085 219,347
1,359,704 1,854,131
Net cash in{ »w from operating activities 2,401,417 2,129,660




(Prepared in accordance with Internauonal Accounting Slandards)
As al 37 December 2001

Cash Hows {: om investing activities:
Acquisitic  of land use rights
Additions «f aircraft and Right equipment
Acquisitio- of 3 passenger carriage business
Proceeds :n disposals of aircraft, flight equipment,
other f ed assets and equipment '
Additions of buildings, other fixed assets and equipment
Additions +f construction in progress
Investmentt in an assogiated company
Advances n aircraft and flight equipment
Repayme " is of advances onaircraft and flight equipment
Net incre.:se in short-term deposits with original maturities
over thi 2e months
Decrease i1 long-term bank deposits
Repayme- t of 10an to ultimate holding company
Net cash o1 flow from investing activities

Cash flows :rom financing activities:
Repayme; t of amount due to ultimate holding company
Short-ter 11 bank loans
Repayme s of short-term bank loans
Long-ter1* bank loans
Repayme its of long-term bank loans
Principat epayments of finance lease obligations
Receipts - f amounts due under subleases
Loans fro1m an associated company
Repayme-ts of loans from an associated company
Capital in: ection from a minorily shareholder
Net cash it Jow / (outflow) from finanding activities
Net cash (¢ itflow) / inflow
Cash and «:sh equivalents at 1 january
Exchange . djustment
Cash and ¢ sh equivalents at 31 December

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Note

35(b)

35(a}

2001
RMB'000

(64,673)
(1,024,209)
24,008

73,358
(229,703)
(370,647)
{106,364)
(991,300

61,514

(228)
74,358

{2,554,382)

(15,598)
2,037,642
{1,350,000}
1,305,643
(824,284)
(1,157,179)
84,246
50,000
(50,000)
80,470
(72,495)
1,422,891
(19,416)

- 1,330,980

2000
RMB'000

(277.926)
(236,642)

325844

(173.923)
(540,278)
(630,241)
275,759

(42,936)
128,425
15,617
{1.156,30)

1,250,000
{1,065,586)
1,100,000
(1,001,486)
(1,152,459)
195,901
340,000
(530,000)
17,900
(845,730)
127,629
1315172
(19,910)
1.422,891

.

E
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Staterient of Changes in
Sharenolder’s Equity

trepaied in accordar ¢ vith interagtiongl Accounting Stondards)
Year cnded 31 Decen s¢r 2001

Relained
Share capital Reserves profits
(nate 28) {note 29) {note 29) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RME’000

Group
At 1 January :'001 4,866,950 1,223,227 1,098,847 7,189,024
Consolidatec profit attributable to shareholders - i - 541,713 541,713
unrealised g: in on foreign currency _ '

forward contracts {note 39(e}} L - 5396 - 5,396
Total recognised gains - 5,396 541,713 547,109
Dividends n: te 11) - - ©7339)  (97,339)
Transfer froi. retained profits to reserves - 3,362 (3,362) -
At 31 Decen her 2001 4,866,950 1,231,985 1,539,859 7,638,794
Company .
At 1 january 2001 4,866,950 1,231,672 1,153,491 7,252,113
Profit attrib : tabie to shareholders - - 470,428 470,428
Unrealised y.1In on foreign currency '

forward ¢ ntracts (note 39(¢)) ’ - 5,396 - 5,396
Total recogr sed gains - 5,396 470,428 475,824
Dividends (rote 11} ‘ - - 197,339) (97,339)
At 31 Decen' rer 2001 4,866,950 1,237,068 1,526,580 7,630,598
Group
Al 1 January - 000 4,866,950 1,201,143 945,402 7,013,495
Consolidatet orofit atiributable to shareholders - - 175,529 175,529
Transter fror 1 retained profits to reserves - 22,084 (22,084) -
At 31 Decem: er 2000 4,866,950 1,223,227 1,098,847 7,189,024
Company '
At 1 January ::000 4,666,950 1,231,672 1,053,981 7,152,603
Profit attribi able to shareholders - - 99,510 99,510
AL 31 Decern’wer 2000 4,866,950 1,231,672 1,153,491 7252113




Notes to the Financial Statements

{Prepaied 10 accurdn e with International Accounting Stondords) -
Year ended 31 Decer ber 2001

Basis of 'reparation

China Easter Airlines Corporation Limited {the “Company”), incorporated in the People’s Republic of China<{*PRC) as 2 joint
stock compahy limited by shares, is majority owned by Eastern Air Group Company {'EA Group”), a state-owned enterprise
which is unc 1'r the supervision and controf of the Civil Aviation Administration of China ("CAAC).

Tﬁe financia statements have been prepared in accordance with international Accounting Standards (AS™) and the disclosure
reguiremen': of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This basis of accounting differs in certain material respects from that
used in the | -eparation of the Group's statutory accounts in the PRL. The statutory accounts of the Group have been prepared
in accordan ;2 with the accounting principles and the relevant }eg‘ulations applicable to PRC joint stock limited companies
(“PRC Accou - ting Regulations®). In preparing these financial statements, approbriaie restatements have been made to the
Group'sstal. ory accounts to conform with 1AS, Differences arising from the restatements are not incorporated in the accounting
records of th > companies comprising the Group. ‘

The consolic sted financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for fixed assets which are .

stated at val:iation less accumulated depreciation and derivative assets which are stated at fair market values.

The consolis. ated financial statements comprise the consolidated finandial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
as at 31 De.2mber 2001 and of the results far the year then ended. All significant transactions between and among the
Company al 1 its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation,

A subsidian, 5a company in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than half of the voting power or issued
share capitz [ or controls the composition of the Board of Directors. Interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet are
stated at cx : t, being the fair value of consideration given plus related acquisition costs, less any provision for permanent
diminution 11 value, Minority interests represent the interests of outside members in the operating results and net assets of

subsidiarie:.

An associat : is 8 company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Company generally has betwecn 20% and 50% of the voting
rights, or o' ¥ which the Company has significant influence, but which it does not control, The consolidated profit and loss
account inr fudes the Group's share of the resuits of associated companies for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet
in¢ludes th Group's share of the net assets of the associated companies. In the Company's balance sheel the investments
in associatr | companies are stated at cost less provision, if necessary, for any diminution in value other than temporary in
nature. Th resuits of associated companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.




Notes to the Finincial Statements

[Frepnred in accordom - with Internationg! Accounting Standardsj
Year ended 31 Decem’er 2001

Principal .Accounting Policies

{a) Revenu: recognition and sales in advance of carriage

Passenger, ca{o and mail revenues are recognised as traffic revenues when the transportation services are provided. The

value of sold ) 1t unused tickets is induded in the current liabilities as sales in agvance of carriage.

Revenues fror other operating businesses, including income derived from the provisian of ground services, commission
income and n:1tal income, are recognised when services are rendered. Commission income includes amounts eamed from
other carriers ') respect of sales made by the Group's agents. The reféled commission payable 10 such agents are included as
commission ¢* penses in the profit and loss account. Rental incomé from leasing office prer_niss and cargo warehouses is
recognised on 3 straight-line basis over the lease term. ‘

Revenues are . resented net of sales tax and civil aviation infrastructure levies.

Interest incen = is recognised on a time-proportion basis,

Rental incem« from subleases is determined in accordance with note ().

{b) Segme !al reporting

The Group of : rates in ane business segment, which is 1o provide the common carriage of passengers, cargo and mail over

various route’ authonsed by CAAC

The analysis ¢ turnover and operating profit by geographical segments is based on the following criteria;

() Tralfic re.2nue from domestic services within the PRC (excluding Hong Kong Spedial Administrative Region {"Hong Kong)
is attribu: 2d {o the domestic operation. Traffic revenue from inbound and outbound services between the PRCand Hang

Kong or :verseas markets is attributed to the geographical 2rea in which the relevant overseas origin/destination lies.

(i) Other of 1:rating revenues from ticket handling services, airport ground services and other miscellaneous services are

attribute - on the basis of where the services are performed.

{c) Retire: ent benefits

The Group p: Llicipates in defined contribution retirement schemes regarding pension and medical benefit for employees

_organised by ae municipal governments of respective provinces. The contributions 1o the schemes are charged to the profit

and loss acco ot as and when incurred.




2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

- {Prepared in accordaiice will International Acconniting Standotds)
Year ended 31 December 2001

Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

{c) Retirerient benefits (Cont'd)

In addition, thz Group provides retirees with post-retirernent benefits induding transportation subsidies, sociat function activity
subsidies as r«ell as other welfare, The cost of providing the aforementioned post-retirement benetits under the Group's
defined beneiit plan is actuarially determined and recognised over the employees’ service period by using the projected unit
credit methe. ), Post-retirement benefit expenses recognised in the profit and loss account include, if applicable, current
;service cost, i terest cost, the éxpcaed return on plan assets, amortised actuarial gains and losses, the effect of any curtailment

ar settlemen. and past service cost.

(d) Maint:nance and overhaul costs

In respect of : ircraft and engines under operating leases, the Group has the responsibility to fullill the return conditions under
the relevant nases. In arder to fullill these return conditions, major averhauls are required to be conducted on a regular basis.
Accordingly, stimated costs of major-averhauis for aircraft and engines under opcrating leases are accrued and charged to
operating pi.:fits over the estimated peniod between overhauls using the ratios of actual lying hours/cycles and estimated
{lying hours/ . ydles between overhauls. The costs of major overhaul comprise mainly labour and materials, Differences between
the estimate: cost and the actual cost of the overhau! are included in the operating profit in the period of overhaul.

In respect ol siircralft and engines owned by the Group or hé!d under finance leases, costs of major overhauls are charged to the
operating pi:fits as and when incurred.

All other rov ine repairs and maintenance costs incurred in restaring such fixed assets 0 their normal working condition are
charged to ¢ e operating profits as incurred.

Improveme '{s are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.

{e) Taxaiion
The Group :rovides far taxation on the basis of the results for the year as adjusted for items which are not assessable or

deductible . ¢ income tax purposes. Taxation of the Group is determined in accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations
applicable i+ the jurisdictions where the Group operates.

Deferred L2+ ation is provided, using the liability method, for all significant temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of as 15 and liabilities and their carrying amounls in the financdal statements. Currently cnacted tax rates are used to
determine ieferred taxation. A valuation allowange is provided against defcrred tax assets which are not expected to be

realised in he toreseeable future.
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Notes to the Firancial Statements

(Prepared in accorde.rce with tnternational Accounting Standards}
Year ended 31 Oece vber 2001

Princips Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(f Goodill

Goodwill rep -esenting the excess of purchase consideration over the aggregate fair value ascribed to the Group's share of the
separable n .} tangible assets of the acquired subsidiary or assaciated company at the date of acquisition is recognised as an
asset and a1 ortised by equal annual instalments over its estimated useful econamic life up to a maximum of 20 years.

Negative gu dwill represents the excess of tﬁc fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary or
associated rompany over the cost of acquisition. Negative 3oodw}li is presented in Lhe same balance sheet classifications as
goodwrll. T the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectatiéns of future lgsses and expenses that are identified in the
Growp's plan for the acquisition and ¢an be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities, that portion
of negative : oodwill is cecognised in the profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any
remaining 1 -:gative goodwill, not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the profitand
loss accoun over the remaining weighted average useful life of those assets up to a maximum of 20 years; vnegative goodwill
in excess of | he fair values of those assels is recognised in the profit and foss account immediately.

Where an ir Jication of an impairment exists, the carrying amount of goodwill is assessed and written down immediately to its

recoverable ymount,

{8 Land 1se rights

Land use ri 'Ats are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
terms of thi- e land use rights. The @rrying amounts of the land use rights are reviewed regularty and adjusted for permanent
impairmen. where it is considered necessary.

fh] Fixea assets
() Fixed ;- sets are recognised initially at cost which comprises purchase price, costs transferred from construction in progress
and ar. + dircctly attributable costs of bringing the assets to the condition for their intended use,

Subse:; Jent to the initial recognition, fixed assets are stated at valuation less accumulated depreciation. Independent
valuat -1ns, on a market value basis or depreciated replacement cost basis when there is no evidence of market value for
sucha item, are performed at least every five years or sooner if considered necessary by the directors. in the intervening
years, e diregtors review the carrying values of the fixed assels and adjustment is made where there has becn a material
chang ' Increases in valuation are credited to the revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation of fixed assels are first offset
again * increases from earlier v_aluations in respect of the same asset and are thercafter charged to operating profit. Any
subse. Jent increases are credited ta operating profil up to the amount previously charged. Upon the disposal of the fixed
assets the relevant portion of the realised revaluation reserve in respect of previaus valuations is transferred from the

revall tion reserve to retained earnings and is shown as a movement in rescrves.




Noies to the Financial Statements

- {Prepared in aceordance with Internananal Accounning Stendards
Year ended 31 December 200!

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(h}
(i

(it}

{i)

Fixed :ssets (Cont'd)
Deprec:: tion of fixed assets is calculated to write off their cost on a straight-line basis aver their expected usefut lives to
residua values. The annual depreciation charges are calculated as follows:— "

Aircrafl ‘ over 20 years to residual value of 5% of cost
Flight €: uipment ‘ ’

= Er:lines over 20 years to ril residual va(ues‘

— Othier flight equipment over the expected useful-fives to residual value of 5% of cost
Buildir. s over the expected usclul lives of 15 to 35 vears
Other t :ed assets and equipment over S to 20 years to residual value of 3% of cost

The ga 11 or loss on dispasal of 4 fixed asset is the difference between the net sales praceeds and the carrying amount of

the rel rant asset, and is recagnised in the profit and loss account.

The ca ving amounts of assets are reviewed regularly to assess whether their recoverable amounts have declined below
their ¢ rrying amounts, Recoverable amount is the amount which the Group expects to recover from luture use of the
asset, i- duding its residual value on disposal. When a decline in vaiue has occurred, their carrying amount is reduced to
their re: :overable amount. The recoverable amaunt is determined by discounling expected future cash flows to its present
value. | he amount of reduction to recoverable amount is charged Lo the profit and 1oss account.

Lease 1 assets

Fixed assel held under finance leases, where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, other than legal title, are
transferred o the Group are treated as if they had been purchased. At the inception of the lvases, leased assets are stated at
the lower o the present value of minimum lease payments and fair market value at the inception of the tease. The corresponding

(ease ¢comritments are shown as obligations under finance leases. Payments to Lhe lessor are treated as consisting of capital

and intere:! elements. The interest element is charged to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant periodic rate

of charge ¢+ er the lease term.

Leased ass s ar¢ depreciated using the straight-line method over their expected useful Vives to residual values.

Leases of . sets under which all the risks and bencfits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as

pperating *ases. Operaling lease paymenls are charged to operating profit on a straight-line basis over the pericd of the

respective Rases.




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accordan 2 with international Accounting Standards) '
Yeor ended 37 Decen ser 2001

Principal Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(i) Sublea;es

When assets 2: & subleased out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference bels reen the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable, representing the unearned finance income, is
recognised ov: I the term of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Assets sublea . *d out under operating leases are included in fixed assets in the baiance sheet and are depreciated over their
expecied uselul lives on a basis consistent with similar fixed assets'RentaI income is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the lease tern:.

(k) Constn:ction in progress

(Construction 1: progress represents office buildings, various infrastructure projects under construction and plant and equipment
pending insta ation. This inchudes the costs of construction and acquisition and interest capitalised. No depreciation is provided
on constructi-.n in progress until the asset is completed and put into use.

fIj Borrowing costs

Interest attri{ Jtable to funds used to finance the acquisition of new aircrait and construction of major greund facilities is
capitalised a« 3n additional cost of the related asset. Interest is pitalised at the Group's weighted average interest rate on
borrowings o where applicable, the interest rate related to specific borrowings. Capitalisation of interest ceases when the
related fixed :sset is placed in service.

All cther bon- wing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

(m) Advan.<s on aircraft and flight equipment

Advanced ¢oi fact payments to aircralt manufacturers to secure deliveries of zircraft and flight equipment in future years are
apitalised al. ng with attributable interests, and transferred to fixed assets upan delivery of the aireraft.

(m) Flight -quipment spare parts
Flight equipt ent spare parts are carried at weighted average ¢ost less allowance for obsolescence and are expensed when
consumed in perations. Allowance for obsolescence is provided for cxpendable spare parts at rates which depreciate costs,

less an estim ::ed residual value, over the estimated useful lives of the related aircrafi.




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accordance with Interinolional Accolinting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2007

Principal iccounting Policies {Cont’d)

{o) Zero coi:pon bonds

Zero coupon t-inds purchased to secure and to settle future fease obligations are slated at acquisition cost plus discount
arnortised to 1.ate and are classified as held-to-maturity securities. The discount thereon is amorliséd’over the period ta
maturity unde: the effective interest method and included as interest inceme in the profit and loss account.

{p] Trade r:ceivabies

Trade receival | es are Carried at anticipated realisable value. Provision is made against trade recejvables to the extent that they
are considerer 1o be doubtful, Trade receivables in the balance sheet are stated net of this provision.

{q) Cash ai:d cash equivalents

Cash and shotl-term highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible inta cash and have original maturities of three
months or les: at the date of acquisition, are classified as cash and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which
approximates air value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.

{r] Freque-t flyer programme

The Group es(i nates the incremental cost of providing free travel awards entitied by members under a frequent flyer program
when free tra +21 award levels are achieved based on accumulated mileage. The estimated incrementa! cost is recogni§ed asan
expense in th: profil and loss account and accrued as a liability in the balance shect.

As members >deem awards or their entitlemments expire, the incremental cost liability is reduced accordingly to reflect the
acquittal of t ¢ outstanding obligations.

{s] Foreig.. currency forward contracts

The Group u: s foreign currency forwards 10 hedge its currency risks associated with forecast ticket sales received in foreign
currencies. F.;reign currencies forwards, being derivative financial instruments, are initially stated at cost and are stated at fair
value subseo:ient to initial recognition.

Derivative fi “ancial instrument that does nol qualify for hedge accounting is accounted for as trading instrument and any
unrealised g '1n or loss, being changes in fair value of the derivative, is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately.
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Notes to the Fin.ncial Statements

(Prepared 1 accordan * with internaional Accownting Siondardsi
Year ended 31 Decen ier 20611

Principal Accounting Policies (cOnt’d)

(s) Foreigr currency forward contracts (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instrument that qualifies for hedge accounting and is designated as a specific hedge of the variability in
¢ash flows of 1 highly probable forecast transaction, is accounted for as fallows:—

@) theeffec ve partof any gain or loss on the derivative financial.instrument is recognised direclly in equity. The cumulative
gain or I35 on. the derivative financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account
in the sa 1e period during which the hedged forecast transacti&_m affects net profit or loss.

{ii} the inefl tive part of any gain or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately.

(] Foreigr currency translation

The Group m-intains its books and records in Renminbi {*RMB”). Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable rai: s of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, quoted by the People's Bank of China. Monetary assets
and liabilities | lenominated in foreign currencies are translated {nto Renminbi at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
as quoted by e People’s Bank of China. Exchange differences arising are included in the profit and loss account,

{u} Financi2l assets and financial liabilities

Investments, . ‘ade receivables, sublease receivables, obligations under finance leases and derivative assets/(liabilities) under
foreign curre - cy forward contracts are all stated at their carrying amounts determined in accordance with their respective
accounting pulicies set aut above. Other financial assels and liabilities are stated at historical value.

Revenue: and Turnover

Group
2001 2000
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Gross turnow 12,879,786 11,859,445
Less: Sales ta: {a) (298,587} {271,661)
Civil avi .tion infrastructure levies ) (428,391) (367.721)
Turnover 12,152,808 11,220,063
Interest incor e 5 124,419 166,741
Rental incon : from operating subleases of aircrafl 6 125,742 B RR K -
Total reveny 3 12,402,969 11,497,833

~J




Notes to the Financial Statements

- tPrepared in accordance with interuational Accounung Standards)
Year ended 31 Ugcember 2001

Revenuer. and Turnover (Cont’d)

(3) The Grov ) is required to pay PRC sales tax, pursuant to various PRC sales tax rules and regulations. Excep for traffic
revenue: derived from inbound international and regional flights which are not subject to PRC sales tax, the Group's
traffic re -2nues, commission income and ground service income are subject to PRC sales tax levied at rates ranging from
3% to 5%

{b) The civil .iviation infrastructure levies are paid to CAAC, at rates of 5% and 2% respectively (or domestic and international

traffic re s enues.

Wages, S:laries and Benefits

Group

2001 2000

RMB'000 ' RMB'000

Wages, salari s and aflowances 729,996 648,224

Contribution inder defined contribution retirement schemes (note 33y T 45,47 25232

Post-retirem-*at benefits (note 33(b)jil)) 92,404 124.138
Curtailment : f medical benefit previously induded in post-retirement

benefit ot [.gations (note 33(b)({i)) {95,975) -

' 772,896 797,594
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{Prepared in occordam + with international Accounting Stendards)
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Interest E:pense, Net

Interest charg:* 1 on obligations under finance leases
Interest on ba-k loans
— wholly re:ayable within five years
- not whal ** repayable within five years -

Interest accrui § on a longsterm payable (nole 31)

interest on lo: 15 from an associated company

Less: amouni: capitalised into fixed assets and advances on 2ircraft
" and |’ ght equipment

Interest incon
Net interest e/ yense

2001
RME’000

646,288

76,121
268,234
344,355

6,693
1268

(59,610)
938,794
(124,419)
814,375

Group

The capitalisa on rates range between 6.00% and 6.21% per annum (2000: 6.00% and 6.21% per annum).

Other Income, Net

Net exchange s ains
Gain on dispa;al of aircralt and engines {note (a))

* Rental incomy- from operating subleases of aircralt

Other, net

{a) Duringt} - year, the Group disposed of two MDB2 engines (2000: four MD&2 aircraft and two MDB2 engincs) to an unrelated

third par .

2001
RMB'000

126,313
1,866

125,742
{5,120)

248,741

Group

2000
RMB'000
725218

35,562
274,911
310,473

6,154

(60,618)

- 981,227

(166,741)
814,486

2000
RMB'000

119,035
112,076
111,029

(2.398)
340,642
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Profit bef re Taxation

Group
2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000
The profit hefo e tawation is stated after charging— -
Depreciation 1 fixed assets .
- owned et 1,012,847 974361
— assets he ) under finance leases for own use ) 647,020 584,814
- assels he 1 under finance leases and subleased out under opew%ting leases ' 59,910 59,910
Amortisation 1 [and use rights ‘ T 26,615 ' 17,243
Operating lea-* renf(als
— aircraft 925,122 768,586
- land and ouildings 50,358 83417
Losses on disy xsals of other fixed assets 10,643 6,045
Amortisation . goodwill and negative goodwill 3,641 5,655
Contributions o defined contribution retirernent schemes 46,471 25232
Cost of post-ri: irement benefits 92,404 124,138
Auditors' rem- neration ' 7,187 6,896
Provision for . afl housing benefits - 156,179
and after crec ting:—
Net exchange 2ains 126,313 119,935
Curtailment: medical expenscs previously included in post-retirement
benefit obli 2tions 95,975 -
Rental incom. from operating subleases of aircraft 125,742 111,029
Gain on dispt ia! of aircraft and engines 1,866 112,076

~J
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Notes to the Fing 1cial Statements

{Prepared in accardane with international Accotinting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decem) «r 2001

8. Emolume:ts of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

{a) Directors': nd supervisors’ emoluments comprise the following—

Group
2601 2000
‘ RME'000 RMB'000
Fees {or non-e:2cutive directors , v - 30
Emoluments i3 executive directors
- Salaries, . lowances and benefits in kind B 408 438
— Retireme "t benchils ’ S ¥ 13
~ Bonuses ‘ 12 _ 39
Emoluments1{ r supervisors
-~ Salaries, 1llowances and benefits in kind 37 113
— Retireme - t benefits - 9
- Bor{uses 8 2
582 644
During the ye 1ts ended 31 December 2001 and 2000, no directors or supervisors waived their emoluments.
{b) The five |i ghest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:—
" Number of individuals
2001 2000
Directors 2 1
Supervisors - -
Non-directors 1nd NON-SUpPervISOrs 3 4




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accordance with inlernational Accounting Standards]
Year ended 31 December 2001

Emolume its of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Cont’d)

(¢} The emol :ments of the five highest paid individuals:—

Two (2000: oni: of the Group's five highest paid individuals in 2001 are executive directors whose remunerations are included
in the director. emoluments above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2000: four) highest paid individuals

are as follows:
Group

2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'0DD
Salaries, allow: nces and benefits in kind 491 a1
Retirement be:efits ‘ ' 9 16
Bonuses ' 74 72
' 574 629

None of the it lividuals received remuneration in excess of RMB1 million.

During the ye 15 ended 31 December 2001 and 2000, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, supervisors or
the five highes: paid individuals as an inducement to join o upon joining the Group, or s a compensation for loss of office.

Taxation

{a) Taxation s credited /(charged) to the consolidated profit and loss account as follows:—

Group

2001 2000

RMB'000 RMB'D0D

Provision for * RCincome tax ~ current year {4,917) {22,908)
Deferred tax:tion (note 30(b)}

—current y: ar (38,668) (76,729)

- adjustmu 1t for change in enacted tax rate (note (1)) 306,422 -

262,837 (99,637)

Share of tax3 on attributable to an associated company (1,383) -

261,454 (99,637)
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{Prepared in accordame  with international Accounting Standard.)
Year ¢nded 371 Decem .or 2001

9. Taxation ont'd)

()  As approv: ¢ by the shareholders at the annual general meeting on 29 june 2001, the Company’s legal address has been
changed |-om 2550 Hong Qi2o Road, Shanghai, China to 66 Airport Street, Pudong International Airport, Shanghai, China.

Under a 5 eferential tax policy in Pudong. Shanghai, certain qualified enterprises are entitled to a reduced income tax
rate of 1! °6. As a result of the change of the Company’s legal address, pursuant to the Circular “Hu Shui Er Cai (2001)
No. 104" ated 22 October 2001 granted by the Second Branch Office of the Shanghai Municipal State Tax Bureau, the
Company . income tax rate reduced from 33% to 15%.

Due to th -+ reduction of the enacted income tax rate, the deférred tax assets and liabilities of the Company brought
forward ‘om 31 December 2000 of RMB892,103,000 and RMB1,453,876,000 respectively have been reduced by
RMB4B5,21,000 and RMB793,023,000 respectively and a net tax credit of RMB306,422,000 was recognised in the profit
and loss .. crount for the year ended 31 December 2001 {se2 note 30(b)).

(i) The Com :any has two major subsidiaries, namely China Cargo Airlines Ltd. ("China Cargo”) and China Eastern Airlines
Jiangsu «3, Ltd. (“CEA Jiangsu™). Pursuant to the Circular (2000) No. 52 jointly issued by the Shanghai Municipal
Financia' 8ureau and Shanghai Municipal $tate Tax Bureau, China Cargo, of which the legal address is in Pudong,
Shangha is entitled to a reduced income tax rate of 15%. CEA Jiangsu is subject to the standard PRC income tax rate
of 33%.

(i) The diffe 2nce between the actual taxalion credit/(charge) in the consolidated profit and loss account and the amounts
which we id result from 2pplying the enacted 1ax rate to profit before taxation can be reconciled as follows:—

-Group
200t 2000
RMB’000 RMB'0D0
Profit before .ixation 313,533 304.408
Tax calcutated at enacted tax rate of 15% (2000; 33%) {47,037) {100,455)
Effect attribu'.ible to a subsidiary charged at tax rate of 13% - 21,264
Effect attribu itble to & subsidiary charged at tax rate of 33% (14,751) -
Adjustments: -
Effect on defired taxation broughf forward due 1o the
reduction i enacted income tax rate 306,422 -
Utilisation of aluation allowance against tax losses of subsidiaries 20,302 2,638
Potential def rred tax asset arising from provision against staff
quarters n | recognised ' - (23,820}
Other . (3.482) 735

Tax crediti(ci irge) 261,454 (99.637)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

{Prepared in accordance wilh International Accounting Standards)
Year ended 21 December 2007

Taxation ;Cont'd)

(b) The Grou:: operates internationai flights to certain overseas destinations. There was no material averseas taxation lor the
year as there :«cists double tax relief between PRC and the corresponding jurisdictions (inciuding Hong Kong).

‘

-

{c) in accon .ince with the relevant PRC tax regulations, the operaling tease rentals and the interest element of finance leases
and bank loa "5 paid/payable 1o foreign enterprises by the Group is subject to Fokeign Enterprise Income Tax of PRC. This tax
should be w_ﬂhheld by the Group at the time of payment and paid on beha!f of the lessors/lenders, Pursuant to the Greular
(2000) No. 25.. issued by the State Tax Burcau, lease payments made by aviation companies to foreign enterprises in respect of
lease arrange: 1ents entered into prior to 1 September 1999 are exémpted feam the payment of any withholding tax. Majonity
of the Graup' inance and operating lease arrangements were executed prior to 1 September 1999 and hence are fully exempled
from PRC willtholding tax_ As al 31 December 2001, the Group had no material withholding tax payable in respect of its

finance lease: and operating leases.

Basic Eariings per Share

The calcylat cn of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable ta shareholders of RMBS41,713,000 (2000:
RMB175,529 W00} and 4,866,950,000 (2000: 4,866,950,000) shares in issue during Lhe year. The company has na potential
dilutive ordii ary shares.

Dividenc's
The divident:: recognised in the year ended 31 December 2001 represent the final dividend of RMB0.02 per share totalling

RMBY7,339,1 110 for the ycar ended 31 December 2000 proposed by the Board of Directors an 9 April 2001 and approved in the
Annual Genvial Meeting on 29 june 2001.

On 8 Apni! 2312, the Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of RMB0.02 per share totalling RMB37,339,000 for the year
ended 31 De«ember 2001. These financial statements de not reflect this dividend payable, which will be accounted for in the
shareholder: equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ending 31 December 2002. '




Notes to the Finuncial Statements

(Prepored in accordan :2 with international Accouniing Standards) -
Year ended 31 Decen rer 2001

12. Goodwill

Group and Company
2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000
Cost
At Januan 113,105 113,105
Negative g» dwill arising from acquisitibn of a passenger .
arriage business {note {a)) . {55,245). -
At 31 Dece "1ber ‘ ‘_ ' 57,260 113,105
Accumulater amortisation o
A1 Januap 11,310 5,655
Charge for :he year 3,641 5,655
At 31 Dece1ber 14,951 11,310
Net book val: 2 at 31 Oecember 42,809 101,795

{3) On 9 Jur: 2001, the Group acquired a passenger carriage business from China Civil Aviation Flight College, an affiliate of
the CAAC at a total considgration of RMB270 million. The nominal value of the consideration is payable in csh by nine
equal a1.wal instalments of RM830 mittion each commenging June 2001, Taking into account the present value of
the contideration, a negative goodwill of RMBS5,245,000 was resulted from the acquisition, which is amortised on a
straight-i ne basis over a period of 16 years representing the remaining weighted average useful life of the identifiable
acquirer depreciahble assets.




Notes to the Financial Statements

- {Prepured in accordance with Internalinnal Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2001

13, Land use rights

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'C00 RA!B'OOO RMB'060
Cost 4

At 1 Januiy . 892,060 499011 402,904 402,904
Additians . - 393,049 - -
Acquisitio- of a passenger carriage business . 56,024 - 56,024 -
Yransfer I »m construction in progress (note 15) - 370,181 - 370,181 -
" Change ir acquisition cost (8,697) . - - -
At 31 Deczmber 1,309,568 892,060 829,109 402,904

Accumulate-} amortisation o
At1janu.y ‘ 51,448 34205 42,551 33,042
Charge o. the year 26,615 17,243 17,486 9,509
At 371 Deq. mber 78,063 51,448 60,037 42,551
Net book va! le as at 31 December 1,231,505 840,612 769,072 360,353

The Graup™. and the Company's 1and use rights are [ocated in the PRC and majority of these land use rights have terms of
50 years fro 1 the date of grant. As at 31 December 2001, majority of these land use rights had remaining terms ranging from
45 1o 49 yes. s (2000: from 46 1o 50 years) .

Certificates »f certain land use rights of the Group with a total net book value of RMB374,689,000 are currently registered
under the 1.1me of EA Group. The procedures to change the registration of the land use rights certificates with the relevant
municipal .nd bureaux are currently being addressed by EA Group. Until the completion of these transfer procedures, the
Group is un: ble 10 assign or pledge these land use rights. However, the Group currently has no need to assign and no intention
1o pledge ti- >se Iand use rights. In addition, the Group is entitled {0 Jawfully and validly occupy and use these lands for its daily
operations n spite of the fact that the procedures of changing the registration of these fand use rights have not been fully
completed Accordingly, the directors of the Company do not believe this issue has any material impact on the financial

position of - he Group.
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(Prepered in accordance vith International Accounring Stendards)

Yeor ended 37 Decemb 2001

14. Fixed Asse's

~ Valuation
At 1 january ;101
Transfer from -onstruction
in progress note 15)
Additions

Acquisition ol 3 passenger carriage business

Disposals

At 31 Deceml 2001 °
Accumulated d: preciation

At 1 January, 101

Charge for th: year

Disposals

At 31 Deceml- v 2001

Net book valuv at 31 December 2001
Net book value : t 31 December 2000

Valuation
At 1 january ' )01
Transfer fron construction
in progres {note 15)
Additions

Acquisition @ a passenger carriage business

Disposals
At 31 Decem:er 2001
Accumulated 1 spreciation
At 1 January : 001
Charge fortt: year
Disposals
At 31 Decem er 2000
Net hook valu . at 31 December 2001

Net book value it 31 December 2000

Aircraft and

flight equipment
Held under
fimance
Owned leases
RME'000 RMEB'000
9875365 12626400
1.374,360 -
212333 -
(34.287) -
11,431,771 12,826,400
2,540,464 2,622,641
771,700 706,930
(11,259) -
3,300,905 332957
8,130,666 9,496,829
7,338,901 10,203,759
- 9,625,243 12,826,400
1,373,826 -
212,333 -
(34.287) -
1A77115 12826400
2,377,600 2.622,641
755,831 706,930
(11.259) -
3122172 3329,57
8,054,943 9,496,829
7,247,643 10,203,759

Group

Buildings
RMB'000

1,511,851

144,634
33778
35432
(61,765)

1,663,930

132,415
57,762
(5.460)

184,717

1,479,213

1379436
Company

1,090,856

123 654
30,781
35,432
(49,028)

1,231,695

91,597
42,069
(5322)
128,344
1.103,351
999,259

Other fixed

assets and
equipment
-~ RMB'000

1,569.800

57,098
195,925

9350
(27,881)

1,804,292

530,214
183385
{25.079)

688,520
1115772
1,039,586

922,697

54,473
171,205
9,350
{11.574)

1,146,151

308,167
137,01

{17.523)
427,655
718,496

611,530

Total
RMB'000

25,787,416

201,732
1,604,063

257,115
'(123,933)

27,726,393

5825734
1,719,777
{41,798)
7,503,713
20,222,680

19,961,682

24,465,196

178,127
1,575,812
257115
(94,889)

26,381,361

5,400,005
1,641,841
(34,304)
7,007,742
19,373,619
19,065,191
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{(Prepared in aecordonce with internationst Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2061

14. Fixed Asseis (Cont'd)

@

0On 30 jun: 2001, the fixed assets, other than the MD90 aircralt fleet, were revalued by Shanghai Zhonghua Property
Valuation  ompany Limited, an independent valuer registered in PRC, on a market value or replacement cost basis. The
revalued :. nounts are not materially different from the carrying values of these fixed assets. Accordingly, these fixed
assets are -{ated at their @mying values in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December’zom.

Regarding the MDOO aircraft, a total of 9 aifcraft. there have been no sufficient secondary market transactions and this
model of :ircraft is no longer produced. Accordingly, neither the apen market value nor the replacement cost of the
aircraft ca- be reasonable ascertained. However, the directors of the Company have reviewed the carrying values of MD30
aircraft ar:| are of the opinion thal there is no impairment to the carrying amounts of RMB2,599,109,000 as at 31 December

2001,

Had the .wroup's fixed assets been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses as at
31 Decerber 2001, the carrying amounts of aircraft and flight equipment would have been RMB17,293,554,000
{2000: RK: 317,117,008,000), and the carrying amounts of buildings and other fixed assets and equipment would have
been the :ame as those stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

Certain 2: aaft of the Group and the Company with an aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB3,459,592,000 and
RMB3,48 * 348,000 as at 31 December 2001 and 2000 respectively were pledged as collateral under certain loan agreements

(see note.'6).

includec n the additions of fixed asscts of the Group and the Company were capitalisation of interests of RMBS0,577,000
{2000; R} 1870,370,000) transferred from construction in pragress and advances on aircraft and Aight equipment, of which
RMB22,6° 5,000 were capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2001 (2000: RMB42,229,000).
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{Preparer in occorda: e with International Accounting Standards)’
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15. Construciion in Progress

Group Company

2001 2000 200 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000 RME'0G0

Cost .
At1januaty : 476251 1159808 408,277 1,062,172
Additions . 427,648 520,909 315,005 133,837
Acquisitia - of a passenger carriage business L 6,420 - 6,420 -
Interest  italised L9000 19369 9,000 19369
" Transfer 11 land use rights (note 13) 370,181} - - (370,181) -
Transfer-t: fixed assets (note 14) 201,732) (1223835  (178,127) {807,107)
At 31 Dec- niber . 347,406 476251 190,394 408.277

Pravision f¢ - sale of staff quarters
At1Janui ¥ - 218,000 - 158,000
additions - - 76,000 - 59,000
Transler t- fixed assels - (294,000} - (217,000)
At 31 Dec:mber - - - -
Net bog!t v;.lue at 31 December 347,406 476,251 190,354 408,277
16. Investm:nts in Subsidiaries
Company

2001 2000
RMEB’000 RMB'000
Unlisted she e, at cost ‘ 1,062,900 1,062,900
Amounts du 1 from subsidiaries 130,274 114,014

1,193,174 1176914
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17.

Notes to the Financial Statements

" {Prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decewnber 2001

Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars o the principal subsidiaries, all of which are {imited companies eslablished and operating in the PRC, are as

follows:~
Place and ’
S date of Paid-up Attributable )
Company estabfishment capital equity interest Principal activities
RMB'000 2001 2000
China Cargo . irlines Ltd. PRC 500000 70% - 70% Provision of crgo
22 July 1998 ’ T carriage services
China Easter ) Airlines PRC 236,579 55% 55% Provision of airline
Jiangsu Cc. Ltd. 3 May 1933 senices
Eastern Ailin 25 PRC 49,500 80% 80% Provision of hote! services
Industrial I'0., Ltd. 18 March 1998 to crew members
Shanghai Ea, .ern Flight PRC 358,000 95% 95% Provision of flight

Training (., L1g. 18 December 1995 training services

Investm:nt in an associated company

Group Company

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB'000

Unlisted inv stment, at cost - 106,364
Share of nel assels 109,527 -
109,527 106,364
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iPrepared in accordai te with International Accounring 5mndnrds)'
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17. Investment in an associated company (Cont'd)

18.

Movements 11 investment in an associated company are as follows:-

At 1 January

Cost of inve*iment

Share of pra’ ts before tax
Share of tax 1tion

At 31 Decer ser

Place and
date of
Company establishment
Eastern Air tiroup PRC
Finance (1., Ltd. (“EAGF?) 6 December
1995

Other L: ng-Term Receivables and Investments

Long-term [2ank deposits (note 25(a))

US Treasun zero coupon bonds (note 25(a))
Deposits fo aircraft under operating leases
Prepaid cu''om duty and value added tax

Prepaymen s and other receivables

Attributahle
equity
Paid-up caplial interest
RMB400,000,000 25%
Group

2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,255,005 1.444,262
s01,722 464,454
97,370 88,529
63,340 79172
68,117 95,865
1,985,554 2,172,302

Group

2001
RME’600

106,364
4,546
(1,383)

109,527

prindpal activities
Pravision of finandal service
to companies comprising
EA Group

Company
200 2000
RMB'000 KMB000
1,255,005 1,444,282
501,722 464,454
78,031 73,544
63,340 79,172
46,878 68,514

1,944,976 2,125,966

—ed
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accordunce with Inlernational Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 December 2601

Trade Rec zivables Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The credit terr 15 given to trade customers are determined on individual basis, with the credit period ranging from half month

1o three mont °s.

As at 31 Deces ber 2007, the aging analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:—

Group . Company

- 2001 2000 2001 2000

'RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000 RME'000

Less than-31 1 s 525006 - 588953 363,643 345,607
31 to 60 days ‘ 91,531 320,395 28,720 175,320
61 to 90 days ‘ 28,334 253,363 13,397 240679
Over90days 140,913 84,109 126,756 78,450
785,834 1246826 532,516 840,056

Balances with Related Companies

{a} Amourts due from/ta related companies

Amounts dut Tom/to related companies arising from trading activities are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed terms of
repayment. 1) relationship of the following parties to the Group are set out under notes 1 and 38. As a1 31 December 2601,
such balance: mainly included the following:—

CAAC
Balances wit - CAAC comprised civil aviation infrastructure [evies payable to CAAC. -

Eastern Aviaiian Import and Export Company ("EAIECT)
Balances wil EAIEC comprised prepayments as well a5 purchases of flight equipment and flight equipment spare parts payable
10 EAIEC

Shanghai Eas'ern Air Catering Co. Lid. ("SEAC)
Balances wi "1 SEAC comprised payments for construction projects on behalf of SEAC.




Notes Lo the Finaucial Statements

{Prepared in accordance with internationiod Accounting Standards)
Yeor ended 37 Decemb r 20017

20. Balances vith Related Companies (Cont’d)

(b) Short-te'm deposits with an associated company

The Group and he Company has a short-term deposit of RMB281,362,000 and RMB266,741,000 (2000: RMB168,302,00C and
RMB130,699,0¢ ) respectively placed with EAGF, an associated company. The shott-term deposits yield interest at an average
rate of 0,99% p: r annum (2000: 1.04% per annum).

21. Prepayments and Other Receivables _
Group (omﬁany

2001 T 2000 2001 2000

RMB"000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Discounts rece *able on aircraft acquisitions 204,550 190,840 204,550 190,840

Receivable on rovision of ground services : -71,465 130,755 41,940 99,621

Sales proceeds - ecetvable on disposai of aircraft - 71,719 ‘ - 71,718

Prepaid aircral: operating lease rentals 94,538 71,082 75466 52.231
Aircraft lease iislerest income receivable 54 3,519 544 3519 .

Receivable on :ircraft operating lease rentals 33,828 8,360 33,828 9.360

Other 337,586 242,158 296,846 248,079

742,511 719,433 652,374 675,369

22. Trade Pay ibles

As 2t 31 Deceniber 2001 and 2000, all trade payables were current balances and aged under 30 days.
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23. Other Pay:bles and Accrued Expenses

Grovp Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

RMB'000 RME'000 RMB’pOO RMB'000

Accrued operaf 18 expenses 958,641 907,288 215,935 709,188

Payable arising ‘rom acquisition o} land us¢ rights 107,624 - 15123 66,000 -
Current portior of accrued aircraft ] :

overhaul ex;' *nses (note 24} 266,016 114,102 256,337 114,102

Dutics and levi. s payable : i8,727 86433 70,902 84,011

Current portion of 2 long-term payable (note 31) 30,000 . - 30,000 -

Current portioi: of post-retirement

benefits obl :mlion (note 330)0)) 13,922 15,550 13,610 12,815

Provision for s..iff housing allawance (note 34} 80,179 80,179 - 78,198 78,198

Accrued salarii::;, wages and benefits 76,592 50,233 65,743 35,744

Other 306,453 296,933 223,460 228,340

1,918,154 1,665,861 1,640,185 1,262,098

24. Accrued /.ircraft Overhaul Expenses

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000

Total accrued - ircraft overhaul expenses 489,019 338,407 358,740 252,850
Less: current 4: srtion (note 23) " (266,916) (114,102) |256,337) {114.102)

Long-term po ion 193,003 224,305 102,403 138,748
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25. Lease Ol:ligations and Sublease Arrangements

(a) Finan:e leases

As at 31 Dec:mber 2001, the Group and the Company had 24 aircraft {2000: 24 aircraft) under finance leases. Under the terms
of the lease', the Group and the Company has the option to purchase, at or ncar the end of the lease term, certain aircraft at
fair market 2alue and others at either fair market value or a percentage of the respective lessor’s defined cost of the aircraft

The future . nimum lease payments, interest and present value of minimum lease payments which are principally denominated
in foreign ci: rencies, under these finance leases as at 31 Decembicr 2001 were as follows:~

Group and Company

2001 2000

Present Present

value of valuc of

Minimum miaimum Minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments Interest payments

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Within one ,2ar 2,522,578 536,906 1,935,672 1,812,500 694,917 1,117,583

In the secor. | year 2,710,134 479,504 2,230,630 2,637,580 601,157 2,036,429

in the third o fifth year inclusive 3,200,792 709,564 3,091,22B 5,106,511 1028174 4,078,337

After the fil \year 2,775,438 161,617 2,613,821 4419,270 343437 4,075,833

Total 11,808,542 1,937,591 9,871,351 13,975,861 2,667,679 11,308,182
Less: amou trepayable

within o112 year {2,522,578) (586,906} (1,935,672) (1,812,500) (694,917)  (1,117,583)

Long-term "ortion 9,286,364 1,350,685 7,935,679 12,163,361 1972762 10,190,599

As at 31 Deember 2001, the Group and the Company had U.5. Treasury zero coupon bonds and long-term bank deposits
totalling R+181,756,727,000 (2000: RMB1,908,736,000) pledged as securities under certain finance lease arrangements
(see notc " 8). All of these bank deposits and the U.S. Treasury zero coupon bonds totalling RMB1.756,727,000
{2000: RME " ,827,469,000) will be uscd to meet future lease obligations as they fall due. The U.S. Treasury z¢ro coupon bonds
will maturi in Februsry 2004.

In additior . the Group's finance tease obligations are sccured by the related aircraft, the relevant insurance policies ang bank

guarantee:
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25. Lease Ok igations and Sublease Arrangements (Cont’d)

(b) Sublec.ies

The.Group and the Company sublease two (2000: three) of the leased aircraft to ather third parties. Both of them are under
operating le; & (2000: two under operating lease and one under finance lease). -,

- In respect o ‘hese operating subleases, one is effective from April 1994 to july 2002 with rental incame of US$504,000 per
month recer able semisannually in arrears and the other is effective from May 1994 to August 2002 with rental income of
US$514,000 | 2r month receivable semi-anaually in arrears. The &::ﬁ}e minimum rental$ receivable under these non-anceliable
operating su. leases as at 31 December 2001 were a5 follows:—

Group and Company

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within one -1¢ 101,173 101,191
in the secon. year - 101,181
Total minimum future rentals receivatle 101,173 202,382

The cosl an¢ @mrying amount of these two aircraft induded in note 14 as a! 31 December 2001 were 3s follows:—

Group and Company

2001 2000

RMB'000 RMB'000

Valuation . 386,238 386,238
Less: accum: ilated depredation (329,500) (269,590)
Carrying air vunts » 56,738 116,648

All sublease: will be autornatically terminated when the leases with the original iessor are terminated. Total future minimum
lease rental. payable under the corresponding non-cancedlable head leases as at 31 December 2001 totalled RMB237,031,000
{2000: RMB - 38,325,000).

Q7




. Notes to the Fin:ncial Statements

(Prepared in accordan ¢ with tnteriiational Accounting Stenidards) -
Year ended 31 Decew rer 2007

26. Long-terr: Bank Loans

Groug and Company
2001 2000
RME’000 RMB'000
Bank loans
— secured 2,850,567 2,704,195
— unsecure: v 2,450,000 2,100,000
Total : 5,300,567 4.804,195
Less: amaunt 1 epayable within one year - 361,236) {a22,788)
Long-term po. tion . 4,939,331 4,381,407
Total bank lonns is repayable as follows;—
Within one y¢i.r . 361,236 422,788
in the second sear $55,719 443,988
In the third b fifth year inclusive 2,517,957 2,047,519
After the fifth sear ’ 1,865,655 1,889,900
Total 5,300,567 4,804,195
The terms of ang-term bank loans can be summarised as follows:-
Group and Company
2001 2000
interest rates and final maturities RMB'000 RMB'600
Renminbi deitominated bank loans:
Loans for ¢: nstruction projects Fixed interest rate of 6.21% per snaum
as at 31 December 2001; 7 to 13-year
loans with final maturities through
t0 2012 2,000,000 1,700,000
Loans for? e purchases of aircraft  Fixed interest rate of 5.61% per annum
as at 31 December 2001; 3-year loan
with final maturity in 2003 450,000 400.000
2,450,000 2,100,000
US. dollar d;nominated bank loans:
Loans for 1 e purchases of aircraft  Fixed interesl rates ranging from 6.13%
to 8.45% per annum as at 31 December
2007; 10 to 12.year loans with finai
maturities through to 2008 2,850,567 2,704,195
Total lang-le 1 bank loans 5,300,567 4,804,195

Bankloans1 talling RMB2,850,567,000 at 31 December 2001 (2000: RMB2.704,195 000) of the Group and the Company for the
purchases o aircraft were secured by the related aiferaft {see note 14(b)).

\\]
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26. Long-teri: Bank Loans (Cont’d)

Bank loans w:re guaranteed by the following parties:-

Group and Company
2000 2000
RMB'000 RMB000
Renminbi de iominated bank loans guaranteed by EA Group,
the ultima : holding company . 2,450,000 2,100,000
u.S. dollar dmonﬁnated bank loans guarantecd by third parties: ‘ :
Export-imj rt Bank of the United States 1,715,004 2,379,097
China Indt rial and Commercial Bank 166,393 199,287
China Con ruction Bank . 113,480 125,811
4444877 4804195

27. Short-ter n Bank Loans

Short-term b: nk loans of the Group and the Company are repayable within ¢ne year with inlerest charged at the prevailing
market rates »ased on the rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China. The interest rates related to such loans were between
4,58 % and 5.2 % per annum (2000: 5.02% and 6.16% per annum). During the year ended 31 December 2001, the weighted
average inte :5t rate on short-term bank loans was 4.91% per anaum (2000: 5.69% per annum).

28. Share Czital

2001 2000

RMB’000 RMB'000

Registered, ii:ued and fully paid of RMB1.00 ¢ach A shares '
Statesown: d shares held by EA Group 3,000,000 3,000,000
Shares he. | by public 300,000 300,000
3,300,000 3,300,000

Overseas list: d foreign H shares 1,566,950 1,566,950
4,866,950 4,866,950

Pursuant to rticles 49 and 50 ot the Company's Articles of Association, the A shares held by EA Group, employees and the
public and ' :e H shares are al! registered ordinary shares, carrying equal rights.
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29, Reserves

Groop ,

At 1 [aavary 1901

Oividends (v e 11}

Consolidaied rofit atiributable

to sharehol(irs

Unreafised g m on foreign
currency f: ward contracls

Transfer fron: retained profits
to reservel mote (d})

At 31 Decem er 2001

Company

AL 1 January 001

Dividends (¢ 11}

Profit attribi - able lo
sharehold : 3

Unrealised ¢ 12 on foreign
carrency {1 rward contracts

At 31 Decen: er 2001

Statetory

commoen

Share reserve fund
premium  (note (a])
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,006,455 94,432
- 1,681
1,006,455 96,113
1006455 77,214
1,008,458 77214

Statrtory Distretionary
ommon  common
welfare fund  welfare fund
(nate b} (nole (g}
RMB'D0C  RMB'000
84432 27,908
1,681 -
96,113 27,908
4 27908
77,24 27,508

Revaluation
reserve
RMB'000

42,881

42,881

Hedging
resgive
{note 39(e)
RME'000

5.3%

53%

5,396
5,39

Relained
preflts
RMB'000

1098847
(97,339)

541,713

3,362
1,539,859

1,153,491
(97,339}

470,428

1,526,580

Towal
RMB'000

23202,674
(97.339)

541,713

539%

77,844

2,385,163

(97,339)

470,428

5,3%
2,763,648
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29. Reserves Cont'd)

Statutory Stalutory Discretionary
CoRtmon conmos commot
Share reservefond welfarefund welfae nd  Revaloation  Retalned
premium  (notefa]  (motefb)}  jote(d) Reserve ' profis Total
RMB'O00  RME'OOD  RME'000  RMB'00D  RMB'000  RMB'000  RME'0DD

Group . .
A1 January 2. 00 1,006,455 83,39 83.3% 279508 - 5,402 2,146,545
Consolidated rofit antributable ,
to sharehol - ers - - - - - 175,529 175,528
Transter from etained profits ’
to reserves 10te (d)) - 1,042 1,042 - - (22.084) -
AL 31 Oecemt : r 2000 1.006:455 94432 94,432 27908 - 1088847 232014
Company
AL1 [anuary ; 100 T 1006455 T4 I 27,908 42881 1053981 228565
Profit attribw: ble to L .
sharehglde 3 . - - - - BS990
~ At31 Deceml 2000 ‘ 1,006,455 77214 77214 27,508 42,881 1,153 491 2,385,163
(3) Pursuan: to PRC regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of its
profit at. ibutable to sharehoiders, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to statutory common reserve
fund un: ) the fund aggregates to 50% of the Company's registered capita). The transfer to this reserve musl be made
before ¢istribution of a dividend to sharehoiders.
Statutors commaon reserve fund can be used 10 make good previous years' losses, if any, and to issue new shares to
sharehc!ders in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to intrease the par value of the shares currently held by
them, p:avided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital.
(b) Pursuar to PRC regulations and the Company's Artides of Association, the Company is required to transfer 5% Lo 10% af

its profi. attributable to shareholders, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory common
welfare ‘und. This fund can only be used to provide staff welfare facilities and other collective benefits to the Company's
employ 25 This fund is non-distributable qthcr than in liquidation.

90
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29. Reserves (Cont’d)

{0 TheCor panyis allowed 10 transfer 5% of the profit 2itributable to shareholders as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulat ns, to discretianary common reserve. The transfer to this reserve is subject to the approval by shareholders at
meeting, .

{(d} Pursuar ' to PRC regulations and the Company's Articles of Association, the Company is required to make appropniation
from it profit attributable to shareholders, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to certain statutory
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2001, uinder the PRC Accounting Regulations, the Company recorded a profit
atlribu 1ble to shareholders which had been applied to make goad previous years' lasses. Accordingly, no profit
approp- ation has been made for the year ended 31 December 2001, A%ubsidiary of the Group recorded a profit atributable
to shar holders in accordance with the PRC Accounting Regulations for the year ended 31 December 2001 and the
subsidii s directors have resolved to transfer 10% of the profit attributable to shargholders to statutory common reserve
and sta Jtory common welfare fund respectively.

30. Defefrec‘ Taxation

(@) Asat3? Jecember 2007, the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) were made up of taxation éffects af the followings:—

200 » 2000
_ - Current  Nom-curtent Total Current  Non-curent Total *
Group RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBOO0 = RMBD00 RMB'000 RMEB000
Delerred tax & ' sets=
Tax losses ¢ : rried forward - 141,348 141,348 - 205,574 205,574
Provision fi  obsolete flight equipment
and spat: parts - 32,008 32,008 - £9,929 69,929
Repair cast «n flight equipment - 168,877 168,877 - 338,168 338,168
Provision & - post-retirement benefits 2,088 77,870 79,958 7.079 167,893 174 972
Prowision & - staff housing benefits 12,334 - 12,384 26459 126,120 152,579
Other accrt +d expenses 93,056 - 93,056 143,949 - 143,949
107,528 420,103 527,631 177 487 907,684 1,085,171
Less: valuz on allowance - (38,256) (38,256) - {190,093) (190.093)
107,528 391,847 489,375 177487 7/ 895,078
Deferred tax | 1biities:~ o
Provision b .- gverhaul - {113,161} {113,161) - (234.399) (234 395)
Depreciali 1and amortisation - {653,538) (653,538) - [1,985,888)  (1.,185888)
Others R (13,720 {13,720) - (33.593) (33,393)
- [780,419)  (780,419) - (1453876) (1453876
Deferred 1ax isets/{liabililies), net © 07,528 (98572)  [291,044) 177487 (736289  (558.798)

-
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30. Deferred Taxation {(Cont'd)

(@) Asat31 ecember 2001, the deferred tax assets/(labilities) were made up of taxation effects of the followings (Cont'd).-

2001 T 2000
Curremt  Non-carrent Totd Cumrent Nou:ureru Tolal
Company RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Deferred tax a. &t5:=

Tax losses ¢ Tied forward - g7y o703 - 170466 170466
Provision fa- obsolete fight equipment i

and span- parts - s mam o - M 74,483

Repair cost * n ftight equipment - 170,980 170,960 - 340N 402N

Provision ¢’ post-retirement benefits 2,088 55,460 57,548 7079 164.066 171,145

Provision fq: staff housing benefits 11,730 - 11,730 258035 101,970 12277

Other acou. d expenses 73,291 - 7329 109,923 - 100923

. 87,109 383,276 470,385 142,807 851,266 994,073
tess: valual n allowance - - - - (oigm)  (101970)

T g8 33276 470385 142807 7492% 892103
Deferred tax ). bilities:~

Provision I overhaul . ~  {100485)  (100,485) - {234395)  [234.395)
Depreciatic ;1 and amonisation , - {651,046) (651,046} -~ (1,1858868)  (1,185,888)
Others - {13.720) (13,720) - (33,593) (33.593)

- {785,251}  {765251) - (1453976) [1.453,879)

Deferred tax i sets/{iabilities), net 87,909 (381,975)  [204,866) 142807  (704580)  (561.773)
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30. Deferred “axation (Cont’d)

31

fb) Movemer in net deferred taxation liability is 2s follows:—

At 1 January
Deferred tax { -ote %a))

—current yi:ar

- adjustme t for change in enacted tax rate
At 31 Decemb: ¢

Group

200
RMB'000

558,798

| 38,668

{306,422}
291,044

2060
RMB'000
482,069

76,729

$58,798

Company
2007 2000
RMB'000 KMB000
561,773 484 275
39,515 77,498
(306,422} -
294,866 561,773

As at 31 Des:mber 2001, two subsidiaries had net operating losses carried forward totalling RMB115,927,000
(2000. RMB1°'7,448,000) available to setoff against future laxable income, with approximatety RMB19,406,000
(2000: RMB* 3,691,000) expiring between 2002 and 2005. The available tax losses totalling RMB115,927,000
(2000: RMB17",448,000) can only be used.by the same subsidiary companies. As at 31 December 2001, the Group had provided
valuatian all~ance of msw,zss,ooo"(zooo: RMB190,093,000) against the related deferred tax assets arising from the
subsidiary’s & : fosses which were not expected 10 be realised in the foreseeable future. '

Long-tert) payable

Purchase con.deration on acquisition of a passenger carriage busingss (note 12(a))

Less: Interest : fement
Net present v: lue at titne of acguisition
Less: first ins!: Iment paid in june 2001

Interest accne:d during the period (note 5)
Nel presenty: lue as at 31 December 2001
Less: Cyrrent jortion (note 23)

Long-term pu lion

2001
RMB'000

270,000
(55,245)
214,755
(30,000)
184,755
6,693
191,448
(30,000)
161,448
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Minority |nterests

Group
2001 2000
RME'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 223,881 - 176,739
Share of profiIs of subsidiarics 33,324 29,242
Capital inject n from a3 minority shareholder , |- 17,900
At 31 Decemnli2r . ) 257,205 223881

Retirement Benefit Plans and Post-Reti remeht Benefits

{a) Define:! contribution retirement schemes

{iy Pension
Substar ially all of the Group’s employees are eligible to parlicipate in the Group's retirement schemes. The Group
particip; tes in defined contribution retirement schemes organised by the municipal govemments of the various provinces
in whic the Graup bperates. The Group is required 1o make annual contributions to the schemes at a rate of 13% of
salary ¢ . sts including certain a{lmhces calculated in the prior year, Employees contribute approximately 6% of their
basic si ary. The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retircment benefits beyond the annual
contributions under these schemes. For the year ended 31 December 2001, the Groug’s pension cost charged to the profit
and los, account amounted to RMB28,471,000 (2000: RMB25.232,000), - |

{i) Medical nsurance
In 1998 the State Councit announced that each municipal government should introduce a medical insurance scheme for
employ: es and retirees of all enterprises, of which the detailed poficies and regulations were to be set out by individual
munici-al govemment.

In the ¢ 1d of 2000, the Shanghai Municipal Govemment promulgated the detailed policies and regulations of its medical
insurac e scheme. In January 2001, the Group joined this scheme under which the Group and its employees contribute
approx nately 123% and 2% of the employees basic salarics to the scheme respectively. The Group has no other obligation
for the * ayment of medical expense bueyond the annual contributions. For the year ended 31 December 2001, the Group's
medic  insurance contribution charged to the profit and |oss account amounted to approximately RMB18,000.000,

i
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33. Retirem:.nt Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits (Cont’d)

(b} Post-n:tirement benefits

in addition b the above retirement schemes, the Group provides retirees with post-retirement benefits including transportation
subsidies, s¢: i) function activities subsidies as well as other welfare. The expected cost of providing these posi-retirement
benefits is a'luarially determined and recognised by using the projected unit ¢redit method, which involves a number of
assumption: and estimates including the rate of inflation, discount rate, employees’ tumover ratio as well as mortality rate.
The transiti: @t obligation arising from the first adoption of IAS 19 (Revised) “Employee Benefits™ in 1997 has been recognised
on 3 straigh!-line basis over a period of five years. : v

in prior yeat-, these post retirement benefils aiso included medical benefits. Following the joining of the municipal medical
insurance s¢ eme as set out in note 33{a)(i1) above, the Group is no longer required o accrue for medical benefits based on
actuarial est nation, As a result of the curtailment of medical benehits, the post-retirement benefit obligation attributable lo
medical ben: fits brought forward from 31 December 2000 amounting to RMB95,975,000 has been written badk to the profit
and loss aco1unt and netted off against wages, salanes and benefits for the year ended 31 December 2001.

in addition, I he transitional ol;iigatiof) recognised in the year ended 37 December 2001, representing one-fifth of the total
transitional : bligation arising from the first adoption of 1AS 19 (Revised), has been reduced as a resull of the exclusion of the
partion atirl.wtable ta the media) benefits. The total transitional obligation has been fully recognised as at 31 December
2001. ’

() Asat 31 December 2001, the post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheets of the Group and the
Compaiiy were as follows:—

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
" Presen value of unfunded post-retirement

bent it obligations . 534,514 613.820 462,434 550,347
Oeferre 1 transitional obligation - {61.656) - {61.656)
- 534,514 552,164 462,434 488,691
Payme ‘ts made in the year (13,451) (14,079) {12,966) (11,339
Post-r¢ rement benefit obligations 521,063 538.085 449,468 477357
Less: Q0 ‘rent portion (note 23) ‘ (13,922 {15,550) {(13,610) (12.515)

Post-re rement bencfit obligaiions - |
long - ierm portion . 507,141 522,535 435,858 464,842

U
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33. Retireme:nt Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits (Cont’d)

(b} Post-ri'tirement benefits (Cont’d)

(il Change: in post-retirement benefit obligations are as follows:-

Group

2001

RMB"000
At 1 Jar nasy .538,085
Curtailr ent of medical benefit (note 4) - 195,975)
Curren! ervice cost 18,445 )
Interesi on obligation 31,129
Transit nal obligation recognised in Ihe year 42,830
Payrneiits made in the year {13,451)
Transfe: to subsidiaries -
At 31 D: cember - 521,063

2000
RMB'000

428,026
33,060
29,422
61.656

{14,079}

538,085

.

Company

2001 2000
RM8°000 RMBO0D
477,357 428,026
(82,485) -
15,852 33,060
26,754 29,422
42,830 61,656
{12,9686) (11,334)
{17,874) (63.473)
448,468 71,357

(iti) The cot's of post-retirement benefils for the current year were recagnised under wages, salaries and benefits in the

consoli: lated profit and foss account as follows:—

Curren. service <ost

interer on obligation

Transit; anal obligation recognised in the year
Total (ote 4)

Group
2001

RMB'000

18,445
31,128
42,830
92,404

2000
RMB'000

33,060
29422
61,656
124,138
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33.

34.

Retireme:t Benefit Plans and Post-Retirement Benefits (Cont'd)

{b) Post-re:irement benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) The traniitional obligation is fully recognised in the curent year, representing anefifth of the total transitional obligation
arising fr-m the first adoption of 1AS 19 (Revised), which reduced from RMB61,656,000 to RMB42,830,000 as a result of the
exclusior of the portion attributable to medical benefit.

(v} Principal 1ctuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:—

2001 2000

Discoun! rate 7.00% 8.20%
Annuai 1: te of increase of per capita benefit payment ' 3.50% 3.50%
Employe: s turnover rate 1.80% 3.50%

Staff Housing Benefits

The Group coi. tructed staff quarters in wious years. Most of these staff quarters have been disposed of to qualifted employecs
at substantial Jiscounts'in the year ended 31 December 2001. Provision representing the foreseeable loss on the disposal had
already been . rovided in previous years énd there was no substantial over of under provision. As at 31 December 2001, the
construction .35t and correspending provision on the unallocated quarters included in the Group's consolidated balance

" sheetamount -1 to approximately RMB84 million (2000: RMB357 million) and RMB73 million (2000: RMB283 million) respectively.

In 1998 and . 200, the State Council of the PRC issued circulars stipulating that distribution of quarters to employees at
discounted mizes should be withdrawn and ¢ash allowance should be made to employees thereafter. Eligible staff who have
not been allor . ited with any quanters or who have nat been allocated with a quarter up to the minimum area as set out by the
government : 1e entitled t an one-off cash allowante. However, the specifi timetable and procedures of implementation of
these policies.ire to be determined by individual provingial or municipal government based on the particular situation of the
province o m:inicipality. Certain provingal governments have already set out the implementation procedures while Shanghai
Municipal Gerernment is yet to announce such details. With reference to palicies already set out by certain provinaial
governments, he Company's directors estimated a provision of approximately RMB80,179,000 in the previous year which was
included in 0 1er payable in the Group's consolidated balance sheel as at 31 December 2001,

=~



Notes to the Financial Statements

- {Prepared in accordnnce with Internations! Accovnting Standsrds)
Year ended 31 Drcember 2001

35. Notes to :he Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

fa) Analys's of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

200 2000
‘ RMB'D00' RMB'D00
Cash and bar : balances 1,099,630 1.284,373
Deposits with an associated company 281,362 188.302
Less: shori-le m deposits with original matunties over three months ‘ {50,012) {49,784)
- 1,330,980 1422691
{b) Acquis:tion of passenger carriage business
2001
RME'000
Net assets ac: uired
Land use 1. 3hts . 56,024
Frxed asse. . : ) 257,115
Constructi.n in progras; e . 6,420
Cash and I»ank balances . ' 54,008
Other net . urvent liabilities ‘ (103,567}
270,000
Negative goc Iwill (note 12(a)) . o ' {55,245)
214,755
Satishied by>
Cash 30,000
instalmer i payable (note 31} : ) 184,755
214,755
Analysis of 72 net cash inflow in respect of the acquisition of a passenger carriage business
2001
RMB'000
Cash and ba' k balances acquired 54,008
First instain :nt paid {20,000)

Net cash int sw in respect of the acquisition of a passenger carriage business 24,008



Notes to the Finincial Statements

iPrepared in accordar ¢ with Interaational Accounting Standards)
Yeor ended 37 Decen d2r 2001

35.

Notes to 'he Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)

{¢) Supple:1entary information

Interest recer - :d, net of amortisation of bond discount
interest paid| 1et of amount capitalised
income tax bn‘d

Investing acti. ities not affecting cash:
Discounts 11n aircralt acquisition used for purchases of fight
equipm-nt and spare parts

Finandng actiilies not affecting cash:
Finance ler:e obligations inctirred -
Dividend ¢.yable to ultimate holding company set off against loan
to ultifn:te helding company

2001
RMB'000
87,064

936,751

9,893

8,872

60,050

2000
RMB000

132,163
981,227
26919

110,789

1,202,051
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepnred in accordance with Internguional Accounting Siandards)
Year ended 31 December 2001

36. Commitm2nts and Contingent Liabilities

{a) Capital -ommitments

As at 31 Decer-ber 2001, the Group and the Company had the foliowing capital commitments:—

.

Group Company
2001 - 2000 2001 2000
_ RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Authorised an: contracted for: ) _
- Aircraft ai 1 related equipment 9,186,803 10092671 9,186,803 10,092,671
~ Qther 437,820 423857 87,820 398,097

9,624,623 10,516,528 9,274,623 10,430,768

Authorised bu. not contracted for:
~Qther 980,289 1,057,620 1,348,071 1,380,120
10,604,912 11,574,148 10,622,694 11,870,888

The above co: mitments mainly include amounts for acquisition of ten B737? and five A-340 aircralt {2000: three A-320 and
five A-340 aireiatt) for delivery between 2002 and 2004 (2000: 2001 and 2004).

Committed e. yenditures for the above aircraft and related equipment, including deposits priar to delivery, subject to an
inflation incre ise built in the contracts and any discounts avaitabie upon delivery of the aircraft, were expected to be paid as

follows:—
Group and Company
2001
RMB'000
2002 2,199,010
2003 4,927,582

2004 ' 2,060,211
' 9,186,803




Notes to the Fir ancial Statements

iPrepored in accordar ¢ with international Acrounting Standards)
Yeor ended 31 Deceniber 2001

36, Commitr:ents and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(b) Operai.ng lease commitments
As at 31 Dece- 1ber 2001, the Group and the Company had commitments under operating leases to pay future minimum lease

rentals as folisws:—

. 2001 2000
Alreraft and Aircraft and
» flight  Land and fiight . Land and
equipment buildings equipment buildings
RMB'OGO - - ) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Group
within one y*3¢ 1,013,629 40,462 916,043 - 65,845
In the secon¢ year 1,373,539 16,756 1,039,057 10.654
inthe third t fifth year inclusive 3,430,504 30,638 ‘ 3.717.879 22571
After the fiftt year 4,890,768 14,090 5976513 19,050
10,708,440 101,946 11,649,492 118,120
Company , v
Within one y:ar ' - 819,957 38,206 545,726 64,159
In the secont. year . 1,178,866 16,171 606,649 10,422
In the third 1: fifth year inclusive - ' 2,849,487 30,339 2316117 22320
After the fifth year 4,032,137 14,090 3,570,624 19,050
8,880,447 98,206 7.039,116 115,851

{c) Investent in GE Engine Services (Xiamen) Co., Lid.

In May 2001 the Group entered into an agreement with General Electric ("GE”), an unrelated third party, to obtain a 30%
interest in GI. Engine Services {Xiamen) Co., Ltd. {*GE Xiamen") at a consideration of US$3.6 miilion. The Group is not required
ta settle the' “ansideration immediately and the ownership of the 30% interest in GE Xiamen is conditional upon the Group's
fulfilment of 1 commitment to deliver to GE Xiamen annually a specified pcreentage of its GFM 56 engines for repair services
for a period »i 10 years, The Group will be entitied to dividends from GE Xiamen and the dividends received will be used to set
oft against tl » consideration payablc to GE if this commitment is fulfilled.
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37.

Notes to the Financial Statements

- (Prepared in accordonce with international Accounting Standards)
Yeor ended 31 December 2007

Commitr-ents and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

{d) Contin:ent liabilities
As at 31 Dect 'nber 2001, the Group provided 2 guarantee to a bank in respect of bank fagities granted 1o Nanjing Lu Kou
International Airport Company, 3 third party, amounting to RM8150,000,000 (2000: RMB150,000,000).’ 3

Segment:l Reporting
(a) Busine:s segments

The Graup o *rates in one business segment which is the common tarriage of passengers, cargo and mail over various routes.

{b) Geogr:phical segments
The Group's* irnaver and operating prolit/{loss) by geographical segments are analysed as fallows—

For the year ended 31 December

Other

Domestic Hong Kong Japan countries* Total

RME'000 RMB°000 RMEB'000 RMB'000 RME'000 -
2001 . : _ '
Traffic reve ues " 4,987,486 2,145,732 1,574,971 2,970,421 11,678,610
Other oper: ing revenues 447,636 - 9,204 17,358 474,198
Turnover 5,435,122 2,145,732 1,584,175 2,987,779 12,152,808
Operating p ofit/{loss) 75,355 484,817 367,602 (53,103} 874,67
2000
Traffic revennes 4,184.310 2,104,908 1,586,071 2893199 10,768,488
Qther operd- ng revenues 451,575 - - ] ~ 451,575
Turnover 4635085 2,104,908 1,586,071 2.893,199 11,220,063

Operaling p- Jfit/{ioss) 88,237 485,001 277.732 {72,718) 778,252
*  includ: UK. Europe and other Asian Gountries
The major » venue-earning assets of the Group are its aircrafl flget, al) of which are registered in the PRC Since the Group’s

aircraft flee s deployed flexibly across its route network, there ts no suitable basis of aliocating such assets and the refated
liabilities t¢ jeographical segments,
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Notes to the Fiiancial Statements

(Prepared in accorde 1ce with International Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 Deci.nber 2007

38. Related *arty Transactions

In the norm- | course of business, the Group had the following material transactions with Its related parties during the year

ended 31 D+ :ember 2001:~

Nature of t insaction
(3) With C!ACand its affiliates -—
Cornm:: sion income on carriage service provided by
oth v airfines with air tickets sold by the Group at fixed
rat'; ranging from 3% to 9% of value of tickets sold

Take-o and landing fees charged at predetermined
scal of rates published by CAAC

Purchs-¢ of aircraft fuel at state controlled prices
Commy:sion expenses on air tickets sold on behalf of the
Gro » at rates ranging from 3% to Y% of value of tickets sold

Ticket iservation service charges for utilisation of computer

rese- ation system

Givil av: ation infrastructure Jevies collected on behalf of CAAC
and- atculated at the rates of 5% and 2% of Lhe Group's
anni.al gross domestic and international traffic revenues
resp. Cively

Aircral insurance premium paid through CAAC who entered
into : he insurance palicy on behalf of the Group

Acquis 'on of 2 passenger camiage business

Related party

PRC airlines

PRC atrports

Civil Aviatian Oil
Supply Company

- CAAC
— PRC airlines

CAAC

China Civil Aviation
Flight College

Revenue/
{Expenses, payments or
purchase consideration)

2001 2000
RMB'000 RMB'000
9,915 17.495
(936,554) (791,087)
(1,739,114)  (1,458378)
(50,229) " (95,343)
(1,758} (9.646)
{55.800) {55.800)
(370,284} (374,196)
(82,932) (57,939)
(214,755) -




Notes to the Financial Statements

- \Prepared in accordonce with imernational Accounting Standards)
Year endzd 31 December 2001

38. Related |*arty Transactions (Cont'd)

Revenue/
(Expenses, payments or
purchase considenation)
2007 2000
Nature of tr: nsaction Relaied party RMB'000 RMB'000
{b) With E/. Group or companies directly or indirectly held

by EA € oupi= ’

Interes! ncome on loans and deposits 3l rates of o - EAGF 2,290 2,724
0.991. per annum (2000: ranging from 1.04% to © —EAGroup - 3242
6.21!i per annum) ’

Commis;ion expenses on air tickets sold on behalf of — Shanghai Tourism {10,105) (7.494)
the ¢ ‘oup at rates ranging fror 3% to 9% of value Company {(Hong
of tii :ets sold ‘ ' _ Kong) Limited

- various subsidiaries (49,286) (62,259)
of EA Group :

Interes. expenses on loans at rates ranging from 4.185% EAGF (1.,268) © (6,154)
to 4 : 5% per annum (2000: 5.30% to 5.58% per annum}

Purcha: e of aircraft, flight equipment, flight equipment EAIEC 1,137,471)  (1,157483)
spar. parts and other fixed assets, and repair of aircraft
incli:sive of handling charges of 0.1% Lo 2%

Repair: and maintenance expenses payable for ground Shanghai Eastern (24.362) (26,258)
serv e facililies Air Industrial

Corporation
(SEAIC)
Sourci of food and beverages — Eastern Air (Santou) (52,821) (71,350
Economic
Development
Co. Ltd.
— SEAC (101,160} (96,57%)
—SEAIC (10,688} (7,405)
— Qilu Eastern Air (5.426) (a,982)
Catering Co. Ltd.
— Qingdao Air {10,926) (7,341}

Sepvice Co. Lid.




Notes to the Fin: ncial Statements

(Prepared in occordan 2 with Internationol Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decen vier 2601

38. Related F.arty Transactions (Cont’d)

Revenue/
({Expenses, payments or
punchase consideration}
2001 2000
Nature of tra. saction Related party RMB'000 RMB'000
(b) With EA !iroup or companies directly or Indirectly held '
by EA Gi:up (Cont'd):—
Advertisi g expenscs - - Eastem Aviation (6,985) (16.762)
"Advertising Service
Company
Purchast of aviation equipment Shanghai Eastern {6,434} (21,010
Aviation Equipment
Manufacturing
Corporation
Inflight | - giene and cleaning service expenses : Shanghai Eastern (15,318) {14,392)
o : General Corporation
Printing -<penses ’ Shanghai Aviation (3,799) (6,062)
Printing Co., Ltd,
Rental & penses . . - Shanghai ' {4,461) * (5,194)
Eastern Aviation
Equipment
Manufacturing
Corporation
— Shanghai Eastern (5,794) {3,033)
Real Estate
Operation
Co. tid.
Investmi 1:t in an associated company, being capital EA Group {(106,364) -

injectiv 1 into EAGF (a company jointly owncd by
EA Gro p and its subsidiaries), resulting in 25% interest in
theen rged capital of EAGF.

The directors “:f the Company are af the opinion that the above transactions were entered into in the normal course of
business and « 1 normal commercial terms or in accordance with the agreements governing such lransactions. This has been
«confirmed by ne non-executive directors.

As at 31 Dece: iber 2001, the Group had balances with related companics, details of which are disclosed in note 20. in addition,
guarantees 2 : given by EA Group in respect of the Group's long-term bank laans (sec note 26).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in nccordance with interngtional Accounting Stundards)
Year ended 31 December 2001

Financial 1ssets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assel: of the Group mainly include short term deposits and bank balances, deposits with and amounts due from
related comps vies, trade receivables, long term loans to ultimate holding company, long term receivables and deposits.
financial liabi. ties of the Group include bank and ather loans, obligations under finance leases, amounts due to related
companies, tri fe payables and other payables. Accounting palicies for financial assets and financial liabilities are set out in
note 2(u). The (roup does not hold or issue finandial instruments for trading purposes.

{a) Busines: risk _

The Group con {ucts its principal operations in the PRC and accordingly is subject to special consideration and significant risks
not typically a:50dated with companies in the United States of Ameriga and Western Europe. These include risks associated
with, among -:thers, the political, economic and legal environment, influence of CAAC over many aspects of the Group's
operations, 21 | compelition, in the passenger, cargo and mai) airlines services industry. The influence of CAAC indudes the
pricing on air ckets, determination of civil aviation infrastructure levy rates for both international and domestic routes, take-
off and {andin: charges of certain PRC airports, comeission rates and the adjustment on fuel prices for the domestic segment.

(b} Price ri:k

The Group's n-wuits of operations may be significantly affected by the fluctuation of the fuel prices which is a major expense

category. Whi': the international fuel prices are determined by warldwide market demand and supply, demestic fuel prices
are regulated 1y CAAC. The Group does not undertake financial instruments to hedge fuel price risk.

{¢) Interes: rate risk _
The interest r- tes and terms of repayment of I6ans made to and by the Group are disclosed in notes 20, 25, 26 and 27.

(d) Credit -isk

{iy Cash ant Bank balances
Substar ally all the Group’s cash and bank balances are placed with a number of international and PRC banks and an
associat:d company, EAGF. Details of deposits placed with EAGF have been disclosed in note 20(b).

(i) Trade re.eivables
These ai :: mainly tickets sales receivabie from sales agents and receivabies related o uplifts by the Company on behalf of
other @: ricrs which are spread among numerous third parties.

{ii) Other ré: eivables
These a-: spread among numerous third parties.

{iv) Amount- due from the related companies
These t . lances are disclosed in note 20(a).

{v) Receiva e due under subleases _
The Gr 1p subleases certain aircraft, details of which are disciased in note 25(b).

The carryiny, amounts of finandial assets best represent their maximum credit risk exposure 2t the balance sheet date.

—_
i
AN

{
(7




Notes to the Financial Statements

[Prepared in accordonct with International Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decemt: v 2007

39. Financial »ssets and Financial Liabilities (Cont'd)

(e} Foreign urrency risk

The Group's Iini:1ce lease obligation as well as certain bank and other loans are denominated in US dollars, Japanese yen and
Deutsche mark which has been replated by Furo), and certain expenses of the Group are denominaled in currencies other
than Renminbi The Group generates foreign currency revenues from ticket sales made in overscas offices and would normally
generate suffict 1t foreign currendies after payment of foreign currency expenses, to meet its foreign curi'ency liabilities repayable
within one yea' However, the Group is unable 1o hedge its foreign currency liability exposure fully other than by rclaining
those foreign-ci rency eamnings and receipts to the extent permitted by the State Administration of €xchange Control. Renminbi
against US doll 115 had been comparatively stable in the past. However, Renmmba 2gainst japanese Yen and Deutsche mark
had experience ! a significant level of fluctuation aver the past two vears, particularly the Japanese yen, which is the major
reason for the 1iznificant exchange gains recognised by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2000.

Certain of the ¢/ oug’s finance lease obligations, induding those determined in fapanese Yen, will be fully settled in the next
three years. Thi* Group anticipates that more foreign currencies generated from ticket sales will remain in the Group, which
will be subject .3 foreign currency fluctuation after the full settfement of these finance lease obligations from 2004 onwards.
Accordmgly, th: Group has entered into cerram foreign currency forward contracts with PRC banks. As at 31 December 2001,
the fullowmgfc eign currency forward contracts are outstanding:-

Selling of Selling of

Japaneseyen - Korean won
{or US dotlars for US dollar Total
Us5'000 Us$'000 uss o0

Contracts expir ngin:

2002 - 10,000 10,000
2003 . - - -
2004 12,000 - 12,600
2005 12,000 - 12,000
2006 . 12,000 - 12,000
Tetal 36,000 10,000 46,000

These {oreign « urrency forward contracts qualify tor hedging accounting and is accounted for as cash flow hedges. As at 31
December 200 the cumulative gain of these foreign currency farwards amounting to RMBS,396,000 was recognised into the
Group’s hedgin- reserve in shareholders’ equity (see note 29).
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40.

Notes to the Financial Statements

{Prepared in actordance with [nternational Accounting Standerds)
Year ended 31 December 2001

Financial. \ssets and Fipancial Liabilities {Cont'd)

() Fair Vaie
The carrying : nounts and estimated fair value of the Group’s long term bank loans at 31 December 2007 are set out as

[ollows:~ P

Group and Company

' RMB’000
Carrying amoi s o 5.300,567
Estimated fair 1alue o 5,061,182

The fair value .o the long term oans is estimated by applying a discounted <ash flow approach using current market interest
rates for simil- r indebtedness.

The fair value »f cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other recgivables, amounts due from and amounts due to related
companies, ti.de payables, other payables, otligations under finance leases and short term bank loans are not materially

different fron their carrying amaunts, -

investments i subsidiaries and an associated company represent unquoted equity interests in companies established in the
PRC. There is 0 quoted market price for such interests and accordingly 2 reasonable estimate of their fair vatue tould not be

made withou: incurring excessive costs.

Fair value esti1nates are made at spedfic point in time and are based on relevant market information. This estimate is subjective
in nature ane involves uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be determined with precision,
Changes in vi uation methods and assumptions ¢ould significantly affect the estimates.

Ultimate Holding Company

The directorr regard EA Group, a company established in the PRC, as being the uitimate hoiding company.
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Notes to the Finuncial Statements

(Prepared in occordan = with Interngtional Accounting Standards)
Year ended 31 Decer er 2007

41.

42,

Post Balance Sheet Date Events

{a) Disposc!of aircraft te a subsidiary
00 1 january .. 302, the Company disposed of two MD11 reighters to China Cargo at a total consideration of RMB1,007,608,000
representing 11ie net book values of the MD 11 freighters as at 31 December 2001.

(b} New in.estment

On 19 March ;2 )02, the Company announced to establish China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Limited ("CEAWL™) with Wuhan Airdines
Company in 1.hich the Company will have 40% interest. The registered capitat of CEAWL is expected to be approximately
RMB700,000.1 10, )

(c) Bankin Facilities

Subsequent t. the balance sheet date, the Company has obtained general credit facilities of RMB29.6 billion and US$200
million (équiq «lent to RMB1.7 billion) in the form ol loans from PRC banks, mainly for financing future aircraft acquisitions,
investments i domestic aviation businesses and for working capital purposes. The United States dollar facility is currently
subject to the spproval of Stalgé«_iministration ol Exchange Control.

(d) Propos:d dividends
Subsegquent ti- the balance sheet date, the Company proposed a final dividend of RMB0.02 per share totalling kMBB7,339,000
for the year e ded 31 December 2001 (s¢¢ note 11).

Approval of Accounts

The accounts : «ére 2pproved by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2002,




Report of the PRC Auditors

_ .To the’ shmholden ot
3 .".mn; Eastem Airfin:s Corporation Limited:

“ T A requested by | mm Eastern Airlings! Corporation Limited.(the “Company’, wehave audited the balance sheet.s of the Company and
"'Vltssubsqd |ar35 (me G: mp'] asat31 Decemberzom aswell as the mrmlrdated income Statemeénts, the Company's and the consolidated
W - pmﬁtappropr!aﬂ jon 1 anbment andthe Company's amd the conséhdateﬂ cash flow statement for the year then ended. These financial
) '_5 .stazemenis'arthe K spohmbmw of the-Company's managemenL Our fesponSIblf ity i toexpress an-opinion on these financial
e . statcmcrﬁs bascd on W audit. Quraudit was mnducled in: accordance mth the “Independent Auditing Standards for PRC Certified
: Agcqun;apts hasﬁ on the actual sltuanon of the Company-and 1nduded procedures we considered necessary, such as

' sampie-d1ed<mg ofl «¢'Company’s accounting records.

|n our opmmn the i:forementioned finanazl statements’ comphcd with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” and
K . Aucoumng Ragulaﬂ ns for Business Emerpnss and faidly. presented inall matenal respects the finandal position of the Company
-éﬂd its mnsohdatcd aroup as a: 31 December 2001 and:the resufts of operation. and @sh ﬂows for the year then ended, and the
accoummg h'éatme: used Was cons1§lent with prattice.

. §aanghai Zlyo’nfh‘ii: (;urﬁiieji—?uhlic Accountants
* RofigZhdo, EPA
" Uithen, Pk

" Shanghai, China
8 April 2002
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Income Statement & Statement of
Profit Appropriation and Distribution

Fropanst moacardone with PRC Accouniing Rigidonans}
Fur the period of Junt iy = December 2001

Unit: RMB Yuan
Corvent year Corrent year Previous year Previeus year
Items Nate {cansolidated) {parest corp.) (consolidated) {parent eoep)
L Revenue fra*1 Main Operations: 0 1283933928870 1SAI6053,3490.83  1081758,147.00 * 10,098,738 65318
Less: Reveny. for Givil Aif Infrastructure o _ L
Cons ucion Fund A CATIMAZATE JASBAIL00 . EIMMEE . aVAmamic.
Revenwe frd: 1 Main Operations, net ZANSIT0N0T  J0ATIARIEEE | NABSTLINE, SN ZSOIM |, .
Lesc Main O erating Cast N GEEERO2N39 WIS STIIMTETS - THIH22I6
Busine:: Takes and additional C 29GEATAY ZSSITSNIE  IAN0ZN0 . BSEIMTH
H. Prafit from, ain:Operations 2N9,037.96020 - (MTTISTIEI  20RBITIBE T 160, 725808
Add: Other ¢ ecaling Revenue R MRS . SNIOEIEN - 0BG . TR2NIUR
Less: Operat- g Expenses 129776570682 © 120522965327 1MSETSIMIB 1280465087.67
Generd! & Administrative : . o
Expe 55 271290035 53065626597  SHA25GE 4505573669
finand: | Expenses 3 699,722003.92 G4BT TABIMOME 04650929
1IL Profit from : perations 19017220.67 SETEN0491  RI2IBIGASOH).  (41152920375)
Add: Invesm, :nt income u 5729651188 - 424271153 SIMOMEDS 1634837384
Gains o: Losses from Futures - - - . .
Subsidt income 750,000.00 750,000.00 . 1,06,600.00 1,068,600.00
Non-o: rating Income - as 33,312,375.60 2509250434 26125880038 297283089
Less: Nomo} : rating Expenses 3% 48,250,815.66 059724421 074911065 1447470802
tv. Total Profit 16301630549 134249,12057 1032318974 - 2246189275
Less: Incomy Tax 491718292 7056250 2077506328 1209475.97
Gains ¢ losses of Minarity
Shas 2 10lders 25,179,673.26 - RIMen: -
Y. Net Profit 13291944331 134,178458.07 00819113 2147241658
Add: Undisti suted Profi al the
Bcgi ining of the Year
(Defi- L Shown in Negative) 41,595,43249 79029006.02 14179985268 1551955894
Less: Decea:  of Undistributed Proft
toR luce Registered Capital - - - -
Add: Transft1 from Surplus Reserve - - - -
VL. Distributabi: Profit 7451467580 213207464.00 16180176381 17636800602
Less; Prowisi 11 for Statutory '
Sun 15 Reserve 1,680,597.37 - npgRm -
Prowisi :1 for Starutory Public
Well e Fund 1,680,597.37 - 11,041,832.70 -
Provist  for Stall & Workers'
Wet re Fund - - - -
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income Statement & Statement-of Profit Appropriation and Distribution

Jrems
Vil. Profit Attribi - able to Shareholders
“vasi: Divider I for Prefered Shares
' vaisig)i"for Oiscretionary
- sun s Reserwe
" _Dividel: s for Common Stares
" Transt of Comman Dividends
intd: hare Capita)
.. Vil Undistributy: Profit
"Supplemettary : ta
"1 Proceed! Irom Sife or Disposal
of De|. vtments or Invested
Comg: nies
2. los ot~ Natural Disasters
3, - Incfease or Demreass) of Tota!
Profit ising From Change in
Acony 1ting Policies
4, Increast or Decrease) of Total
Profil vising from Change in
Aceok: 1ling Estimations
5. Loss fra1i Debt Reorganization
6. Otherlt*ms

Nole

Curtent year
{comsolidated)
171,153,681.06

-

47,339,000.00

73,814,681.06

(7,629,073.09)

415,701,223.52

Freyened s aecordence wiin G Acenniing Regutaiog
For fire Feoad of Jimsaey = Oecvinher 20

. Unit: RMB Yuan
Current year Previous yeat Previous year
{parest corp.) {consolidated) {parent corp)

213,207,464.09 139,788,098.41 176.369,006.02

’

97,339,008.00 97,339,000.00 §7,339,000.00

- - -

CUBBRAGL0Y 24500841 720060

(3,570,004.00} - -

415,701,23.52 - -
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Balance Sheet

Eyeparec nr aceordane  with PRC Accounting Reguiations)

As ol 30 December 201

Astels
Curren'tAssgb:
Cash &bank
Shart-term 4nf: straents, net
Notes Rereiva e
Dividends Ree vable
Interests Recel . able
Accounts Rege. b, net
Oﬂ?erRaceNaJ &, net
Prtpaymtnls k
Subsidies Redi i able
Guarantse D1 it for Futures
: Equ'&‘ugnge&ﬂ ‘ee'ﬁé:zivabl: .
Amdurtsto - Amoytzed

mssofomn:m‘tqbeoéuwnf; ;
Lang-term Udmturelnveémefit Duk '

within One 1 ear
Othér Currend  Ssets
Total Curn. 1t Assets
. Long-term Inves inents:
Long-term Eq: ty Investments
Long-tenn De :t Investmenits
Total Long-tar 1 Investments
Less: Aliaw 1ce for Loss on
Lm:1 .lerm investments
long-tern investments, net

Note -

2.0

A

Esdliy
. "' d: m’. v

(Comsidated)

2,756,765,666.67

am,ssc,mss _-_"'- =
- ij _
m,dss,m.ss :

6,432,937,727.48

501,722,616:34.

TIZG86.439.76

© 1,758,050.62
710,328,389.14

twding:
Balmee.
TPartt Wm-)

2ariois

5,893,933,579.46

t147 A2

1'@3;8”15,@0'735"

1,648,810,607.36

7,315,084 87272

N85,

15750,46356
§34,703,136.83

Y

‘'

UmHEHB Yuan ;

6,570,643321.28

| s 5457
‘ 6&64&3@0533

1,572.606,423.61
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Balance Sheet

Hropared in accorgance with PRC Accouniiag Kegoda o,
Asat 31 Deceming 2001

Unit: RMB Yuan -
= " Ending Ending Beginning Beginning
S ) Bsfance . Babece Balance Salance
- Agts- ‘Noe  ((onsolidated) (Parem Corp.] (Consalidated) (Parent Corp)

3 Indudln; Consa i fation Dlﬁt!m
:;' ' (m msolrd.atdStztementsJ . < - ~ -
: 490436389 539 - -
3 9 : 29,603596,189.77 mun,mn 2746307996205  26,363,312,606.18
: AZ271,615,002:89 TRAIMALAT 1042754066 1015184568360
AL 16407136 1T00EMATEA 1621466905
: ' 3.570,000.00 3,570,000.00 - -
TEISLIBIOE  16456507,17326  17.0608M4TSA3 1621146692257
10 L32661216 131190643674  £49304710%6  BI1E54481.47
' - - 123 1207654893 :
Total Fixed £:5¢ts 18,712,607,799.22  17,768,413,610.00 1792346026970 17.036,397,952.97
;mblnssasﬁ Oihir Assets - j
o g e et TN OAMGEG0LE  TRSNTHE BBSEETR WA
PN —mweun Amq s bemmzed .M TR aSR2N25 20402058 19743291606
’ ) W\Hmtlglem hsets - ' - - , - ‘
g " Total Intang e Assets & Other Assels 149935204801  9B1,562,082.94 110302986365 5624056242
R Defam!:axes' ’ . t
. Defmd!axm its B - - - - :
" C L Total Assets 27255226,06385  26,202,719,879.76  26376.298,14297 2574205932028
- . b
E i
Z

L)
3

i




Balance Sheet

Liabllities & Shi: 'eholders’ Equity
Current Liabilitie <
Shortterm L 115
Noles Payably
Accounts Payi.lile
Advances frot ) Custamers
“Internationali: 3les in Advance of Carriage
Domestic Salé: in Advance of Camriage
Payables 10 O- isignor
Payroll Payah *
welfare Payal: ¢
Dividends Pa1. ble
Taxes Payabli
Civil Air Infren t ycture Construction
Fund Unpé: 1
Other otristar ¢ ing payment (Statutory}
Other Payabl): . '
Accrued Bxpe"ses )
Acorued Liabl! ties .
Portion of La 1 3-term Liabilities due
within Ome fear
Other Curren Liabilities
Total Curt: nt Liabilities
Long:lerm Liabi! ties:
Long-term L ns
Debentures | yable
Long-t¢rm Ad i ounts Payable
Payments toy speaal Purpose
QOther Long-v: m Liabililies
Total lany; 4erm Liabilities
Deferred Taxes:
Deferred Tay ' redits
Total Liat :lities
Minarity Intese: s
Shateholders’ t. uity:
Capital Stock
Capital Reser. &
Surplus Rese ‘e
Including *ublic Welfare Fund
Undistribute  Profit
Foreign Cusren. : Transtation Difference
Total She ) eholdess’ Equity
Total Liahilith : & Shareholders’ Equity

Note

13

-

q

16

17

18

19

by

2

25

Prepased 1 decoittane with PRCACcounting Regulntions
As it ) Derraner 2001

Eading

Balante -

(Consolidated)

1,282,641,751.70

251,391,559.30

57,525,967.88 .

538,731,989.20
119,631,651.17

28.208,284.28
32,287,637.67
97,339,000.00

-157.587,611.44 .

242,684,22.73

2,201,438.05 °

- §83,820,457.33
1,866,512,662.11
4,545,797.” *

2,574,415,833.25

8,339,524,864.11

3,205,690,568.88
9,231,810,379,06

12,437,500,947.94

731,862.03
20,777,757,674.08
336,094,892.17

4,366,950,000.00
1,262,812,374.46
37,796,442.08
18,898,221.04
73,B14,681.06

- 6,241,373,497.60
27,355,226,063.85

Ending

Balance .

(Parent Corp.)

962,641,751.20

270,141,404.95

51,400,847.57
507,063,032.62
| 235041142

28,208,842
2565626331
97,339,000.00
144,921,464.25

188,365,407:94
1,931;051,74
"504,877,504.11
1,615.237.891.63
4,546,797.00

2,574,416833.25

7,609,037,945.77

3,205,690,568.88

§,231,810,379.06

12,437,500,947.94

550,147.50
20,047,089,041.21

4,866,950,000.00
1.262,812374.46
115,863,464.09
6.245,630,838.55
26,292,719,679.76

Beginning

Ralance.

{Consohdated)

500,000,000.00

25349024413
652193540 .
60768177104

103,112.381.12

36,289,022.42
“N201,157.97

, 9733900000 .
13518,637.70 °

175,162,654.73,
1.619,444.80

564559, 146.57
1,78123, 76282

17513284677

6,167,743 826.57

2,10¢,000,000.00

12177275, 143.41

{409,827,430.79)
13.867447.712.82

2,002,085.54
20,037,193,62543
342,356,606.06

4,866,950,000.00
1.447,954,188.23
239,184,544.84
98,617, 342.62
42,458,099.41
6,596,547.831 48
26,376,298,142.97

Unit: RMB Yuan
Beginning
Balanee
(Parcnt-Corpy)

. 200,000,00;00

AO25240

57,696,764.69
§35.150,780:92

91,577,32026.

35,6883 62

1390,74355
97.339.000.00.
118,635,863.62

0399699843

1,521,057.86
388,364,044.72
1,544,617,826.58

1751328, 246.77

5,203,498 23242

2,100,000,000.00

12,177,275,143 41
(339,338,633.14)
13.937.876,51027

2,002,085.64
19,143,376,828.53

4,866,950,000.00
1,447,954,168.23
204,748,297.50
81,399,718.95
79,029,006.02
6.598,682.491.75
25.742,059.320.28

11
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Cash Flow Statement

iPrepared in accordunce itit PRC Accaunim Regulntivns:

Fu the Period of janue v -

- Deternhen 2004

ftems

.

v.

V.

Cash Flov-; from Operating Activities:

Cash recel ed from sales of goods or rendering of services

Refunds ¢! taxes

Other cas): received relating to operating aclivities
Sub-:otal of cash inflows

Lash paid ‘or goods and services

Cash paid o and on behalf of employees

Payment! f all types of taxes

Cash paid relating to other operating activities
Sub: | o1al of cash outflows

Net cash - lows from operating activities

Cash Floi 5 from Investing Activities:

Cash rece: sed [rom return of investments

" Cash recived from distribution of dividends or profits
Net cashi: eceipts from the sale of fixed assets. intangible

assets:: fid ‘other long-term assets
Cash rect . ved relating to other investing attivities
sub-total of cash inflows ‘
Cash paii’ te acquire fixed assets, intangible assets,
and olirer long-term assets
Cash paiil to acquire investments
Cash pail) relaiing to other investing activities
Suli- total of cash outflows
Net casd. flows from investing activities
Cash Rid'vs from Financing Acivities:
Cash rec:ived fram investments by others
ingJudin:: Cash received by subsidiaries from investments
by minority sharehoiders
Cash ted. ived from borrowings
Cash rec: ived relating to other financing activities
Sui:total of cash inflows
Cash rep .iyments of amounts borrowed
Cash pa:) for distribution of dividends or profits and for
inter: 't expenses

indw ng: Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits

to minority shargholders by subsidiarics
Cash pz 1 relating o other financing activities
su ~total of cash outflows
Net ca+ hh flows from financing activities
gHect :f Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash
Net in:rease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amount
(consolidated)

.

14,424,522,434.48
1,843,762.65
6944395137
14,495,810,148.50
9.439,787.730.67
790,653,071.12
72727799749

. 343,179,548.40
11,300,998,347.88
3,194,911,800.62

400,996,564.24
8,699,686.67

76,431,337.55

486,127,588.46

2,495,037,221.33
106;514,000.00
(24,007,545.82)
2,577,543,675.51
2,091,416,087.05)

3.494,325,833.74
54,520,524.24
3,539,146,357.98
1,629,150,107.57

947,336,168.60

1,802.875,711.63

4,379,361,987.80
[840,215,629.82)
{144,536,662.25)
11B,743,421.50

uUnit: RMB Yuan
Amount
{pareny

11.907,579,856.72
1.843,762.65

4 25353,861.02
11,934,777,480.39
7,666,068,514.43
652.216,747.44
567,067.291.68
142,195.229.91
9,027,547,783,66
2.907,229,696.73

386.004,146.36
8.017,494.87

73,170,640.63

" 467,282,481.86

2288,93894318 -

106,364,000.00

(24,007,545.82)
£ 2,371,295,397.36
{1,904,012,915.50)

3.184,325,833.74
54,620,524 24
3,239,146,357.98
1,229,150,107.57

924,867,157.74

1,802.875,711.63

3,956,892,976.94
(717,746,618,96)
{139,165,167.18)
146,304,995.09

2R
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Cash Flow Statement

repared neaccadan st FRC Accotling Requiutinns!
For the Feriod of Jon Ay Decomber 2001

Net in rease in cash and cash equivalents

Unit; RMB Yuan
Amount Amapat
Supplementz:y Infarmation (consolidated)’ {parewt)
Reconc iation of Net Profit to Cash Flows from o
Oper. ting Activities .
Net Pro’ | 132,919,443.31 13;3,173,455.07
Add: Ciins or losses of minority shareholders 25,179,673.26 -
#:ovision for impairment losses of assets 40,730926:58 - 35-07130503
€ spreciation of fixed assets 1,591,203.916.54. 1,526 81{849°61
Ainortisation of intangible assels B 29.327,412.59 18.09‘\0',069'-23
#inartisation of long—term prepaid expenses 7061984971 : ez,ass,naws
[ crease in prepaid expenses (or deduct: increase) {20,378,246.47) .(iq.;175.§6&.11)
-crease in accrued expenses (or deduct: deciease) 68,850.690.36 6525439&;45
1: sse$ on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long—term assets (or deduct: gains) {11,692,074.11) (17,566:643.94)
L:sses on scrapping of fixed assets 753926033 5,370,211! 80 .
F:aandial expenses 731,106,100.18 o277 A5
Lo5ses arising from investments for deduct: gains) {57,296,511.88) - (34,242.77%:53)
[ sferred .mx credit (or dedut_:t:' debit) - . ) -
[ xrease in inventories (or deduct; increase) 147,200,088.57 122,380.239.09
I 2crease in operating receivables (or deduct: increase) 748,504,891.05 ?,20.558.263.56 .
I- crease in operating payables (or deduct: decrease) (309,004,325.70)- 138,242 843.41
_¢hers ' K - -
Net casi: flows from operating activities 3,194,911,800.62 2,907,229,696.73
Investil: g and Finanding Activities that do not involve Cash :
Receipts and Payments
Convenion of debt into capital - -
Reclass ly convertible bonds to be expired within one year
as cu:rent liabiity - -
Fixed &: s financed by finance leases - -
Net I« ease in Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash at he end of the period 2,627,728375.49 2,240,547,698.76
Less: ¢ shat the beginning of the period 2,508.984.853.99 2,094.242,703.67
Plus; ¢ «sh equivalents at the end of the period ' - -
Less: ¢.sh equivalents 2t the beginning of the period - -
118,743,421.50 146,304,995.09

-]




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accordonce vilh PRC Accounting Regulntions;
Yeor ended 31 Decemb ¢ 2001

Compzmw nformatmn

overseasanr ml E generaravpphon busmm malotenahceand tepa
eqmpmem ag ncy  of au-hnes both at home and abroad and nther busmsm a(‘

'1

il Prmclpak’i xccountmg Poluaes, Accpuntmg Estlmatadnsand @nwﬁdat’

Fmanq.l "tatements

Transacnons ﬁmqygn cunencues are’ translated into &MB at ‘the mnddle :exchange rate nrevaxlmg at !.he hegc"

PP PR ST VS

momth. | Mone uyassets arid liabilities in foreign currendes are tianslatéd intg RMB atthe mxdme udmse\ratenre%mqus lt o :

thié cnd of e; h month. Exchange diHferences concerning acquisition ol fixed assets are aprtahzed Exchanse dlfferences

during organ .ation period are incuded in <long:term expenses o be amortized>; which w.lr be accoumed 2 current Droﬁt .
and loss of ¢! month during which formal operation starts. ‘Exchange differences in.normal operations are indvded inthe k

<Finangal ¢ .penses- exchange gains and losses> of the current period.
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Notes to the Fini.ncial Statements

Pre et 0 asvondedng SvHD ERE Revatiag Neqiiif nis

Yeurg craddent Vi v g G

Principal ‘.ccounting Policies, Accounting Estimations and Consolidation of

Financial :tatements {Cont’d)

6.

Definitinn of Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalen . are short lerm, highty liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which

are subject to; 1insignificant risk of changes in value,

7.
)

@

8)

)

Basis of onsolidated Statements

Determins ion of consolidation scope .

Wherever 1e equity investment made by the Company to the outside cm;ﬁbényis over 50% (exduding 50%) of the investee
company'. capital, or less than 50% but the Company has substantial control over the invested company, the invested
company ;nould be included in the consolidation, However, for those invested entities whose total assets, aperating
revenue a4 net profit are insignificant and are in compliance with regulations of O (96) No.2 <Answer to the Question
about Con olidation Scope>, they are not induded in consolidation.

Consolida'ion method -

The consclidated ﬁnanciallﬁié.temeﬁts,are prepared on the basis of the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiari'; within consblidalion scoipe and other relevant information. The equity investment and the corresponding
portion of he owner's equity of the invested entities, the claims and liabilities, as well as the internal sales between or
among th:: m are lo be offset when preparing the consolidaled statements.

The accou ting policies adopted by the Campany and its subsidiaries are in consistency.

Current 'nvestment

The initial .0st of a currenl investment is the tolal price paid on acquisition, including incidental expenses such as taxes
and hand?: 1g charges, after deduction of cash dividends which have been declared but unpaid at the time of acquisition
or unpaid nterest on bonds which has been accrued. Cash dividends or interests on current investments, other than
those reco ded as receivable items, should be offset against the carrying amount of investments upon receipt. On disposal
of a currei: : investment, the difi¢rence between the carrying amount and the salc proceeds should be recognized as an
investmer gain or loss of the current period.

Pravision .rimpairment of current investment
The provis n for impairment of current investment is made at the excess of carrying amaount over the market vajue on an

individual tem basis.




Notes to the Financial Statements

Pepgn et gt g g widt PR Acconnling Kedudaimns
Your st 31 Hecember il

Principal A :counting Policies, Accounting Estimations and Consolidation of
Financial 5 atements (Cont'd)
9. Provisior for Bad Debts

(1) Delermina. on of bad debts -
a. When the ¢ :btor is bankrupt or dead, the accounts receivable that are unable to be recovered even after the liquidation
of the deb!:ir's bankrupt estste or legacy.

b, The accou s receivable with an aging of over 3 years that are proved to be definitely uncollectable because of the

debtor’s dr aull in making repayment.

{2) Accounting, treatment of bad debts
When the "2ceivable items meel the criteria set forth in paragraph (1), they can be written off after praper approval

procedure.

{(3) Determini ion, provisioning method and percentage of provision for bad debts
The loss of Jad debts is accounted for with deduction method. If there is enough evidence proving the uncollectibility of
sOme acca: ints receivable, then they are analyzed on an individual item basis Lo determine the provisioning percentage.
The aging - aethod is not applied on ti:ese accounts receivable. The provision for bad debts for the remaining balance of
accounts 1 ceivable after deducting the aforesaid accounts receivable is calculated with aging method. '

The aging »:nd the corresponding provisioning percentage are ‘listed as follows:

Aging Provisioning Percentage
within 1Y :ar 3%

1-2 years 5%

2-3 years: 10%

34 years 15%

4-Syears 20%

Above 5Y:ars 40%

T A I e s TN A G, -

pra

M
(o




Notes to the Fit.ancial Stalements

(Prepared in accorda ¢ with PRI Accounting Regulations)
Year ended 31 Decer ber 2007

(z) Long»w;ndem iovestrient . : "'_‘ T L
Longqenn debtnnvestmgnl re!ersto bond m“stmtnl and leasa Itis ﬂ:cprﬂ:d at the tolal pnr.é ‘paid on ammsmon, aﬁcr‘

deducur mcudem.al expensessuch as taxes, handling r.harges and unpalrl rnlerest on bonds which has been acorued. '
Investme 1t gains are recogmzed on.the accrual basis.

(3) . Equity ir - estment difference
The giffe - ence between the investment cost as explained in paragraph (1) and the investor's share of owner's equity of the
invested *nterprise is recorded in <Equity Investment Difference> and usually amortized over a period of 10 years.

PN
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Notes Lo the Financial Statements

iPrepared in uccendance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
Yeyr endzd 31 December 2001

PR RTES Prmcq;ali cceuntmg;Pollues, Accountmg Estlmationsand CGnsolrdahon of T
PR, ”manaaﬂtatements{Cont’d) : R

R PR LA R R
ke e Do b s By oA TARKALES # e e mr s o e s pevEA s -

o

. o B, Valmm )fjixedassds . . ,
: rf%(cd assd »ereaccwnted farat actual'acqulsmonpme, mdgdmg m‘dep‘nl agmsessudras.pad;age ea)ensﬁ;tiauspon

e tompieuq Iahd madlmfause erdassetsm
noe themvai s e A .

i Deprena‘ b on'mefugdassets 5. pranded onawalgm-lmebasusaﬁer dedudlngfhe estnnated mslduai value aﬁordmg
40 the fnl - WiNg useful fwes :

,tatggoni . : Usetul Lives ' Residual Value Rate
Aircrafts, 1d éngines attached 20 years 5%
Standby: 1gines 20 years 0%
Building 15—35 years %

" Nehicies :ndglec}r’b'ni‘c. devices - 5~6 years 3%
Other Eq ipment 5~20 years 3%

N
O
»
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Notes to the Fir ancial Statements

JPrepsirie nraceondar ¢ win PR Accuiltisan Reguie i
Yer ended 21 Doger b 20

II-

Principal Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimations and Consolidation of
Financial Statements {Cont’d)

12, Fixed J.isets and Depreciation {Cont’d)

(4) Provision for impairment of fixed assets

if the rev:sverable amount of § fixed asset is lower than its carrying amount as a result of continuing dedine in market
value, te hnology obsaleteness, damage or idleness, the Company shall make provision for impairment of fixed assets at

" theend [the period at the excess of the carrying amount over recoverable amount on an individual item basis.

13.

4

4

Constn.ction-in-progress

Construeiion-in-progress is accounted for at actual acquisition cost. The interest of joan incurred during the course of
construa: on for the financing of the project should be included in the cost of construction-in-progress. The interest of
loan inc . rred alter the project having been put into operation shall be accounted for as current profit or loss. Upon
complet in and readiness for operation, the cost of construction-in-progress is to be transferred to the account of fixed

assels.

Provisiol: for impairment of construcriqn-in-progress: The company shail give a complete review of the canstructions-in-
progress 1t the end of the period. lf the construction has been interrupted for a long periad and is not expected to be
resumed within 3 years; orifthe project is outdated whether in performance or in technolagy and the econpmic benefits.
brought o the Company is of great uncertainty; or if there is enough evidence indicating that the impairment of
construg on-in-progress has occurred, the Company shall make provision for impairment of constmctibn—in-pro@css at
the exce:; of the carrying amount of the construction-in-progress over its recaverable on an individual item basis.

Intangble Assets

Yaluatio: and amortization

Intangib : assets are accounted for at aclual acquisition ¢ost. The recording amount of an intangible asset contributed by
an invé nr should be determined based on the value agreed by all investors. The cost of an intangible asset is amortized
evenly - er the shorter of the beneficial period stipulated in the contract and the effective period stipulated by faw
starting:> om the manth in which it is obtained. Lacking such stipulations, intangible assets should be amortized evenly
over the -xpected benefical period.

Provisior for impairment of intangible assets
The con iany shall review each intangible asset at the end of the period and evaluate its ability 1o generate economic
benefits The Company shall recognize Lhe excess of carrying amount aver the recoverable amount as provision for

impairn :nt on an individual item basis.




Notes to the Financial Statements

Sremitedd i) cOa it iR Aottt elo b

Tear vt d S0 e cm bt Tt

Principal Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimations and Consolidation of
Financial Statements (Cont’d)

15. Amorti..ation of Long-term Expenses to be Amortized

(1) OQrganiz ion expenses are included in <long-term Expenses to be Amortized> first and then accounted lor as current
profit or ‘0ss of the month during which formal operation is started.

(2) Long-ter:1 expenses to be amortized are accounted for 2t the actual costs and amortized over the estimaled beneficial

period.

16. Overhi ul Expenses of Aircraft and Engines

Pursuantto? ¢ related regulations of the Finance Department of Civil Aviation Administration of China (*CAACT), the Company
should accru: overhau) expenses for aircraft and engine at 2%~4% of the original cost in consideration of the overhaul cyde
and expectes overhaul expenses of various types of aircraft.

17. Borroviing Costs

Interest expe ises inqurred for thc purpose of acquiring a fixed asset should be included in the cost of the relevant fixed asset
before the 21 et has reached its expected usable condition, The interest expenses incurred after the fixed asset has reaghed its
usable cond ion are accounted for as finance expenses. interests incurred during operation are directly accounted for as

financial exjinses.

18. Incom ! Recognition

{1) The vah.e of sold but unused tickets is included in the current liabilities, which is accounted for in <Domestic Sales in
Advanc: of Carriage> and <International Sales in Advance of Carriage™. The value of lickets sold by other carriers but
executt:| by the Company or tickets sold by the Company but executed by other carriers are cleared through Accounting
Center :f China Aviation ("ACCA"). The Company's income from provision of transportation service of passengers, cargo
and my. Is is recoghized upon delivery of the service with the uplifted coupons as evidence, The commission income
earne& rom other carriers in respect of sales made by the Company is recognized upon billing by other carriers.

(2) Grount service income is recognized when rendering services.

(3) Revem :arising from the use by others of the Company's assels such as interest revenue a;'vd royalty is recognized when
itis pn sable that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow te the Company and the amount of the
revent  can be measured reliably. The interest revenue is measured based on the length of time for which the Company's
cach i+ Jsed by others and the applicable interest rate and royalty s measured according 1o the period and method of
enargi g asstipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.




Notes to the Fin. ncial Statements

- {Prepared in accordane with PRC Accounting Regulations,
Year ended 37 Decomizr 2001

)

Pizmclpah ccountmg Pohc:es’, Accountmg Estumatmns and Consolidation of .

PR RE AN

) 20 ﬂmnga in Ma]Of Accountmg Pohaes andAccountmg Emmates, and Correctwns of Srgmﬁcant.
N Accountwg Errors: . { . :

) COmemsa mibasmf changes in accounungpohces .
A&or:ﬂng: )‘:‘me ru:uiremermomqmm] No.25 <Nouceabout me'mstnbunonof Accounting Regulauons for Busmess

En'terpnsé >onJanua‘ry 1 2001 antl acmuntmg pohas arec-hanged as fol lows:

. [
. s, .
.“ . AN . s .

ﬁi)
' msﬂ Uﬁlomn-pr@ ax meend Othc peﬂod at The excess of carrying amount over the recom‘ablfanwunt on.
an ing wdual 1ternba5|s.

rui) Nogsp nsmn for mpalnmmfmmngble assetswauﬁade formerty. Nowfhc Campanymakesvmvmon formtanglbie
R aﬁm e endoﬂhe pcnodat the' &c&nfqnymg amountwerthefecovembleamounton 30 mdwldual ctam
.' 'ha;& S . : .

(‘rv} No pri.Aision for nmpamnemdfmuusted loapswasmadc Ion'nedy Nowxhc campany makes provision for mpamnent,:
of eni- usted Ipans.at the ond of the period:at. :heexce:s of canying: amoum over the rccoverableamoumm an

v

R S "fmdrvi'ﬂslmmbasxs

(v} Organization.expenses were originally evenly amortized over 5 years from the month of farmal operation. Now
organ ‘ation expenses are accounted for as cusrent expenses of the month during which formal operation starts.

,Emupnse >'4ssuéd ~5y thewmstryof A nanqe 1he(ompany staned to' foliow %Accounting Regulations for Business .

. 0 - Nn pl vnsmn foumpamem of ﬁmﬂ assetswas made fon'nerly ow'the&)mpany makes provision for ié\ﬁaimmt

No“bn : visioh for irﬁpair'rhemﬁ cﬁn‘s&fuéﬁor’?ﬁﬁ-ﬁm@r&s was. made'forrherly Now theiCompany makes p:mvisio'n for. -

12
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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lIl. Taxatior Items (Cont'd)

2. Civil 'vigtion Infrastructure Levies

The Civil Av ution Infrastructure Levies is charged alt a certain percentage of trallic revenue, Pursuant to the related regulations
{its ref, No, - ZZ 1999-11) jointly issued by Ministry of Finance and State Development & Planning Commission, the levy rate

applied on : omestic tralfic revenue is 5% while that on intemationa! traffic revenue is 2%.

Iv. Stock-held Subsidiary Companies

Name of lnwi : lee Company

China Easten Airlines Jiangsu (o, Lid.

China Cargo rlines Co., L.

Shanghai €25 +m Flight Training Co., td,
Eastemn Airfin. ; Industrial Co,, Ltd.
Qi Lu Eastern - irfines Catering Co., Lid.

China Easterr \irfines Jiangsu Catering Co.

Jiangnan You sL(HK) Co,

Eastern Aidlin *; Jiangsu
Advertisen ntCo., Lid.

Registered
Capital
(ISD 47,000,000

RMB 500,000,000

RMB 53,000,000
RMB agm
RM8 10,500,000
RMB 500,000

RMB 641,100

RMB 300,000

Shareholding
Percent

55%

0%

9%
80%
65%
55%

55%

53%

Accommting
Method-

Equity Methad

Equity Method

Equity Method

Equity Method

Equity Method

Cost Method

Cost Method

Cast Method

Coasolidation
Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

‘cape of Business

Air transportation of
passengers, cargo, mails and
luggage over domestic air
routes and approved overseas
routes

Alr transpartation of cargo &
mails, air catering, sales of
tourist goods, hatel, atering
and entertainment

“Training for fiying crew and
. other refated personnel

sales of food, knitwear &
hardware

Production and sales of food,
atering on the planes

Sales of Aquatic producls,
hausehaid by-products ang
native produds

Traweling service

Design and ‘making of
advertisement in domestic
broadeast, newspapers and
magazines: design and
making of presswork, street
nameglate, gift packing,
advertisement agency
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" Included a"1ong Other Monetary Fund, there are restricted overseas deposits with a tota! amount of RMB 1,251,779,318.96,

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Stock-held Subsidiary Companies (Cont’d)

For the seve: 2l companies that are not included in consalidation scope, either because the Company does not have significant
influence th-:reon, ar the total assets, aperating income and net profit of the companies are all less than 10% of those of the

Company, ¢1 because they are still under preparation stage and have not started formal operation. *
4

Explanzions to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB)

1. Mone ary Fund

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Cash $1,494,628.00 1,847.999.50
Bank Depo.. t 1,289,124,906.90 1,054,477,252 37
Other Mon:: ary Fund 146614613177  1,579,077.885.26
Total 2,756,765,666.67

2,635,403,137.13

which is us: d to pay the aircraft lease charges. The balance of special deposit is RMB 129,037,291.18, which is the deposit for

the purcha -e of aircralt or aircraft operating lease.

The monet - ry fund in foreign currenciés is equivalent to RMB 1,857,401,525.05 at the medium exchange raté prevailing at the

JPEN S

eng of the seriod.

2. Accants Receivable _ :

Ending Balance Beginning Balance ,-

Percentage  Provision lor Pertentage  Provision for

Aging Amount (] Bad Debts Amount v Bad Debts 5

Within 1 Yer: §53,963.033.3 8782 27974752 125717479091 9507  3,843.895.48

In the Secon: Year £3.46.405.26 658 27,063.893.04 2498269172 189 7633167.10 ,

In the Third “ear 1767307274 18 5816976823 6,022,809.41 045  2.221,090.79 :
Inthe Fourl Year 6603,597.85 068 445359050 2037061791 150 763135165
in the Fifth - zar 16,613 98045 170 791746175 9,909 734.66 075 89836429
Above 5 Ye: s 1365540249 140 1338575640 392259050 030 363721128
Tota) a72,455,492.02  100.00 63,889.217.44  1,322,382735.11 10000 33,931,012.59

The lop 5 :ompanies with largest amount due to the Company owe a folal amount of RMB 234,690,204.56 10 the Company,
which is  ).30% of the ending balance.
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Year ended 31 Decen ver 2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Explanati »ns to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) {Cont’d)

3. Other i eceivable (Cont’d)

$pecial provis Hns for bad debts are as follows:

Company

Huayang Leas* Co.

yixing Carbon *actory

Nanjing Artwe: k Auction Co.
Eastern Airlini*; Industrial Co., Ltd.
Finance Dept,. CAAC

Jincheng Group

Others

Total

4. Advant:sto Supp)iers -

Aging

Within 1 Year

In the Second » ear
In the Third Y:'3r
In the Forth Yi:ar
In the Fifth Ye:r
Total

There is no an:dunt due from parties who held more than 5% of the Company’s shares.

Amount Aging Percentage (%) Reason
9,531,837.50 3-5years 100% Liquidation
4,500,000.00 Above 5 years 100% Bankrupt
22,563,614.19 14 years 100%  Litigation
§237.037.58 = AboveSyears 100%  Dispute
6,782,783.39 Above 5years 100% Dispute
10,000,000,00 1-2 years 100%  Joint guarantee obligation
22,759.725.43 100%  Dispule, joint guarantee
obligau'oﬁs, etc
82,374,998.09
5 ‘ Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Amount  Percentage (%) ~ Amount Percentage ps}
102,453,391.89 100.00 205.989,032.17 77.65
- - 47,092,542.80 172.75
- - 4,408,998.02 1.66
- - 7,133,461.97 2.69
- - 661,958.68 0.25
102,453,391.89 100.00  265,285,993.64 100.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Explanatic 1s to Main {tems of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

5. Invento’

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Allowance for «  Allowance for
em Amount Obsotescence Amount ~“ Obsolescence
Aircraft Consumifiles 869,004 306.66 261,436,788.72 856,135,16247  258,905,175.%4
High-price Rotah = 1,426593,716.61 . - 1:476,614,544.51 -
Common Appliai. 18I0 - 19,905,627.04 -
Low-price Consuables 1,19,791.15 . - 158,324.19 -
Sub-contracted k: uipment - - 240479.46 -
Others 21,029,196.97 - 47,891,926.79 -
Total 2,336,129,083.09  261,436,788.72  2,400,946,064.46  258,905,175.94
6. Expense: to be Amortized
Beginning Increase, Amonrtization, Ending
Category . Balance Current Current Balance
* Aircraft operat 1g Lease abligations 7175635719  407,429456,55 397.477,62606  B1,708,187.68
Tickes printin; expenses 140368756 147416176 250864330 36920622
Others 3,810.691.32  95,149,669.24 §3,688,77192  15271,588.64
Total 76,970,736.07 504,053,287.55 483,675,041.08 97,348,382.54
7. Llong-te'm Equity Investment
Beginning Balance Ending Balance
Provision for (ncrease, Decrease, Provision for
Ttem Amount Impairment Current Current Amoutt  Impairment
Securities Invesi: 1ent 360,000.00 360.000.00
Other equity invstment 90,382,00B46  1,760,46850 123,352,967.65 3,731,152.69 210,003,823.42  1,758,050.62
Total 90,742,008.46 1,760,468.50 123,352,967.65 3,731,152.65  210,363.823.42 1,758,050,62
(1) Secuntier investment
% of the Registerad Capital
Invesiee Comg . ny Type of Shares Quantily of Shares of the Investee Company Amount
Huning Expres .vay Ca., ltd.  Legal person shares 200,000 - 360,000.00
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Prepured in aecord nee with PRC Accounting Regufations!
Year ended 31 Det mber 2001

L VB 'Explana ions to Mam ltems\of Fmamal Staiements tUmt- RMB) (cnnt’d)

bt (2) ethen mdymyestment .
' (0 mv ﬁmcnwm SubS)dlaW e .

: i:f: ‘%muimmmmm .wmmm mem pﬁwm R LTI E S T
© g gt Ii; L s R

'I";‘A-;eugmimmﬂ lmgwto . mmm LN ssm! e e L -
‘n;,»fnmamm um{mﬁngm - 3000000 1 43800000 . s'iqux' Copml - 2 UM

SIS 534260404 LNAEN  WLMHEST WIS 430N00

Lo .. . e ) oo .
: '

e SeL et o T s . '

[ A I o e

- ,Be:mmughlance ' Endlngnalanict . "-xeas'ot{formvéiimiin'g s
PR 498.‘350.00 . . 498.00000 . shmup.mrecevenbleassas

’. "
. I Lo
‘1 N3
‘ M 0
. A - -
» . RS
~ b - f
. ! .
B . .
. .
N [
! ) - .
. . N
- t “ -~
. . ) 2 .
¢ ’ : N ' IR
" » ; P he
A s
. P . NN "
'I‘ M ¢
N “ R -
H ™
t . K b .
H vy '
H v
!
: -
L
<
.

S | 133




Notes to the Financial Statements

Fieprieed i arcondaniee wih PR Aceninting Redidunions:
Voerr ended 41 Lieceminr 200

Explanatic 1s to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

7. Long-ter:1 Equity Investment (Cont’d)

(2) Other equly investment (Cont'd)
(ii) investi. ent to associated company

wol Change |8 Ot Gash  Provisies bor
vestnenl Endin Regitiered  Owmer'sEquity, Owner'sEeity,  Dividesd, Mupakmestos
Mevesiee Company Perind Amoval Bl Dapipl Comalative Corent Gavent  Investent
Shanghat Extem Unia biadon
Wheeks & Brakes Ov 1 el .
Engiteering (0, L'6 HYRAUNL BIMBLN  2HME 000 U0NT IA5HOS 260000000 -

Yanzi Exsiem Ait G 1g Co, Ud. 199732025 ploomoe 3563060 4000% BN O DRI -
Eastern hioa Kaiya Sy | '

Iegraton Ca, Ld, 199975 MOOD0  43NS8M TN SEISBH 20MEN08  MA0NN -
Shangha Horghn O iport | |
Comvorialonds, 1 2005 JME TSEB WK ST (58 - - .
Jang Eagem At Iading o, LA WRTIT 100000000 110000000 X025K - - - 1m0 '
fastem Anes iangs | Indusiria B ' | ;
ud WEENISE -~ 2846850 WO BN (A48 QA7) - WRe f;
rangs Easlem Ao« Infernational ‘ ;
Trvel Agesxy (0,1 . WAL 1000000 105000000 BN - - - - i
BaemUnion Freghl 109G 11. 198901 CURIMA 0HA 00K G086 610E8 - - i
Raster A¥ Greup Py ce (o, Lt P8 NG00  TIOOI/S  KO% 3RS LIRSBI - - y
Tolal T28,34,605  151,337,00858 DA 9SG 37680000 12008
3
Details of prot sion for impairment of long-term investment: ‘
Investee Comyiany Beginning Balance  Ending Balance  Reason for Provisioning ;
Jiangsu Easter. Airlines Trading Co., Ltd. 1,100,000.00 1,700,000.00  Shut up, no recoverable assets 3
£astern Airlini; jiangsu Industrial Co., Ltd. 162,468.50 160,050.62  Liguidation, ne recoverable assets ?\:

[T

(i) Othereq ity investmenl
%ol Cungein Onagem Gk Provision lor 1

restuent Eading  Regitered  OwnersEquity, Oweer'séquity, Dividend, lupairmestou
iavestee Conpam Peiod  Amoest  Balance  CGglid  Gmdative Gres  Curest  vesiwent .
Hegailsuanee okeegeCo, Ul 000 0000000 100N 33N - - - -
Jiangsu SuYina Lab - Serviee o, Ud. MM 15000000 1000000 049K 150,000 0C 150.000.00 - -
CMCinlormation 2work (o . WS M0N0 A0N0ONO0 DK 4000000 AL90N00 - - N
Toual 5,200,00000 5.240,000.00 420000000 424000000 %




Notes to the F 1ancial Statements

Paeptired wngeatde e willt PRC Accouniing Regination
Yer ended 31 Uees nber g001

V. Explanaiions to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

7. Long- 2rm Equity Investment (Cont’d}

{2) Other ¢:uity investment (Cont'd)
{iv) Equity investment difference

Beginning Amertization
Balance

Company

Eastecn Air (. oup Finance Co., Ltd. 5,538,186.77

8. Long< 2rm Debt Investment

Bond Invesb-ient
Lease Invest rent
Total

Bond invest hent:

Type of Boat: 8

Par Value

Interest Raty per Annum
Acquisition 41rst

Matunty Dal:*

Interest Re:: vable, Beginning
Interest Actt ed, Current
interest Rea- vable, Ending
Ending Bala!' ice

Period Amontization  Remaining
Period Current Value  Reasons
10years 553.818.88 4,984,369.89  Purchasing stocks over
- the book value
- Ending Balance Beginning Balance
501,722,616.34 464,454,894.72
- 81,266,702.15
501,722,616.34 545,721,596.87
US Treasury Zero Coupon Bonds
USD 71,475,000.00
5.0435477%
UsD 27,810,207.00
February 2004
USD 28,296,253.99
USD 4,512,949.92
USD 32,809,203.91
USD 60,619,410.91

Equivalent b1 RMB 501,722,616.31 at the exchange rate of @ 8.2766 prevailing at the end of year.
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9. Fixed Avets and Accumulated Depreciation

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Propored o agem donse Witk PRE Acconnnting ReQubatnns.
rear ended 11 Diecember 20001

V. Explanations to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

{1y Cost ‘
Beglnning Increase, Amortization, Ending
hems Balance Current Current Balance
Sell-purchased A ‘craft 3,463,208 269.94 2,410,285,069.63 4,189,600.00 5,869,303,738.57
Aircraft Engines 155169033218 150685219 5459521726 1,647.780,457.11
Aircraft Held umi2r Financial Lease 19,002,924,018.88 i - £45.983,680.57  1B,155.940,338.31
Building & Pren 1ses 15703787608 29641646266 2486426796  1,796,590,070.78
Equipment 1,354,097,532.76 103,144,343.92 37,528,862.48 1.419,713,01420
vehicles 564,121,932.22 181,732,713.98 33,666,075.40 712,188,570.80
Total 27,463,079,962.06  3,142,263,931138  1,001,827,703.67 29,603,516,189.77
{2) Accumulzied Depreciation !
Beginning Ingease, Amartization, ' Ending 3»
Htems Balance Current Current 8alance §
Setf-purchased . reraft 147033755460 - 977.397,056.64 1,060,150.84  2,446,674.460.4D f
Aircraft Engines 707,634,32155 v 101,282,119.14 47.934,064.10 760,582,376.59 :
Airaalt Held ur: er Finangial Lease 7,087,286,164.53 1,003,174,124.68 390,071,865.78 7,700,.386,442.43 -
Building & Prer11ses 179,637,176.32 60,779,997.23 8,186,161.24 232231,01231 ‘
¢quipment 615,564,976.18 102,436,220.16 18,767.080.4 693,214,115.31 ;
Vehicles 341,815,272.45 110,349,691.50 20,038,369.90 432,126,595.05
Tolal 10,402,275,486.63  2,355,419,209.35 486,079,693.29 12,271,615,002.69
|
{3) Netvalu: é
Hems Ending Balance Beginning Balance t
Self-purchase Aircraft 3,422,629278.17 1.992,870,715.34 T
Alrceatt Engin BE6,798,080.52 844,056,010.63 .
Aircraft Held  nder Financial Lease 10,455,553,895.88 11,915,637,834.35 :
Building & Pr mises 1,566,359,058.47 1,347,400.699.76
Equipment 720,498,898.29 738,532.556.58 '
. 280,061.975.75 222 306,658.77
Veticies 17,331,901,787.08  17,060,804,475.43
Total -




Notes to the Fi-ancial Statements

(Prepnied i aecndu 20 vath PRE Aeeounning Reyuinnions:
Yeurs entded V1 Dece her 2001

Explanaiions to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Com’d)

9, Fixed .issets and Accumulated Depreciation (Cont'd)

(3) NetVali : (Contd)

The ingr:ase of fixed assets this year includes RMB 643,603,344.33 transferred from construction-in-progress. The decrease
of fixed :ssets this year is due to the disposal of aircraft and ground assets, bringing a revenye of RMB 16,690,626.18 from

disposar of aircraft and engines and the relevant.expenscs are RMB 1,529,449.16. The revenue and expense from the
disposal of ground assels is RMB 1,437,768,10 and RMB 10,176,587.42 respectively. The ending balance of fixed assets
includer RM8 91,534,687.72 net value of airaaft under opera’&ng lease.

{4) Provisio’ for Impairment of Fixed Assets

ftem

Beginning
Balance

Self-purchasi } Aireraft and engines -

10. Constr:iction-In-Progress

Projects
Advance Paymeni & A0 Areraft
Advance paymenl' 1 8737 Airqraht
Pudong Airport (P, sel}
Logistics Center (I 1f Pudong Airpert
Xamen Intermalia. f Travel Building
Logstics Center (1} :f Pudong Aport
No. 3 Apartment ¢ 3lock K-3,
Pudang Aiport
Modificalion of A7 | 187 intg 8238
(ommuniztion N * work of
Pudong Airpon

Segimaiog Increza,
Balance (prrent

20191864 3910183202

BOTMIR 14060508
BIISBIS D54THNES
57398
2770000000 -

BHOOW 2767 HIN

1569540832 -
1507834130

BTRH 342D

Increase, Decrease
Current Current
3,570,000.00 -
Decrease, eru_l
Translevred ln
Fiaed Assels Other
- AINERN
3906.526.00 38.600.00
1490714360 30851400

Ending
Balance

3,570,000.00

Reason

Useless. The recoverable
amount is lower than
the @rrying amount.

of fund Progress

049472746 Loans seifinanang  Uncompleled
33213169713  Loam, selfmanding  Uncompleted
WNL7AB Loam,s_dl-ﬁnandng Uncompleted

45,733,33080
27,790,000.00
B 7644800

15,685.40832
1527834130

W3R 80

selFinandng  Uncompleted
silfinancng  Uncompleted
seil-finandng  Uncompieted

selHinandng  Uncompleted
selifinancing  Uncompleted

sellfinanging  Uncompleled
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(Prepurerd in accordonee with PRC Arrounting Regulation!
Yeor emted 37 Peeeniber 2001

Notes to the Financial Statements

Explanations to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

10. Constrt tion-In-Progress (Cont’d)

Projects

Modfication of A34 . 3FE into BB22
Modification of AM ! 3FE into B2383
Madiiaion of AW 3 ino BZ390
Flight Buiiding

Modificstion of A34: 3FE into 82364
firrafi Appiiance 1 irehouse

No. 3 Lochus, Milk 1y Police

M Apanmenss

Barage for Special' hides
Rirport Land

Gange

Overhau! of Easter. Ajr Marsion
Garbage Dpasat | : Nzt

Specal Garge P

Warehouse

Hearaly Capady noresse Project
Others (33 iterms)

Yota!

beginniny
Balance

2,000,000.00

4,360,00000
304496595
292740701

289176172

1,340,000.00
381657397
859,354,110.9¢

Increase,
Crrent Decrease, (ortett
Trademed »

Fiaed Kssets e
127640930 - -
170674648 - -
T8N R T -
4760,000.00 . -
601336565 - -
3,800,000.00 - -
£3,104.00 - .
49381000 - -
3850500 - -
3.233,754:50 - -
30208878 - -
555,00 - -
me - -
26281585 . -
157060658 - RIINA  BIRIKST
15M,650,998.08 43,603,543 326,164,552.57

1276005930
770614645
71R84132
676000000
£.019.365.63
£360,000.00
3,800,000
36809995
32
324950500
17550
30842
2803672
2.730,00000
261281585
1,340,00000
SE0IMS
134,276 612.14

sefffinancing
selHimancing
idf-ﬁnandng
sfinangng
salf-Gnancing
setffinenging
selinanding
self-financing
seflfinancing
selHinanding
selHinancing
selHinangng
seif4inandng
el financing
selHinancing
selifnancing
#f-financing

Uncompleled
Uncompleted
Unrompleled
Uncompleted
Uncomplend
Uncompicied
Untompieted
Uncompleted
Uncompleted
Uncompleted
Untompleted
Uncompleled
Uncompleted
Uncompleted
Umumpkltd
Uncompletad
Uncompleted
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Notes to the Fi-ancial Statements

(Preparcd in aecurdn ce with PRC Accunnting Keguintions
Year ended 31 Dece ber 200

V. Explanailoné to Main items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)

10. Constriction-In-Progress (Cont'd)

Including: Cipitalized interests

Beginning increase, Amortization, Ending
Project Balance Current Current Balance
Advance pay "1ént for A340 aircraft 5840909.74  33,709,659.74 - 39.550,569.48
advance pay-1ent for A320 aircraft 2008499587  13.695,146.32  42,780,142.19 -
Advance pay ient for B737 aircraft 5 348476481 - 3,404,764.81
Pudong Base - 2378,169.51 - 23786951
Total 34,925,905.61 53,187,74038 42,780,142.19  45,333,503.80
Provision for mpaitment of construction-in-progress
i Beginning increase, Dearease Ending
Project T Balance Current Current Balance  Reason
Xiamen Interational 10,000,000.00 - — 10,000,000.00  Collateralized. The costis
Travel Buitling i abave ﬁer realizable
valye.
11. Intang:ble Assets
hitial Beginaing owe, Tk Mlmlnn. Eadig  Amartizalion Reasivisy  Acuisition
Glagory Aol Rbec Corest  Out, (orest Correat Bhine  Amxmulated Yers  blethods
L2nd use righ TIIATLS GBA91700 48083517 NIRM0N 303580 1677950008 9Z11525245 10-88monhs (mested,
Purchased
Premse e fighl 4079500 14750082 - - 43550 035N 8 MIMB 10-BImontls dnvesied,
Putchased
Others 117716800 - 111649 - 10793000 1,131,749 W5430.01 10~B8monthk  Invexted,
Purthased
Total 161,419,065 878,566,657.00 4300019016 41,279,600.00 . 2R455,441.08 1,260,854 50688  $2.545,060.64

139




Notes to the Financial Statements

Prepgred ur aecordance with PRC Accounting Revuloiogy

Year endied 31 Deceméer Qo1

Explanati: ns to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)
11. Intangil: fe Assets (Cont’d)

The name of t12 registered company on fand use right certificate of Shanghai Hongaiao Airpart and Anhui Luogang Airport is
still astern Al:line Group Company (the net book value of this asset 25 at the end of 2001 is RMB 336,5]0.&36.86). Eastern
Airline Group . 3mpany is applying for approval from relevant government authority about the transfer procedure of the land
use right. Befai s the completion of this procedure, the Company has restricted right in the transler or coliateral of this asset for
the registered :ompany on the land use right-certificate is shill Eastern Airling Group Company. But it will not influence the
occupation art: use of the land. The Company does niot think this will-have any significant influence on the financial condition
of the Company.

12. Long-te: m Expenses to be Amortized

laititl Peviod Babisee looemse,  Amertimben,  Amorization Eading
fiems fnial kmowst * Amortizatien Besinaing Corrend Gorel  Acwmalated Balanct
Organization fxpens § 85672734 SERVZN EBIIN GHMSAEDB BRIV -
unfiorms Cos 3IBN6S - TSRS UIBEN 2NN 18,568525.05
Customs Dutisanl ATon At~
Hedundes Openinglexe 18996635776 123 months 43610151 - RTINS IMAROETS 651830000
Supevision Charge. n Akt with : o
Tax Reduction 002566 Wyas 4844205 - 305,03 64 14301820 ,%45,11841
intevestlor Aircral | msing §1050,666.27 Sy 1750180476 - TSNBNTE 610586662 -
Fying Crow Trami . Bxpenses €9,646,000.00 dpars M2RHN00 IS  BIMEMET  IENM0ST  BIIBASM
A0 Modification'. penses M.2964.3 Syes  DMEITAD  MASHL6  GESMBA AN 6063636
Other Deferrad Exy. nsts 2URBS NG0B 67N 3583380090
Total 1446320583 9ITLLAT 9395588718 13045734112
13. Short-(>rm Loans
Category _ Ending Balance Beglnning Balance
Guarantee L¢ ins 982,641,751.70 200,000,000.00
Credit Loans 300,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Total 1,282,641,751.70 600,000,000,00
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Notes to the Fin:ncial Statements

Preppred urnccordmn. c with PRC Arcouning Regulainns:
yenr ended 31 Uccemer 2001

Explanatisns to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

14. Accoun i Payable

Accounts paya. le refer to those amounts payable to other airline companics, which have been bilied but unsettied yet and the
amounts paya ke for purchase of aviation equipment. The ending balance is RMB 251,391,559.30. There is no amount due
from parties wii0 hold more than 5% of the Company's shares.

15. Interna‘ional Safes in Advance of Carriage

<Internationa. Sales in Advance of Carmage> refers to the amount éending settlement resulting from the sale of passenger,
cargo, mail an:! over-weighted luggage tickets for intemational routes, On receipt of evidence of transportation provided by
the Company .r other airfines, the amount is then transferred to revenue or accounts payable respectively. <intemational
Sales in Advan:e of Carriage> has an ending credit balance of RMB 538.731.989.20.

16. Domest'c Sales in Advance of Carriage

<D.0mestic Sa = in Advance of Garriage> refers to the amounts pending settiement resulting from the saje of passenger,
cargo, mail ar | over-weighted luggage tickets tor domestic routes. On receipt of the evidence of transpartation from the
Company or a:1er airlines, the dmount-is then transferred to revenue or accounts payable respectively. <Domestic Sales in

" Advance of Ca- iage> has and ending credit balance of RMB 119,631,651.17.

17. Divider:| payable
The yeir-end t:3lance is RMB 97,339,000, which is the cash dividend payable this year.‘

18. Tax Pay 1ble -

Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Income tax 84,705,366.97 69,150,789.29
Business &x 45.216,696.64 39.371,265.85
City constructi'n tax 3,265,116.08 2,979,801.89
value added t:« 20,179,599.25 (1,652,796.13)
Others 4,220,832.50 3,669,576.80
Total 157,587,611.44 113,518,637.70

19. Civil Av ation Infrastructure Levies Payable

The civit aviati n infrastructure levies are charged at a certain percentage on the revenue and are payable to CAAC. The yea-

end balancei RMB 242,681222.73.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Prepaeed in accordance witdt PRC Accuinvng Regilariom.
Yeor cuded 31 Deeener it

Explanatiuns to Main items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)
20. Other P yable .

Ending Balance
663.820,457.33

Beginning Balarce
564,559,146.57

The ending ba ince is RMB 683,820,457.33, of-which RMB 34,605,037.79 is due t6 Eastemn Air Group Compay, a shareholder
holding over 5: of the Company's share capital. The balance of other payable with an aging of over 3 years js RMB 7,786,749.91, all

* of which is dex: osit from agents for tickets,

21. Accrued Expenses

22, Accruce:! Liability

Iters - E'nding Balance Beginning Balance Reason of Accrual
-Accrued inten: it on Aircraft under Finandial Lease 129,518,091.66 141,431,624:31  Accrued but not paid
. Aircraft Operz ling Lease Obligation o 28,003,985.38 4459932032 Accrued but not paid
‘ pverﬁiul Exp{ 1ses of Aircraft Engifies 1.655.562,570.18 ‘867 ,241,058.41  Accrued but not paid
' Taking-off & 1.inding Charges 371,787,149.00 277,882,674.86  Accrued but not paid
Aircraft Fuel 162,609,835.91 234,674,562.48  Accrued but not paid
Food and Bev' rage 79,344,348.53 39,950,311.04 Acgued but not paid
Insurance Pré1nium on Aircraft 3;87.97237 1,560,380.00 Accrued but not paid
OfF- Port Info- nation Expense 20,663,272.88 29,546294.70  Accrued but not paid
Flight Trainin_ Expenses 2,441,386.50 448,704.00  Accrued but not paid
Aying Hours!-penses - 8,664,909.48 6,996,926.85 Acaued but not paid
Others 3,928,44022 42,891,90595 Accrued but not paid
Total 1,866,512,662.11 1,787,223,762.92

The year-cnd :alance of accrued liability is RMB 4,546,797.00. The Company took part in the construction of Xiamen Intemational
Travel Buildi - g (the Company was responsible for 50% of the tonstruction), which was later pledged as collateral for loans by
the other par y. Later the other party had ao ability to repay principal and interest so the court ruled that the Company should
undertake t1 - joint responsibility. The balance is the amount of principal and interest thal should be born by the Company
according to * he verdict of court.
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Notes to the Finincial Statements

Prepared in occosdin o with PRC Artcounhing Regintons;
Yeur endea 31 Decenoser 2007

V. Explanations to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)

23. Currem Portion of Long-term Ligbilities

Ending Balance Maturity Credit form Beginning Balance

Current Portit 1 of Long-term Account Payable 2,844.416,833,.25 1,751,328,246.77
Current Porti¢ 1 of Long-term Leans 100,600,000.00 2002  Guarantee ' -
Current Portir 1 of Amount Payable due to ) )

Assets Trani'er 30,009,000.00 -
Total 2,974,416,83335 . 1,751,328,246.77

24. longde.m Loans

Type . T : " EndingBatance  Beginning Balance

 Collateralized - o 855,690,569.88 -
Guaranteed T 1,900,000,000.00 1,700,000,000.00
Credit _ L ‘ 450,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Total : - 3,205,690,568.88  2,100,000,000.00

The balance a: long-term loans is RMB 1,105,630,568.88 more than last year, which is mainly the new loans for the projects of
"Pudong Base,1nd the advance payment for sircraft.

25. Long-té:m Account Payable

tem . Ending Balance
Accounts payd bile for fixed assets held under financial lease (1) 9,021,810,379.06
Accounts pays e to China Givil Aviation Flight Institute (2) ' 210,000,000.00
Tota! ' ' 9,231,810,379.06

(1) Theendi g balance of accounts payable for fixed assets held under financial lease is RMB 9,021,810,379.06, which is
payable .o financial lease companies for aircraft held under financial lease agreement. The balance includes
USD 860 )01,265.77 translated al the exchange rate of @ 8.2766; DEM 195,787,762.82, transiated at @3.7415;
iPY 18,5¢ ,921,089.00, transiated at @0.063005.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

sEnpared inarcssduioe wath PRE Acgotaling Resulatinns,

Yeur ended 31 Uecember 21407

Explanatians to Main items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

25. Long-ten.s Account Payable (Cont’d)

2) The Comp, 1y bought the assets of Great Wall Airlines Co., which was under the jurisdiction of China Civil Aviation Flight
institute, 2: a price of RMB 270 million. According to the transfer agreement, the Company will pay in installmentsin 9

years starti1g from june this year.

26. Share C¢ vital

. Unlisted § ares

1. Sponsors’ thares
Induding
State-owr: d Shares

2, Subscribe: Legal Person Shares

3. Intemnal §:3ff Shares
Total Uniisted Shares
I, Listed Shi es

1. Domesticilly Usted RMB Common Shares

2 Domestic:/ly Listed Foreign Invested Shares

3. Qverseas..isted Foreign Invested Shares

Yotal Listed §:ares
N Total Caf-tal Shares

27. Capital teserve

Item

Premium on Shires

Reserve for Acgr1 sition of
Donated Ass¢!3

Reserve for Assi * Revaluation
increment

Capital Translal sn Difference of
Investee Con Janies

Reserve fof (nv iment

Gther Capital § rplus Translerred In

Yotal

Beginning _BS'lance Change, Current Ending Balance
3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

300,000,000 300,000,000

1,566,950,000 1,566,950,000

1,866,950,000 1,866,950,000

4,866,950,000 4,866,950,000

Sepinning increase, Decrease, Ending
Ralanee Current CGurent Ralance
954,456,511.50 - - 954,456,511.50
1,256,468.96 - 1,256,468.96 -
283,412 24460 299,130.00  40,004.85243  Note? 24361652217
28,749,778.68 - - 28,749,778.68
- 978,229 90 - . 97822990
180,079,184.49 41944,92578  187.052,778.06 Note2 35,011,332
1,447,954,388.23 43,262,785,68 228,404,039.45 1,262,812374.46

L e T
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Notes to the Finincial Statements

rrepered i nrcontun with PR Accourntting Reprdntions:
Yenir cuded 31 Decemy e 2001

V. Explanations to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

27. Capital ‘eserve {Cont’d)

Note 1. The (nrrent decrease of <Capital Surplus-Reserve for Asset Revaluation Increrment> mainly refers to the amortization
of as» st evaluation increment of RMB 400,948,524.29 formed during the restrycturing of the Company for public
listin; . From year 1998, the balance is to be amortized evenly over a pericd of 10 years into < Capital Surplus-Other
Capit | Surplus Transferred In>.

" Note2: The . srrent decrease of <Capital Surplus-Other Capital Surpius Transferred In> refers to the reversal by public -

houy. g fund. According to the resolution of Shareholders' Meeting. the beginning balance of public housing fund
shall irst reverse Surplus Reserve and the diflerence will reverse @pital surplus.

28. Surplus Qeserve

Reginning Increase, Decrease, Ending
tem Balance Current Current Balance
Statuary Surph : Reserve Fund 132,528,90039 1,680,597.37 11531127672  18898.221.4
Pubiic Welfare I'und R X 98,617,342.62 1,680,597.37 81,399,718.95 18,898,221.04
Discretionary $:irplus Reserve Fund - -8,038,301.83 - 8,038,301.63 -
Total - 239,184,544.84  3,361,194.74  204,749,287.50 37,796,442.08

The current de 1 rease of surplus reserve refers to reversal by the beginning balance of public housing fund accofding to the
resolution of § areholders’ Meeting.

29, Undistd suted Profit

Beginning Baii e 52.459,098.41
Less: Retrospet: ive Adjustment of Provision for Impairment of Construction-in-progress 10,000,000.00
Less: Insufficie cy of Capital Reserve to Reverse Public Welfare Fund of Subsidiaries B63,665.92
Beginning Bali 1ce after Adjustment 41,595,432.49
Add: Profit, Cu. rent ; 132.919,443.31
Less; Appropni-.ion of Surplus Reserve 3361,194.74

Dividend of Comman Shares Payable ' 97,339,000.00
Ending Balant . 73.814,681.06




Notes to the Financial Statements

Tiepeied waccordanee witl PRC Accopnimg Regidins
Yeur ¢uded 31 Deeanben 2000

Explanatic ns to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

29, Undistri uted Profit (Cont'd)

The profit thisyrar will be used to compensate the losses of 1998. The appropriation of surplus reserve is made by China Cargo
Airlines Co., Lte., a subsidiary included in the consolidalion scope. According to 2 resolution of the second :egular meeting of
the third Board Jf Directors in 2002, the Company would distribute a 8.2-yuan aash dividend {tax indusive) for every 10 shares
held (0 21l shar. holders. The appropriation of total distributable profit rolled from priar years is RM8 97,339,000.

30. Principd ! Operation Revenue -

Gtegary _ Year2001 Year 2000
Domestic routy Passenger 5,275,865,570.12 4,277,401.266.78
Cargo 233,606,774.54 259,424,680.86
Charter 224,800.320.17 140,079,412.40
Subtotal 5,734,272,664.83 4,676,905,360.04
International r ute  Passenger 3,009,924,864.85  3,051361918.47
Cargo 1,671,555.627.47 1,717,153.430.85
Charter 65,658,603.09 68,109,056.52
Subtotal - 47A7,130,095.44 483712440584
Regional route Passenger 2,019,820,322.02 1,935,939,614.87
Cargo 233,943,358.95 234,081,671.15
Charter 3,593,843.17 5,604,300.97
Subtotal 2,257,362,524.14 2,175,625,566.93
Agent fee inca 1 88,938,533.33 128,167,130.90
Training incormi2 11,626,471.05 3.915,663.23
Total ' 12,839,339,288.79  11.621.756,147.00

The revenue ¢/ tap five dients totals RMB 299.267,455.00, representing 2.33% of the total principal operation revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

wrepnied m accndhine Wit PRU Agenputing Renulot ony

Year ended 20 Diocem cr Q010

Explanatiins to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)

31. Principif Operation Cost

[tem

Direct Operating Expenses

including: Saly ies & Bonus
welfare
Uniforms Jost
Aircraft fi. el
Amortiza’ on of Aviation Consumables,
Amortiza on of High-price Rotables
Deprecia on of Engines
Repair of ingines
Insurang: Premium of Engines
Charges + Operating Lease
Taking-oli &Landing Fee ‘
Food & B:verage s
Flight Tr: ning Expenses
Indemnnil: of Luggage
Others

indirect Operaiing Expenses

General Aviatran Cost

Total

Year 2001

9,187,502,108.64
304,209,760.84
41,665,562.00
5,711,434.15

" 2,612,540,205.58

111,543,804.44
530,286,319.45
1,287,876,512.67
741,431,825.56

" 60,127,336.04
972,157,501.09
1,702,398,013.70
569,600,358.21
58,222,704.50
3,363,148.98
175,867,621.43
707,830,611.81
347,299.94
9,895,680,220.39

Year 2000

8,524,789,201.14

266,559,420.91
37,539,523.57
5,027,293.64
2,328,802361.15
113,872,522 69
442,608.955.12
1,556,484,708.60
619,628.030.26
57,339,25142
772,497 812,02
1,565,096,982.59
498,342,853.63
£3,934,502.33
3245,804.40
193.200,178.81
$94,670,517.80
(114.840.19)
9,119,3¢4,878.75
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1Prepared i accordunee witlh PRC Accounting Regule it
Year cnded 21 {deeember 2007

Explanatio'is to Main items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)
32. Other Op:ration Profit

Year 2001 Year 2000

Dther ot Other Other Costand Otper

Dperation and Taxes Opeiztion Openation Toxcs Openation

Item Income incurred Profit Income incurredf profit
Matesial Transfer CAGETIRTE  RAEASIAT . IITEAN  ATMZESS  TSVTMT B1575208)
Lommission and Fel 1066775 IBVAL 9EEIIS  NTIGA . 2% 110368R
Ground Service 4507279030 TEITIALAG CMEINIEA  BEIRAMM  TMAIBG  TRINLNG
ircrah Sub-ease 1963676014 93I4I7L6 10R00L41R10  TI6IMASEZ  IOTEOHR 1SS0
Fuel Mdditinal TH1I51.06 25308506 L0600 MS14079E5 231060975  61503,463.90
Others MAAEI5E 469528815 GSMEAD  104SIENE0  OTHEHI6 (00INSH)
Tetal THAD27AAD  210360397.04 SAIOTONT6S6  GRAAM  USKONLTS  ISTOIB2NE

The income fror: aircraft sub-iease has increased due to the increase of business volume of aircraft operating Jease.

The income from ground service has increased due to the increase of airlines and fiights for them the Company provides
ground service 7 :. well as the intrease of cargo treatment and ground service business volume,

33. Financia. Expense

i
hem Year 2001 Year 2000 E
Interest Expenst 916,161,454.66 95927504025 {
Less: Interest In:yme 78,968,249.81 90,050,628 22 ’
Exchange Loss 31,143,057,54 8,622217.78 i
Less; Exchange 1;3ins 173.291,160.98  133.098,734.3) :
Others 4,676,902.51 363078922 §
Total 699,722,003.92  748,378,024.62




Notes to the Finincial Statements

(Prepured m necordme with PRU Accounling Reaolalions:
Year anded 31 Decoent e 2001

V. Explanatiiins to Main ltems of Financial Statements {Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)

34. Investm:nt Income

Hem Year 2001 Year 2000
Bond investme:«t 37,354,688.77 34,579,176,06
Ltease investme:it 5,649,431.54 13,992,869.22
Other Equity In+ estment 13,320,528.17 3,726487.02
Current Investr" ent 971,863.10 1,540,813.75
Total 57,296,511.88 53,839,446.05
35. Non-ope.ating Income

tem ~ Year 2001 Year 2000
Net Gains on U posal of Fixed Assets 18,128,464.28 262,810,393.21
Penatty Incom: ) 2,939,939.96 223797315
Aircraft Lease 3 mmination Fee "~ 0.00 13,652,571.34
Others ' 12,243,975.36 2,557,871.68
Total 33,312,379.60 281,258,809.38
36. Non-operating Expenses

item Year 2001 Year 2000
Net Loss on Dis. osal of Fixed Assets 11,706,036.58 14,062,243.76
Penalties 1,570,182.50 1,480,086.31
Donation 668,359.77 269,00320
Aircraft Lease T mination Charge 19,057,766.57 -
Asset Collateralxpense 6,546,797.00 -
Provisian for I sairment of Fixed Assers 3,570,000.00 -
Others 5,140,673.24 4,936,687.38
Total 48,259,815.66 20,748.110.65

The non-operal 1g expenses have increased by 132.60% compared with last year, mainly becavse of the aircraft lease termination

tharge.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Prepared in accoraniice with PRE Accaunning Regulationy)

Year ended 31 Dccember 2001

Explanauo; J to: Mam !tems of Fmanclal Statemgnts Unit: RMB) (c:mt'd)
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Notes to the Finincial Statements

{Prepared in accordan: s with PRC Accowting Regitlarions)
- Year ended 31 Decen ser 2001

. R
PRE A

S
v
.

within 1 Year WA . 2B apmdes L 507 40oTReE

Inthe Secand Ye WTORTNI0. | 1045 DS . IW2BE . - W7 118828632
In the Third Yea 148,692,500.60 M0 B3R 0NAR® 142 3SR
In the Fourth Ye - 10,069,055.58 143 35iBWIS] 6152148604 200 1080033565
In the Ffth Year 7,009,851.67 039 140197033 548043300 071 1,09608660
After 5 Years 3452421398 40 44743873 6N 405 2283248686
Total 704,591,202.31 100.00 74,451,15246 769,320,081.78 100.00 58,119,980.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements

{Prggrired i eeeordonce with PRC Accopmting Reduloiions;
Yerr endea 3¢ December 2001

Explanations to Main ltems of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont’ d)

38. Main ltev1s to Financial Statemenb' of the Parent Company (Cont'd)

(2) Other Rece rabie (Cont'd)

Among the abo 2, the first 5 companies with largest amount due to the Company are as follows:

+

Company - Qulstanding Balance Time Reason
CFM Internationa incorporated 201130,843.22 2000-2001  Discount for purchasing flight equipment
Shanghai Eastem +.r Catering Co., Ld. | 3000000000 - 199 Payments of construction projects

. People's Insuran¢ Company of China B.QSD.??O.?S ' “1998-1993 Compensation recefvable
The Air CEA (Cay.in) Ca., 4d, 17,718,052.04 200 Reimbursement o aicrat lease
Customs 15,000,000.00 20 - Deposit
Total 287,499,666.19

The above 5 cor panies owe a toral amount of RMB 287,499,666.19, which is40.80% of the ending balance:

Among the deb:ors, Eastern Air- Group Company, which holds over 5% of the Company's share capnal has an amount of

RMB 638,484.5¢ due to the Campany,

The special pron sion for bad debts is made for the following companies:

Company Amoant Aging  Percentage Reasons
Eastern Airlines (ndustrial Co., Ltd, 6,237,037.58  Above Syears 100% Dispute
Finance Dept. .\AC 676278339  Above Syears 100% Dispute
lincheng Group 10,000,000.00 1-2 years 100% Joint guarantee obligation
Others 21,492,325.43
Total 44,512,146.40
{3) Llong-term | quity Investment
Beginning Balance Ending Balance

Provisios for Inarease, Decrease, Provision for
{lem Amount Loss Current Curreot Amovnt Loss
Securities invesin *at - - - - - -
Other Equity v tment 1,026,884 826.74 —  161,80407183 41,600907.60  1.147.087,991.02 -
Total . 1,026,884,826.74 =  161,804,071.88 41,600,907.60 1,147,087,991.02 -
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Notes to the Fin ancial Statements

wPreptred i arcordon e with PRE Accointing Regulitions)
year ended 31 Decew aer 2001

V. i Explanations to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: .‘RMB) (Cont’d)

38. Main Il:ms to Fmanaal Statements of the Parent Campany (Cont'd)

&)} Long—tern Eguity Investment (Cont'd) .
a. Other eqn. ty-investment
() Investme- s to subsidiary

_ bovstvenl " adg
" astern Aisioes Jod » Gal G, L. RBAAA 0000 39606000
QL b A Gl g, NSES  REEIE 1Y
@bl W WIGEEN THARS

Swoguifawen uToogld SR | JATOLN0N - DBIEH
'\ GGt 6. war - Smonm @S
ol BODISITIR 99537458749

(i) ~.'1nvéd'ne1::1lz7asocianédfcompany' -

Shanghai Easem Ui Avallon Wheek & WY . GSTBNE  ZIA
" Brakes Overhaul B neeing o.

Yanti Eastem A Gaf: ing 0. 10 R JMO00K 963901
Eagem China Ko § i negation o, L, 15995 HODK  43NSRH
Shanghai Hongou O \rpust onmunicaon 20005 TS000000  TASARD
(o, 1. '

Easem A Growp i1 €2, U8 WM GIAMLE  TOGIEE
Toal : 124,622,380

10840353

K ikReged

il

- Belmmee

o
i
N

gl

%

LIRS 31651976

Qurgrin  Comgein  Coh
Owse's - Owmers  Dividesd
Cumalative Comest  Caerent
0260 BBMEST WIS
| GEAWS) O6RR2IATS -
(151860426) 188583039 -
WIBINH  16H5IAN -
NSIITABT 2726652 147,630.65
Gupa  Oorpin ad
Gemer's  Oweer's  Dividesd
ﬁt" hi"- Received
WIR0E0N 3BT 260000000
O63%M  ZeoN3 1600000
IBS0A  201E00  74K000
(T (105,0416) -

HMET0356 S,20239361 347600000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IPrepared 1y gcordanen, with PRC Aceouninig Regulations:
Yeur ended 31 December 2001

V. ' Explanatig s to Ma‘in ltems of Fi‘panéial‘ Statements {Unit: RMB) (Cont’d)

38. Main fteus to Finaricial Statements of the Parent Company.font'd)

(3) Longterm I:quity Investment {Contd)-

a. Otherequl./ investment (Cont'd)
(i) - Other equit investriénts
PR

oL lm
- Name-of the taved . Cotpany Peried
OMCInformation b tworkCo, Led. - 2001f5-

(iv} - Equity Inve: tment Difference

Irvesied Comany

Eastern Airiné G101 1+ Finangial Co.,:L'la. ) S5

@ @éwieml :lebt investment

- Bond-Investmeiit
Lease Investmen!
Total

Bond imvestmets!
Type of Bonds

- Par Valve ;
Interest Rate pt Annum
Acquisition Cos
Maturity Date
Interest Receiv: e, Beginning
interest Accruen Cutrent
interest Receiv. e, Ending
Ending Balana

’
%t

O el Goein Gange.

L g thelveed  OwnersEgeli, OwaersEquly

" Amouit B3laace Company Comlalive Carrestt

09000000 " 4,090,000.00 046% 409000000 . 40900000

Period  Amcization, Period  Remaining Anowet Reason

70 yeds 55,8158 498436389 Purchasing stocks over

' . the book value

gng‘ﬁng Bafance  Beginning Balance .

501,722,616.34 454,454,834.72

- 81,266,702 15

501,722,616.34  545,721,596.87

US Treasury Zera Coupon Bonds

USD71,475.000.00

8.0435477%

USD27,810,207.00

February 2004

USD26.296,253.99

USD4,512,949.92

Us032,809.203.91

UsD60,619,410.91

gquivalent to ¥ 4B 501,722,616.34 at the excliange rate of @8.2766 prevailing at the end of year.

—
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Notes to the Fir 1ncial Statements

iPrepared in accordan. ¢ witl PRC Accoutting Resittations;

Year ended 31 Decen Ser 2001

. Category -

' (5} !nvgstmeltlnmme ‘

v

. Debt Investme. tIncome

Lease lnvesum 1t income

’ Other Equny |l restment |ncorne

Sh(m termny. trent incomie
Total

NG Principal” perating Revenue

A

;Déird:e'st'ic rqutc  Passenger
o " Gargo
'Charter
. Subtotal

'Intemational i te Passenger

Cargo
Charter
" Subtptal

Regional route,  Passenger

© Cargo
. Charter
‘ Subtotal
Agent fee
Total

. 38. Main IQ mrto Financial Statements of the Parem Company ftont’d)

Year 2001

© 37,354,688.77
3,549;43134
50,266,787.82
 971,863.10
94,242,771.53

Year 2001
4,674,148,544 41
 1m2973.277.24
: 95,371,792.07
4,962,493 313.72

' 3,004,250,996.77

670:901,217.89
" 25,779,333.95
3,700,931,548.51

©1892,172,057.80 .

215,411,939.85

- 2,328,843.17
2,110:412,840.82
62,216,246.68
10,836,053,949.83

The revenue tro 11op 5 companies is RMB 299,267,455.00, representing 2.76% of the total.

Explanatv ms to Main Items of Finandial Statemenits (Unit: RMB) (Cont'd)

Year 2000

34,579,176.06
13,992,869.22
113,310.414.81
1,540813.75
163.423.373.84

Year 2000

: 3781,33098334

224,540, 884,03
69.263,908.09
4,075,135.760.96
3,051,861.918.47

| 78452.22063

45,009,056.52
3,881,393,195.62
1,832,242,700.38
B1472,175.67
354,544.03
2.064,069,420.08
78,140,456.52
10,098,738.853.18




Notes to the Financial Statements

sPrepared ur aecordunce with PREC Arcpuning Reyulalivns)

Yeur ended 31 December 2001

 Explanatinns to Main Items of Financial Statements (Unit: RMB) (Cont d)

38. Main H:ms to Financial Statements of tﬁe Parent Company (Cont’d)

{7) Principal perating Cost

Direct Operati- g Expenses
Including: Salnries & Bonus
Welfare
Unifonﬁ! Cost
Aircraft el
Amartiza1ion of Aviation Consumables
Amonizz :ion of High-price Rotables
Deprecia: on of Engines
Repai} ol Engines
Insuranc: Premium of Engines
Charges ! Operating &Bing
Taking-0 & Landing Fee
Food & §.werage
FAight Tri ning Expenses
Indemni- of Luggage
Others '
Indirect Opery ing Expenses
General Aviath: n Cost
Total

Year 2001
7,677,548,356.73
258 ,052,485.60
36,067,948.44

| 5222,785.55
2,115,972,696.59
98,459,157.37
4564,152,043.20
1,153,602,642.65
617,688,072.84

| 49,161,228.93
705,915,430.45
1,418,916,840.27
523,815,579.73
83,126,482.75

3,129,397.57 .

133,365,564.19
631,186,391.54
347,299.94
8,309,081,958.21

Year 2000
7,371,124551.11
243,053,357.60
34,220207.39
5,260,396.68
1,909,433,890.96
103,915,791.50
421,900,867.75
1.401,014,182.20
586,865,198.66
51,988,158.96
566,877,054.56
1,332,048,995.69
466,431,559.35
80.644,257.10
2.991,03473
164,479,597.96
523,744,511.44
(114,840.19)
7,894,754 222 36
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Notes to Lhe Fin:ncial Statements

sFrepaicd i nccordam - wille PRE Accoimiing Revirlolions:
Yerrt engled 21 Deeepy 00 2000

v“

Related Pt rty Relationships and Tmnsactlons

1. Srtuatm'l.of Related Parties mth Cont!ol Rclauonshlp

m Re!ated pi ties with-control &e‘atmnshlp

Coonpary +Registered Adress
Eastern Alr Group, (oo 130y HonggroWest R,
Stangufasem i) Trinng (o, 18 * Waigpogoq Shnge
i u Eastem Ar(ate 1 g Co. id. Jiman-

Jimgs Easten il Traveling Agengy . Nanjirg

Easlern Aiffines (ndug - af Co., Ud, © Beijing

O Caro e . : Pukngherdrt
iangran Tourksm (Hel: ; Kong} Co. Hong Kang

(hira Eastern Airkines sngso Co., Uid. Nanfing

Exslem Airlmes Jiangs.. Mhvertsement (o, Manjing

Main Operations -
Managament of subsididry companies

Taining31 Myhgtrew antther saf

in d&ﬁmﬁﬁdnwith‘évhﬁoh

'Manufacnmngandsaleuliwd .
supp‘yol[oodandhevuagembml
. Twrﬁse;m,ﬂlsn!swymus
. -anghandal

. Solesof pacged oo beverage,

itwear, grocery

Aif trenspartation of @rgo and
Mails over domestic and
inmtinml air routes

. Twiistserv're

Ax mﬂmalm ol pasiengers,
m@ and oails pver domestic and
* approved imtemational air routes

Design of newsaaper, adverlsoment,
and presswork

" C L e
ety e ¢ Ll
Parent company  Sareuncy- - Yeian
sisdiy  nind Gably Yo Barghong
Subsidiary Limited {abky  ‘WangYunlong
Sisdary Uit G0y Hoa Desiang
Wy Linid bRy Gofaroong
ﬁb’gidién . Limited Liabfly - U Zhongming
Subsidiary - Uimited lﬁiiﬁfr SuGuoxin
wosday  Umded by S Gumin
Smdiay  Colediveom)  Yang janmin

Enferprise
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Vi

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Frepared i accoidnnce witli PRC Acenunting Keithyiions)
vear ended 3 Decombes 2000

Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

1. Situatiin of Related Parties with Control Relationship (Cont'd)

() Registere. capital and its movement of related parties with.control relationship

Beginning Increase, Decrease, Ending
Company Balance Current Current Balance
Eastern Air Gn. Jp Company 748,970,000 - - 748,970,000
shanghai East:rn Flight Training Co., Ltd. 358,000,000 - . - 358,000,000
Qi Lu Eastern *ir Catering Co. Ltd. ' 10,500,000 - - - 10,500,000
Jiangsu Easter- Airlines Traveling 1,500.000 . - 1,500,000

Agency Co., | 1d. )

Eastern Aidini - [ndustrial Co., Lid. 49,500,000 - - - 45,500,000
China Cargo A1 lines Co. Ltd. 500,000,000 - ‘ - 500,000,000
fiangnan Tow::m (Hong Kong) Co. 641100 - - 641,100
China Eastern'rdrlines fiangsu Co., Ud. 257,503,600 - - 257,503,600

Eastern Airling: Siangsu Advertisement Co. 300,000 - . - 300,000

@) Stock helil and its movement of related parﬁes with control relationship

Beginnlng Incease, Decrexse, Eading
: ' Bakauce Coent wrest Balance
Company Amourt % Amount % Amwmt % Ameint %
£astern Air Group ¢ pmpany 3,000,000,00000 62 - - — = 3,000,000,000.00
Shanghai Eastem.--ight Training Co., Utd. 1010000000 95 - - - - 301000000 %5
Qi v Eastem Avid: on Calering Co. B5E83B68 65 - - - - B 6
jiangsu Eastem Al ines Traveling Agency Ca., Lc. 82500000 385 - - - - 2500000 385
Eastem Alrlines I ustrial Ca, Ltd. 39,600,00000 80 - - - - 3960000000 80
tiina Cargo Aiit 5 Co. L. 35000000000 70 - - - - 33000000000 70
Jiangnan Tourist{- K)o IE500 55 - - - - DRS00 S5
China Eastem Al 1 fiangsu Co., LI, 1162698000 55 - - - - RN S5
astern Aiines i 1gsu Advertisement Co. 89333487 55 - - - - B33AE7 S

T
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Notes to the Fin.:ncial Statements

Prepored ur aceordene wilh PRU Accunnting Requintion'
vear ended $) Decem er 2001

VI. Related Piriy Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)
1. Siuatio’ of Related Parties with Control Relationship {Cont'd)

(4) Tramsactic. s with related parties with control relationship {Unit: RMB'000)
A Transactic amount with related parties
a.  Supply of 110d and beverage

Company Year 2001 Year 2000
Qi Lu Eastern A Catering Co. Ltd. - ‘ 6,426 4982
b. tease

The Company b-1ses an office building-frorn Eastern Aidj‘nc Group Company for a period of 50 years (frem January 1, 1999 to
January 1, 2049) The total rental is RMB 16 million; Theyeﬁtal and paymenl is slipulaled by the lease agreement signed on
December 31, 1:96 and is subject ta market condition. -

B. Amount di : from or to the related parties

Ending Balance  Beglnning Balance A

Account Receivi )¢ ;  EA Group ) 80
Other Receivabl: : EA Group ‘ . 638 186,710
Other Payable : EAGroup ‘ 34,605 153,789




Notes to Lthe Financial Statements

(Prepured it accordniice with PRC Accounting Redulntinm)
Year ended 31 December 2007

V. Related Farty Relationships and Transactions (Cont'd)

2. Sityatiin of Rg‘idted Parties without Control Relationship

Sﬁangha sq mi\wauarrEquapmentManufmunng(urpommu w . _'.'Same parent cdmpany»
Yk . : Same paient ;ompany
) K __ ‘Same parent company :

i L Sch parcnt company .

o N Same. parent company'

”' : iSﬁang\hm BorrmeMwahsn Comommn leltbd . Same parent company ;
famfn mterﬂ uanal Topfism Transportauon Co.. Ltd Same parentcompany
iastem (Zhou! han)’ Tourtsm lndusma1 development Company Same parent company '

: Shaashm-&asq n Umon Avratron'WheeIs &Brakes Overhau! Engmeenng Co. Subsidiary 3
Shanghal th ' Matnm Dongda lndustnal Co. Same-parent company
Shanghan fasli A Real- Btake Mapagement (;u. Same parent company
Eastern Autormblle Rppan‘ ww!s Same parent company i

- :
| 3

(1) Nature ol relation with related parties without cantrol retationship

'- t@éba—v'

-

. Relatice with the Company
‘Eastem ﬂv:atn b3 lmport and Export Company Same parent company
Shanghai Ehs\ m Alr Industrla1 Corporanon Same parert company
Omgdao Nr 9 vice Co., Ltd ‘ Same parent comparny
Eastern ernup F‘nam:eCn Atd. Same parent company
Shanshdl Ehsq rn Real EstateOperatuon .. Séme parent company

Shanghat EZS!J m NrCamnng Co.. i4d.
Shanghan Easq M Generzl Servlce Co. o
Eaatem (Shav 'l"u}Emnmuic‘DevelopmentCn A4d.

Same parent company-
Same pafent campany

‘Same parent campany




Notes to the Fin ncial Statements

Prepared in aeeordme: with PRC Atemntung Regulalions
Year énded 31 Decent er 2001

VI. Related P: rty Relatlonshlps and TranSactlons (Cont’d)

e 'A. Purchase . . ; ; ; p,
The breakdm of purchase- of‘ﬁxed assets fhght eqmpmmt rfood and'bewageﬁy-meﬁom
follows. T

' ,Company h
Shanghai- Easad Al |ndustnai Corporatmn
angdao NrSg fce:Co. ,L‘td— ' -

Shanghat' Eastd nA1r Catermg Co Ltd:

fastern’ (Shantl' )Economu: Development O:.,‘L{d

Easten Awahd Advq‘ksmg Sg'mce Co i
: Shangha: Easte°n Umom\watlon Wheels & Bnkﬁ@verhaulfngmeenng Co.:

Shanghaufaste n Awatxon Equapment Manu'facmnng Cnraeremcm

B. Receipt of : efvice ~ . .
- The breakdowu ol semces received bythe Company from rzlared partues isas folk)ws

Company

Eastern Avialiai: [mpon and: Exponr.ompany
Shanghai Eastd 1V Ar lndustrlal (prporanon )
Shanghiai Easté_ 1 RealB_mtg QD.eratlo_h {o. o
Shanghai Easte: 1 General Service Co.

Shanghai Aviatin Printing Co., [1d.

Eastern Aviation Advertising Service Co.

i
|




VI

Notes to the Financial Statements

sPrepmed ur areondgnce with FRC AL Oiing Regulotions:
Vear cidkd 3¢ December 2001

. Related P: rty Relationships and Transactions (Cont'd)

2, Situatio" of Related Parties without Control Relationship {Cont'd)

(2) Amount gi telated party transactions without cantrol relationship {(Unit: RMB'000) (Cont'd)
C  Llease

s

"The cbmpany. .aid a rental of RMB 4,461 thousand to Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation for
. thegass.of bu- dings and equipment.

D. Provision:: F fund -

IHe.placemeu of depasit by the Company in Eastern Air Group Fimance Co., Ltd. generated interest income of RMB 2,290
thousand in 2¢ )1. The Company borrowed RMB 56 millior; from Eaétern Air Groub Finance Co., Ltd. and paid an interest of
RMB 1,268 the sand this year.

£. Amountsiue to or from the related parties

Accounts receir ible

* Company T Dec 31, 2001 Dec. 31, 2000
 Shanghai Easte:n Development Co. - - 10,120 : 15,501
Shanghai Toun: m (Hong Kong) Co, Ltd. 26,568 37,614
‘ S_ha;iéhai:pdhjunei Aviation Corporation Limited 25,886 16,872
-E;s&:m Interni jonal Tourism Transpartation Co., Ltd. : 14,852 23,109
€agtern (Zhous - an) Tourism industrial development Company 5,555 5.4.15
Shanghai Travi- Service (Hong Kang) Co.. Utd. 92,585 67,598
Shanghai:Civil 'viation Dongda Industrial Co. 1,447 -

Accounts payal e

Company | Dee. 31, 2001 Dec. 31, 2000
Eastern Aviatiar Import and Export Cbrnpany 179,514 28,781
Shanghai East¢in Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes Overhaul Engineering Co. ~ 13,608
Shanghai Easte  n Air Industrial Corporation. : - 337
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Notes to the Financial Statements

repiredd i nceordrne @ with PRC Aceounting Regulationy,
Yoo ended 31 Decerr oy 2001

Vi

Related Purty Relationships and Transactions {Cont'd).-

2. Situati¢ 1 of Related Parties without Cantrol R'elationship'{font’d}-i

{2) Amounty related party transacnons withoutcontrol relatianship (Unrt RMBOOO) (Contd)
E. Amounts : ue to or from the related pames (Contd) '
Other receival ie

Company

Eastern Aviati¢ 1 import and Export Company
Eastern Aviati¢ 1 Advertising Serviee Co.
Shanghai Easti: m Air Industrial Corporation .
Shanghai Easti- n Air Catering Co,, 11d. . ' . N
Shanghai Easti n Air Real Estate Management Co. . o

Advantes to supplies

Company ‘

Shanghai East n Aviation Equipment Mahufa&unng Comuratmn

Shanghat Eastt n Union Aviation Wheels & Brakes Ovcrham Engmeenng co. ‘
Eastern Aviatia:: Impart and Export Company

Other payable A . ;5

Company

Eastern Aviatio: import and Export Company

Shanghai East¢in Air Industrial Corporation. '

Shanghai East¢1n General Service Co. co
Shanghai Eastéin Air Catenng Co., L1d.

Eastern Amon‘i: bile Repair Warks ) . ‘ :
Shanghai Easte 'n Air Real Estate Management Co. 3,6&2 ‘ B — S

(3) Other relz 2d party transactions
Emoluments f . key management personnel (Unit: RMB'000)

Dec. 31, 2001 Dec 31, 2000
Number of key management personnel 9 18’
1,028 987

Emoluments
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Preporeq iv uccordance with PRC Areonning Reguieiion.
“year eniled 31 De¢entber 200

(ommntment and chtmgent Events

1. Caprtq Expendzture Cammrtment

(1) qucbn -oanysigned' an agreement wnh an mdependem thud party that the Company would purchase four Boeing 737-
27009 np lanes R:ur arrplanes areto. be delivered in 2002 .

4

< '-f#) Tﬁa Coﬂxaany sagned an agreement with. an |ndevmdent¢hlrdpany that the company would purchase five A340 Airbus
o eamrani ihsearrplanes are h be delivered in 2003 and 2004

‘Somhca ;nsm from?he saie nfasr tickets even aherrcpawng forelgn cwrency Ilabulmes such asﬁnanaal lease liabilities.
! Cnnsn:ié ngt}?e oannnumg devaluanan and mstabzlnyuf politics and economy.of this area, the Company estimated that
woulq probatﬂy fa:e grear fareign excnange risk. Tg Jower this risk, the Company has signed many forward foreign
exc{aam connacts wnhdbmstrc bankli in 2001. Aczondmgm t.hesecontraas the Company wili exchange Japanese Yen
and KRJ {curre;aq of" Scurh Korea) for UsD ata ﬁxed exchange rate from 2002 to 2006, By December 31, 2001, the
Compaq' still:bas thé followmg forward comracts:

Exchange JPY for USD  Exchange KRW for USD Total
Maturity USD’000 uSD'000 UsD’000
2002 - 10,000 10,000
2003 . - — -
2004 12,000 - 12,000
2008 , 12,000 - 12,000
2006 12:000 oo ::'z::
Total 36,000 e '
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Notes to the Fin: 1cial Statements

iPeepnsed i acenedanc with PRC Accounting Regulations
Year ended 31 Decemd o0 20

Vill.

IX.

Events Ocrurring after Balance Sheet Date

1. The Comg.iny sold two MD-17 cargo airplanes to China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. in' January 2002 at a-price of
RMB 1,007 308,000,

2. Pursuanti: No. 285 Greular of Ministry of Finarce, there will be a great change in the policy of Spa'rfmeﬁtassi’gnmeht.
The Compi: Yy estimates that it will distribute RMB 80 million in subisidy to staff.instead of in the form of apartrients, -
and acquit- d credit facilities of RMB 29,600 million.

4. The Comps 1y announced that it would take part in the restructure of Wuhan Airlines Co. asa sponsor. The pertentage of
share hotd 1g of the Company will be 40%.

Other Significant Event

The Company i quired 30% of the equity of ‘General Electric Motors Service (Xiamcn) Co., Ltd. (h‘e‘rc'i_qaﬁer rcfg:r'r'ed{to‘ as
“General Electrii. ) this year, L&, USD3,600 thousand. The premise of the acquirement is'that the Compan‘yfshoqld deliver 70%

. of the repair of : ngines to “General Electrit” in the next 10 years o reach to a certain volume. The Company will transfei the

proceeds distrit ied by “General Electric” into investment until the maturity of 10 years.

3. The Comp 1y signed 3 cooperation agreement with Bank of China and China Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
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Supplementary Financial Information

Year ended 31 Decemb + 2007

(A) Significaﬁ t differences between International Accounting Standards (“1AS”) and
PRC Acco.inting Regulations

The Group's ar* ounting policies, which conform with IAS, differ in certain respects from PRC Accounting Regulations. Differences
between IAS a1 1 PRCACCounting Regulations which have significant effects an the consolidated profit attrib'ut;ble to shareholders
and consolida’ 2d net assets of the Group are summarised as follows:—

2001 2000

Consolidated rrofit attributable to shareholders - Note RMB*000 RMB'000
As stated in aq: ordance with PRC audited statutory accounts L ) ' 132,919 20,082
lmpad of 1AS 1nd other adjustments: » o
Difference 1 depreciation charges of Hight equipment
due to di‘‘erent useful lives {a) 150,754 62.274
Difference i- depreciation charges of aircraft due
to differe -t useful lives . (b) 185,047 547,305
Gain on dis: 9531 of 2ircraft and engines {© {13,2986) (128,755}
Provision far overhaul expenses (d) (145,107) (76.107)
Reversal of .dditional chargc; of Hight equipment spare parts '
arising fr:m the revaluétion surplus of such assets (e) 9,181 9,848.
Accrual of n: tinterest income on subleases ® - 472} 232
Provision fo: post-retirement benefits , ® {78,953) {110,059)
Curtailmen! >f medical benefit previously included in .
post-retii: ment benefit obligations (4] 95,975 -
Loss on sale Jf staff quanters 0) {4,033) (69.400)
Provision fo: staff quarter allowance ® - (80.179)
Interest acc sed on instalments payable for acquisition
of a passi: 1ger carriage business {® {6,693) -
Amortisatio: of goodwill i {5,655) {5,655}
Amartisatio® of negative goodwill (m) 2,014 -
Other 46,379) 85,741
Tax adjustn -nts (¢) 266,371 (79.798)
As stated in ac ordance with 1AS 541,713 175,529

166




Supplementary Fin ncial information
Yeor endzd 31 Decembe 2001

Significant differences between International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and

|
PRC Accouiting Regulations (Cont'd)

Consolidated n: t assets
As stated in accr 'dance with PRC audited statutory accounts

tmpact of |AS a1 -{ other adjustmenls:I

Difference in : epreciation charges'of flight equipment

due to diffi--ent uselul lives
Diflerence in - epreciation charges of aircraft due to different

useful Jives
Gain on dispc-al of alrcraft and engines
Provision for :verhaul expenses
Reversal of a¢. litional charges of Hight equipment spare parts

arising fros the revaluation surﬁwlus of such assets
"Accrual of nel nterest income on slubleases
Provision for *ost-retirement benefits
Disposition ¢t 1rge of Fokker flight equi;iment
Loss on sale o stalf quarters )
Provision for: aff quarter aliowance
_Time value or instalments payabli for acquisition of a
passenger 1.:eriage busingss
Goodwiil
Negative gooi vill
Unrealised ga 1on foreign currency forwards under
hedging ac. yunting
Timing differe nice in recognition of|dividends
Other '
Tax adjustmedits
AS slated in acccrdance with 1AS

Note

(a)

(o

(d
{d)

{e)

0

0]

(k)

(m)

)
{0)

{p)

()

2001
RMP'000

6,241,373

579,884

2,642,441
(549.491)
(672,533)

(61,823)
(521,063)
(38,750)
24,101
(80,179)

48,552

96,140
(53,231)

5,396
97,339
99,696

{229,098)
7,638,794

2000
RME'000

6,596,548

423,090

2,457,394
(336,195)
(327,426)

(71,004)
472
(538,085)
(38,750)

(352.400) -

(80,179)

101,795

97,339
145,894
(495.469)
7,189,024
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(A)

Supplementary Financial Information
Year ended 31 December 2001

Significan:! differences between. International Accounting Standards (“IAS™) and
PRC Acco . inting Regulations (Cont’d)

Note:— .
Pursuant to th: PRC audited statutory accounts for the year ended 31 December 2001, a prior year adj\;slmcnt amounting lo
RMB10,000,04:1 was put through to the Group's retained earnings brought forward from 2000 which resulted in a decrease in
the consolida:2d net asset value from RMB6,606,548,000 to RMB6,596,548,000 as at 31 December 2000. This prior year
adjustment hi . been incorporated into the comparative figures of 2000 as set out in the table above,

(@)

{b)

©

¢

Under 14, other Hight equipment is accounted for as fixed assets and depreciation charges are calculated over the
expected Jseful fives of 20 years to residual value of 5% of costs/revalued amounts. Under PRC Accounting Regulations,
such fliglt equipment is classified as current assets and the costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over 2 period of

5 years.

Under 143, depreciation of aircraft is alculated to write off their costs/revalued amounts on a straight-line basis over
their exp:cted useiul lives of 20 years 16 their residual values of 5%, Under PRC Accountling Regulations, on or before
30 June .01, depreciaiion-oiaircraft is calculated to write off their costs/revalued amounts on a skraight-line basis over
their exg cted useful lives of 10 to 15 years to their residual values of 3%. With elfect from 1 July 2007, deprediation of
aircraft uider PRC Accounting Regulzitions is calculated 1o write off their costs/revalued amounts on a straight-line basis
over thei- expected useful lives of 20 vears to their residual values of 5%. This change in accounting estimates under PRC
Accounti- g Regulations has been accounted for prospectively. ' '

This reprsents the difference on gain on disposal arising from different usefu! lives adopted on depreciation under I1AS
and PRC * ccounting Regulations (see note (b) above).

Under 1A the casts of major aircraft ovarhauls of aireralt under operating leases are estimated and charged to operating
profit ov. r the period between overhauls using the ratio of actual flying hours and estimated fiying hours between
overhaul: while the ¢osts of major overhauls of owned aircraft and aircraft held under finance leases are charged 16 the
operatin: profit as incurred. Routine repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the operating profits as incurred.
Under Pf«] Accounting Regulations, the gverhauls and routine maintenance costs are provided at specific rates applicable
to the re': ted models of aircraft.

Under 14 , flight equipment spare parts are carried at weighted average cost and are expensed when consumed in
operatio 5. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, such flight equipment spare parts are carried at cosis/revalued amounts

and are (pensed when consumed in operations.




Supplementary Fin.ncial Information
Year ended 31 Decembe: 2007

(A)

Significant differences between International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and
PRC Accouiiting Regulations (Cont'd)

®

(n)

0

Under 1AS, nterest income and expense, lease obligations and the related rental receivables in respect of sublease
arrangemaé: ts for aircraft are accounted for and reflected in the financial statements. Under PRC Accounting Regulations,
such aircra‘: sublease arrangements are not reflected in the Group’s PRC statutory accounts,

The post-ri- irement benefits for employees are required to be recognised over the employees’ service period under (AS
whereas su: h benefits are recognised on a pay-as-you-go basis under the PRC Accounting Regulations.

following * ve joining of the municipal medical insurance scheme, ather than annual contribution, the Group is no
lenger requiired to pay for the medical benefits of the employees. As a result, the post-retirernent benefit obligation
attributabt: to medical benefits brought forward from 31 Oecember 2000 has been written back under 1AS during the

year.

This repres: nts the fleet disposition charge of impairment of fixed assets in respect of Fokker flight equipment after
accounting ‘or the effect of minority interests. Under IAS, provision for impairment of [ong-lived fixed assets is made

where 2 de:ision has been made by mahagement 1o dispose of such assets, Under PRC Accouhting Regulations, losson -

disposal is :nly recognised upon disposal of the assets.

This repres:ats the difference in the recognition of loss on sale of the Group's staff quarters to efigible staff. Under 1AS,
provision fe1 anticipated loss is made for any construction cost in excess of the expected selling price during construction,
and any ow- under-provision is recognised at the time of sale. Under PRC Accounting Regulaticns, the loss on disposal of
staff quane: is recognised directly in the reserves,

under IAS, I1e housing allowance provision made is charged to other operating expenses following the adoption of the
state policy stipulated in a circular issued by the State Council of the PRC with reference to the detailed procedures
promulgate by certain provincial governments in 2000. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, such housing allowance will
be recogniéid at the time of payment.

Under 1AS, 1e consideration payable for the acquisition of a passenger carriage business is recorded based on the
present val 12 of the instalment payments. The difference in time value between the acquisition cost payable and its
present vall ¥ is periodically recognised as interest expenses in the profit and Joss account over the period of payments.
Under PRC .. 2oounting Regulations, such difference is not recognised.
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(A)

Supplementary Financial information
Year ended 31 December 2001

Significar differences between International Accounting Standards (“1AS”) and
PRC Accou nting Regulations (Cont'd)

0

{n)

(@)

Any exce': of the cost oilacauisition over the acquirer's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired *i recognised as goodwill. Under IAS, the obligation of post-retirement benefits for employees inherited by the
Group thiugh the acguisition ol & passenger carriage business has been recognised and accounted for in the fair value
of the ide: tifiable net assets acquired. As a result, gocdwill has been recognised which is amortised over 20 years. Under
PRC Accotnting Regulations, the post-retirement benelits arc recognised on 2 pay-as-you-go basis and the corresponding
obligatio ' is not accounted for in the fair value of the net assets acquired. Accordingly, no goodwill or amortisation is

recognise:’,

Under IA:, the consideration payable for the acquisition of & passénger carriage business is recorded based on the
present vi: ue of the instalment payments, giving rise 10 a negative goodwill which is amortised over the weighted average
remainin, useful lives of the depreciable non-manetary assets acquired. Under PRC Accounting Regulations, the time
value of 1" e consideration payable has not been accounted for and accordingly, no negative goodwill or amortisation is

recognisq: .

Under IA the Group's foreign currq.n'cy forward contracts qualify for hedging accounting and the unrealised gain on
these forv gn currency forward contracts is recognised as the Group's hedging reserve in the shareholders' equity. Under
PRC Acca. nting Regulations, the gain un the foreign currency forward contracts is recognised in the profit and foss
ageount 1. 200 their maturity. ’

Under At dividends proposed or declared after the batance sheet date is not recognised in the current year's financial
statemeni ' . Accordingly, no liabiiity regarding the dividend payable is reflected in the balance sheet Under PRC Accounting
Regulatitll uis, proposed or declared dividends after the balance sheet date are reflected in the current year's financial

statemen 5.

Under 1A1, tax adjustments are made in respect of the deferred tax effects for the items above and a valuation allowance
has been ;irovided against deferred tax assets not expected to be realised in the foreseeable future,

In additit 11 0 the above, there are other classification differences in balance sheet items due to different requirements
under 1A' 3nd PRC Accounting Regulations.
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Supplementary Fi-ancial information
Year ended 31 Decemi - 2001

(B) Significan: differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP

Differences bel veen IAS and U.S. GAAP which have significant effects on the consolidated profits attributable to shareholders

and consolidal. d net assets of the Group are summarised as foliows:—

Consolidated : rofit attributahle to shareholders Note
As stated unde - IAS
U.S. GAAP af _ustments:
Reversal ¢i additional depreciation charges arising from

revalualisn surplus of fixed assets

Reversa! of §1nortisation charge on land use rights )]
Reversal of a:nortisation charge on goodwill ©
Change in at: ounting policy for aircraft overhaul expenses
Gain on dis;ll.sai of aircraft and related assets {d)
Sales and lex. eback af aircraft ®
Post-retirem. at benefits ]
Curtailment. :f medicl benefits greviously induded

in post-reticement benefit obligations- )

Deferred tax ' ffect on U.S. GAAP adjustments ®
As stated under U.S. GAAP A
Basic and fully":iluted earnings per share under US. GAAP
Basi¢ and fully :iluted earnings per American Depository Share

{*ADS"} unde- U.S. GAAP

f-\
LI

2001
RMB’000

541,713

85,720
8,420
5,655
5,791

26,234

12,122

75,308)
{155,877}
474,472

RMB0.097

RMB9.75

2000
RME'000

175,529

122,059
8,420
5,655

652,981

40,144

(37.645)

42,466

(275.246)
734,363
RMB0.151

RMB15.09




Supplementary Financial Information

Year cnded 31 December 2001

(B} Significar:! differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP (Cont’d)

2001 2000
Consolidated net assets Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
As stated und:: - JAS 7,638,794 7,189,024
U.S. GAAP adjistments: ’
Reversal of:: avaluation surplus of fixed assets (a) (977,240) {377 240)
Reversal of .1nd use right at vatuation _ o) (420,999) {420,999)
Goodwill w- tten off to equity v § (© (113,105) (113.105)
Reversal of - ifference in depreciation charges and accumulated ‘
deprecia on and gain/loss on disposal arising from the
revatuatl. a surplus of fixed assets ‘ {a)(d) 643,099 551,588
Reversal of : mortisation of land use rights ’ {b) 46,310 37890 -
Reversal of - mortisation of goodwill (a) 16,965 11,310
Sales and I¢:iseback of aircraft 3} {40,733) (66,967)
Post-retirer:2nt benefits ()] 142,217 185,401
Deferred ta . effect on U.S, GAAP adjustments ® 105,524 261,401

Asstated undi: US GAAP . 7.040,832 6,658,303

{a) Revaluiition of fixed assets

‘Fixcd assets ol he Group were revalued s at 30 June 1996 as part of the restructuning of the Group for the purpose of listing,
which resultet! in a revaluation surplus of RMB977,240,000 attributable 1o the Groub. The value of the fixed assets, which
became the re- sed tax base of the assets, have been accounted for in the financial statements under 1AS. Additional depredation
charges arisiny: from the revaluation surplus was approximalely RMB85,720,000 for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2000:
RMB122,059,0: 0).

Under U.S. GA - P. the revaluation surplus and the refated additional depreciation are reversed since fixed assets are required
lo be stated & ost.

(b) land ui:: rights

in 1996, land .ise rights based on a vatuation of RMB420,999.000 were assigned by EA Group as @ non-monetary asset in
exchange for s are capital of the Company. The value of the land use rights and the corresponding amortisation charges have
been account: | for in the financial statements under 1AS.

Under US.GA 2, such 1and use rights would be reported at their historical costas this transaction was between entitics “hdt.‘

common cont o} which in this case would be nil.




Supplementaty F 1ancial information

Year ¢nded 31 Decemer 2001

Significai't differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP (Cont'd)

(c) Goodw:l

Under 1AS, gov twill arising from the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets and fiabilities
acquired is an.ortised over its economic useful life which, in the Group's case, is 20 years. Under U.S. GAAP, should the identifiable
assets and liai‘ lities be acquired from the parent company, the acquisition is considered to be a transaction between entities
under comme 11 control and is required to be accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling of interest. Under this method the
assets acquire: are recorded at cost to the vendor and the goodwill is directly set off against owners’ equity of the acquirer.

(d) Disposi'! of aircraft and related assets ]

This represeﬁ:; the gainfloss on dispasal of air¢raft and related assets during the year. Under U.S. GAAP, fixed assets are
required to be stated at cost. Accordingly, the accumulated deprediation and the gainfloss on disposal of aircraft is different
between 1AS 3 d U.S, GAAP, whidh is attributable to the surplus/deficit upon valuation associated with the assets disposed of.

(e) Sales ai:d leaseback of aircraft

Under IAS, gai- on sale and leaseback transactions where the subsequent fease is an operating lease are recognised as income
immediately ! the transactions 'a.r'e"estabh‘lshed at fair value. Differences between the sale price and fair value are deferred and
amortised ove- the period for which the asiets are expected Lo be used. Under LS. GAAP, such gains are deferred and amortised

over the term  f the lease.

(i Post-rel.rement benefits

Under U.S. GA , the Group is required to amortise the past service cost of post-retirement benefits arising from initial recognition
of the obligatinns over the average remaining service period of the active plan participants which approximates 20 years
whereas unde: IAS, the transitional obligation arising from recognition of the obligations upon initial adoplion of IAS 19
“Employee bei fils" is amortised over a period of 5 years,

The differencd n the recognised portion of the past service cost under U.S. GAAP and that of the transitional obtigation under
IAS gives rise €. a difference in the reversal amount upon the curailment of medical benefits previously included as part of

post-retiromes  benelit obligations.
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Supplementary Financial information
Year ended 31 December 2001

Significant differences between 1AS and U.S. GAAP (Cont’d)

(g} Defern'1 tax effect
These repres¢ 1t the corresponding deferred tax effect as a result of the adjustments stated in (a), (b). (¢), (d). (&) and (f) above.

’

{h) Segmei:tal disclosures

The Group ad:pted SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information®. The Group has a
route networl lesigned to transport passengers and cargo between destinations in China, Hong Kong. and selected international
destinations |- Japan, U.S., Australia, South Korea, Thailand, Singﬁpore and a number of Eurgpean countries. China, Hong
Kong, and In :rnational constitute the Group's three reportable segments, SFAS N0.131 requires thal segment financial
infermation I .+ disclosed under the management approach that is consistent wifr\ how the Group's management internally
desegregates inancial information far the purpose of making internal operating decisions. The Group evaluates revenue
information ¢ s operating segments based on unaudited management operational information prepared under PRC Accounting

Regulations.
Unaudited management
operational intarmation under
PRC Accountlng Regulations
for the year ended 31 December .
2001 _ 2000
Note RME'000 RMB'000
Traffic reveny:s : (0]
Domestic
Passenger 5,513,591 4429411
Grgo ) 234,658 233,053
Subtotaf 5,748,249 4,662,464
Hong Kong
Passenger 2,024,214 1,827,860
Grgo . ) 233,149 239,536
Subtotal 2,257,363 2,167,396
International (i)
Passenger 3,079,730 3,110,463
Cargo {n 1,708,194 1,719,707
Subtotal 4,787,924 4,830,170
Total (iv} 12,793,536 11,660,030
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Supplemes :ary Financial Information

Year ended 3 December 2001

(B)

Sigrt ficant differences between 1AS and U.S. GAAP (Cont'd)

{h) 3::gmental disclosures (Cont’d)

0]

)

(i)

™

0]

1 affic revenues by routes are attributed to each reportable segments based on the final destination / origin of each Hight
{: ute. For international and Hong Kong routes with 3 domestic segment. revenues for the entire route are attributed to
¢.ich reportable segment based on the final destination / origin of the route.

G.rgo includes both @rgo and mail,

1he Group's international revenues are generated front its international routes to and from countries including Japan,
U S.. Australia, South Korea, Thailand, Singapore and selecled European countries. Among these countries, the Group
§ nerates from Japan routes its largest share of intematianal revenue (not¢: the Group generated traffic revenues, under
I3, of RMB1,574,971,000 and RMB1,586,071,000 from its Japan routes in 2001 and 2000 respectively).

T+ e waffic revenue figures as stated above are different from the Group’'s audited PRC stalutory accounts and the Group's
a. dited 1AS accounts due 1o the following reasons:~

»  The management made us¢ of this operatianal information before closing of accounts for each accounting period.
Accordingly, estimates (which are generally within a discrepancy of 5% on total actual revenues) have been
incorporated into this eperational information for timely decision making purposes,

- Certain discounts granted to sales agents and customers have not been set-off against revenues under management
operational information,

T1e major revenue-generating assets of the Group are its aircraft fleet, all of which are registered in the PRC Since the

G up’s aircraft fleet is deploved fiexibly across its route network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such assets and
th- refated liabilities to geographical segments,
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